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PART |

This report includes “forward-looking statementsThe words “may,” “will,” “anticipate,” “believe,” “ estimate,” “expect,” “intend,”
“plan,” “aim,” “seek,” “should,” “likely,” and similar expressions as they relate to us or management are intended to identify tl
forward-looking statements. All statements by us regardimgexpected financial position, revenues, castvdland other operating resu
business strategy, legal proceedings and similattens: are forwardlooking statements. Our expectations expressednplied in thes
forward-looking statements may not turn out to be corr@etr results could be materially different from cexpectations because of vari
risks, including the risks discussed in this reportler “Part | — Item 1A — Risk Factors.” Any formdalooking statement speaks only as o
date as of which such statement is made, and, easagquired by law, we undertake no obligatiompalate any forwardeoking statement
reflect events or circumstances, including unapttéd events, after the date as of which suchmetewas made.

ITEM 1. Business
Corporate Information

We incorporated under the laws of the State off@ailia in April 1999 as Micromed Laboratories, Ife.August 2001, we changed our nam
Oculus Innovative Sciences, Inc. In December 2@@6reincorporated under the laws of the State ddare. Our principal executive offic
are located at 1129 N. McDowell Blvd., PetalumalifGania, 94954, and our telephone number is (7283-0550. We have two princif
wholly-owned subsidiaries: Oculus Technologies of Mex&@,. de C.V., organized in Mexico; and Oculus Inatbxe Sciences Netherlan
B.V., organized in the Netherlands. Our formerlyoliytowned subsidiary, Ruthigen, Inc., organized in ele, was deconsolidated
March 26, 2014 in connection with the completion itsf initial public offering. Our fiscal year end iMarch 31. Our website
www.oculusis.com. We do not intend for informatimm our website to be incorporated into this anmejport.

Our Business

We are a global healthcare company that desigondupes, and markets prescription and poascription products in over 20 countries. We
pioneering innovative products for the dermatologyrgical, advanced wound and tissue care, andahriipalthcare markets. Our prim
focus is on the commercialization of our proprigta@chnology platform called Microcyn®echnology. This technology is based on electny
charged oxychlorine small molecules designed tgetaa wide range of organisms that cause diseagbogens). These organisms incl
viruses, fungi, spores and antibiotic-resistantissr of bacteria, such as methicillin-resist&8iaphylococcus aureus or MRSA, ani
vancomycin-resistarEnterococcuspr VRE, as well a€lostridium difficile,or C. diff, a highly contagious bacteria spreadhloynan contac
Several Microcyn®rechnology tissue care products are designed &b itreections and enhance healing while reducirgniied for antibiotic
Infection is a serious potential complication irtbbohronic and acute wounds, and controlling inéects a critical step in wound healing.

To date, we have obtained eight approvals or oheas from the U.S. Food and Drug Administration,F@A, that permit us to sell ¢
Microcyn®-based products as medical devices under Sectiotk)od0 the Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic Acthie tUnited States.

December 2013, we announced that we had receivddtest 510(k) device clearance from the FDA for mew Microcyn®Scar Manageme
HydroGel. The Rx product, under the supervisioma tiealthcare professional, is intended for the mament of old and new hypertrophic

keloid scarring resulting from burns, general staijprocedures and trauma wounds.

We do not have the necessary regulatory approwatsarket Microcyn®as a drug or as a medical device with an antimiatalr wounc
healing indication in the United States. Outside United States, our Microcyn®echnology products have a European Conformity ¢
known as a Conformité Européenne, or CE Mark, degjaproval in Europe for debriding, irrigating andistening acute and chronic wou
in comprehensive wound treatment through potetdl antimicrobial effect in the wound bed andatitey a moist environment. In Febru
2014, we announced receipt of European CE Markcdegpproval for our Microcyn®-based GramaDerm® 8Sotuand GramaDer
Hydrogel. Both products are intended for use in tthgcal treatment of mild to moderate acne anddasigned to complement other &
treatments. In July 2013, we were granted a Mexjgatent for the use of our novel antimicrobial steysolution in the treatment a
prevention of peritonitis. In India, our technolobgs a drug license for cleaning and debriding oumd management. In China, we h
obtained a medical device approval by the Statelleoal Drug Administration for reducing the propagabf microbes in wounds and creai
a moist environment for wound healing.

While we do not have the necessary regulatory atear for an antimicrobial or wound healing indioatin the United States, several fact
including our global product experience, clinicaldaaboratory testing, physicided clinical studies based on our technology arnensific
papers authored about our technology, suggesbthidvlicrocyn® Technology may help reduce a wide range of path®geacute and chror
wounds, while curing or improving infection, andncarrently enhancing wound healing through modeactibn unrelated to the treatmen
infection. These physician-led clinical studiesgest that our Microcyn®&echnology is safe, easy to use and complementamany existin
treatment methods in wound care. Physidehelinical studies and usage of our producthaWnited States suggest that our 510(k) cle
products may shorten hospital stays, lower aggeegatient care costs and, in certain cases, realeageed for systemic antibiotics.




Common methods of controlling infection, includingpical antiseptics and antibiotics, have provenb&o only moderately effective

combating infection in the wound bed. However, tapiantiseptics tend to inhibit the healing procdse to their toxicity and may requ
specialized preparation or handling. Antibiotice ¢ead to the emergence of resistant bacteria, aadiRSA and VRE. Systemic antibio
may be less effective in controlling infection iatignts with disorders affecting circulation, swahdiabetes, which are commonly assoc
with chronic wounds. As a result, no single treattnis used across all types of wounds and stagésealing and we believe Microcgn
Technology can fill a niche in the skin care antbaic and acute wound care markets.

We believe Microcyn® Technology is a stable, antéctive therapeutic that treats infections antlates wound healing through incre:
blood flow to the wound bed and reduction of checaniflammation. Also, we believe Microcyn®echnology provides significant advanta
over current methods of care in the treatment wfide range of chronic and acute wounds throughtuttages of treatment. These stz
include cleaning, debridement, prevention and itneat of infections and wound healing. We belieat,thnlike antibiotics, antiseptics, gro\
regulators and other advanced wound care prodiMitspcyn® Technology is a stable wound care solution thatsisafe as saline, and ¢
treats infection while simultaneously acceleratimgund healing. Also, unlike most antibiotics, wdidee Microcyn® Technology does n
target specific strains of bacteria, a practicechiias been shown to promote the development istaes bacteria. In addition, our products
shelf stable, non-toxic, require no special prefiamaand are easy to use.

Our goal is to become a worldwide leader as thedstal of care in the treatment and irrigation ofropvounds and skin care. We curre
have, and intend to seek additional, regulatorgreleces and approvals to market our Microcysa®ed products worldwide. In July 2004,
first began selling Microdacyn60™ in Mexico aftexceiving approval from the Mexican Ministry of Himlfor use as an antisep
disinfectant and sterilant. Since then, physiciang scientists in the United States, Europe, Irfi#&kjistan, China and Mexico have condu
more than 40 clinical and scientific studies of Mityn® Technology, generating data suggestingttietechnology is noiritating to health
tissue, reduces microbial load, accelerates wowadirtg, reduces pain, shortens treatment time aayd lmve the potential to reduce cos!
healthcare providers and patients. Most of thasdies were not intended to be rigorously desigmecbatrolled clinical trials and, as such,
not have all of the controls required for clinitidhls used to support a new drug application ssbion to the FDA. A number of these stu
did not include blinding, randomization, predefinguhical end points, use of placebo and activetrmrgroups or U.S. Good Clinical Praci
(GCP) requirements. We used the data generateddeotain of these studies to support our CE Magiegation with the European Union -
certification of our Microcyn®rechnology products for wound cleaning and redactibmicrobial load in the European Economic Ard&
received a Class Il CE Mark in November 2004, amgehalso received additional international appwalChina, Canada, Mexico, India i
select Latin American, Asian and Middle East coiestrTo date, our Microcyn®ased products have received eight FDA 510(k) alezes i
the United States. Many of these clearances arederas a medical device in wound cleaning, orideiwent, lubricating, moistening
dressing, including traumatic wounds and acutecimdnic dermal lesions.

In December 2011, we initiated a voluntary recélée@ect lot numbers of certain of our Microclased products due to product labeling.
voluntary recall was prompted after notification thye FDA that a limited number of our products wangroperly labeled. The recall w
classified by the FDA as a Class Il recall, whichams the probability of serious health consequewessremote. Customer safety and pro
quality are critically important to us and to date have received no complaints regarding cust@afaty or product quality issues. The ¢
of the voluntary recall were nominal and there weoerestrictions on our future sales of Microdyesed products, other than revising
product labeling for certain products. The voluptagcall did not materially impact revenues.

The FDA requirements for device and drug approaedsdiscussed in greater detail un@evernment Regulation.

Ruthigen, Inc.

Our formerly whollyewned subsidiary, Ruthigen, Inc., was incorporatethe State of Nevada on January 18, 2013, amtagiorated froi
Nevada to Delaware on September 25, 2013. RutHigsrestablished offices in Santa Rosa, CalifoRighigen announced its initial puk
offering on March 21, 2014. As of March 26, 2014 tlosing date of Ruthigeninitial public offering, we held 2,000,000, or%3of the
shares of Ruthigen common stock.

We entered into three key agreements with Ruthigah govern the terms of our relationship with Rgei: the “Funding Agreementthe
“License and Supply Agreement” and the “Shared iBesvAgreement.Each of these agreements was entered into in thelbwontext ¢
Ruthigen’s separation from us (the “Separation)e effective date for all three agreements wasclhsing date of Ruthigeg’initial public
offering, which was March 26, 2014.




Funding Agreemer

On January 31, 2014, we entered into a new Fundmggement with Ruthigen to govern the terms of aiartadditional financing to |
provided to Ruthigen by us, pending the Separatiohject to the terms and conditions set fortth@dgreement.

We agreed to continue to fund Ruthigen for a tofalip to $760,000 in order to allow Ruthigen toqwed with its initial public offerin
Pursuant to the agreement any funds advanced togeatby us were to be repaid at the time of theiny of Ruthigers initial public offering
On March 26, 2014, the date the initial public affig closed, we had made aggregate advances dd&0@0 to Ruthigen. In connection w
the completion of the initial public offering, Puent to the Funding Agreement, Ruthigen reimburse8916,000 of costs associated witt
initial public offering. The remaining $537,000 washsequently received on April 1, 2014,

In addition to the reimbursement terms, the Fundiggeement provided for the resignation of the Ryeh Board Members from our Boarc
Directors. Effective February 21, 2014, one of Bhehigen Directors, Greg French, resigned fromBaard and effective March 26, 2014,
remaining Ruthigen Directors, Richard Conley angalHar Alimi, resigned from our Board.

License and Supply Agreem:

We initially entered into a License and Supply Agreent with Ruthigen on June 6, 2013. Pursuantdatéhms of the License and Sug
Agreement, we agreed to exclusively license cemdiour proprietary technology to Ruthigen to eeaRlthigens research and developm
and commercialization of the newly discovered RUBB8 and any improvements to it, in the United Statéanada, European Union

Japan, referred to as the Territory, for certawagive procedures in humans as defined in the keEemd Supply Agreement. On Octobe
2013, we entered into Amendment No. 1 to the Lieesrsd Supply Agreement with Ruthigen, which amerttiedsecond milestone event
forth in Section 7.1 of the License and Supply Agnent. On November 6, 2013, we entered into Amentiide. 2 to the License and Sup
Agreement with Ruthigen to further amend the certailestone events set forth in Section 7.1 ofltliense and Supply Agreement ani
amend the terms of the manufacturing equipmenthases set forth in Section 6.13 of the License Sunoply Agreement. On January
2014, we entered into Amendment No. 3 to the Lieearsd Supply Agreement with Ruthigen to further madheertain milestone events and
terms of the manufacturing equipment purchasestamdmove sections of the License and Supply Ages# which related to an exclus
option granted by us to Ruthigen to expand the gesfrithe License and Supply Agreement to dermaiologes. All other terms and conditit
of the License and Supply Agreement remain unmedliéind in full force and effect.

Under the terms of the License and Supply Agreenveatwill be prohibited from using the licensed fietary technology to sell products 1
compete with Ruthiger’ products within the Territory, and Ruthigen cansell any device or product that competes with gnaducts bein
sold or developed as of the effective date of titehse and Supply Agreement.

Ruthigen will be required to make a total of uB&000,000 in milestone payments to us for thé fireduct only, as follows: upon complet
of last patient enrollment in RuthigenPhase 1/2 clinical study; upon completion of [stient enrollment in Ruthigen's first pivotalnitial
study; upon completion of Ruthigen’s first meetimigh the U.S. Food and Drug Administration followisompletion of Ruthiges’first pivota
clinical trial; and upon first patient enrolimem Ruthigen$ second pivotal clinical trial. In addition, asrther consideration under 1
agreement, Ruthigen will be required to make rgypétyments to us based on Ruthigeahnual net sales of the product from the dafest
commercial sale to the date that Ruthigen or anigsohffiliates or successors ceases to commeradhe product, which percentage roy
rate will vary between 3% and 20% and will increbased on various net sales thresholds and wiérdifepending on the country in which
sales are made.

Shared Services Agreement

We also entered into a shared services agreem#mtRuthigen initially on June 6, 20 ] 3, pursuamtvthich we will provide Ruthigen wi
general services, including general accounting, dumesources, laboratory personnel and shared R&Durces while Ruthigen plans
establish an independent facility and systems. &wadry 31, 2014, we entered into Amendment No. theoshared services agreement
Ruthigen to amend the terms of certain standaiigites we shall provide Ruthigen and the termsated to access to our facilities. All ot
terms and conditions of the shared services agneteramain unmodified and in full force and effect.

Separation Agreement

Effectiveness and Ter—On August 2, 2013, we entered into a Separatioreément with Ruthigen as amended January 31, 2@t4dhtain
provisions relating to our ongoing relationship twRRuthigen, and more specifically governs our iefship with Ruthigen following tt
completion of Ruthigers' initial public offering. The Separation Agreemegd amended, contains certain limitations on dility to contro
various aspects of Ruthigenbusiness and operations in order for Ruthigesptrate as independently as possible from us iardadunlocl
the value proposition of RUT580. The Separation Agreement took effect on Maréh 2014 and terminates on the earlier of 8.5
following the initial public offering or when theagties mutually agree to terminate it. However, nudshe material restrictions and obligati
contained in the Separation Agreement lapse wheowyeless than 19.9% of the outstanding sharesutfigen’s common stock.
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Marketing and Transfer Restrictio— The Separation Agreement contains a series ofiggsirs on our ability to transfer the Ruthigen 1Eh
we own. We are restricted from transferring orisglany of the Ruthigen shares we own without thiéten consent of Ruthiges’'Board an
the lead underwriter in the Ruthigen IPO duringahe-year lock up period immediately following Rigém’s initial public offering. Followin
the one-year lock up period, transfers by us oRbthigen shares we own must be conducted witleahsent of Ruthiges’Board of Directol
or within the prescribed requirements for suchgfars set forth in the Separation Agreement. Tipesscribed requirements include that
transfers must be in private placement transactitras the purchase price discount may not exc&étl dr 20% of the prevailing market pr
depending on the type of transferee, the amoushafes transferred in a given transfer (or sefiggansfers comprising a single transact
may not exceed the greater of 5% of Ruthigemitstanding shares or $1.5 million in net prosdedus, as well as certain other requiremen
forth in the Separation Agreement. The parties alag mutually agree to another arrangement penitis to sell some or all of the Ruthi
shares we hold.

Registration Right— The Separation Agreement provides us with certpiggy back” registration rights if Ruthigen proposes to puly
register any of its common stock following the cdetipn of Ruthigers intended initial public offering, subject to @t conditions ar
limitations. The inclusion of the Ruthigen shares @wn in such registration will be subject to tlans terms that Ruthigen offers its ¢
securities in such offering and our registratiaghts will never be never be more than 30% of tHaevaf all securities to be registered in <
offering. In addition, following transfers by us thfe Ruthigen shares, we have certain demand r&iist rights requiring Ruthigen to regis
all of the Ruthigen shares we have transferred.

Standstill- We have agreed that, subject to the ownership libléswe shall not, and shall not act in concetthvdany person to, make
participate in a solicitation of proxies or powerkattorney or similar rights to vote any of thetRgen shares we own or to deposit
Ruthigen shares we own in a voting trust.

Voting— We have agreed that, subject to the ownershiphbléswe shall vote or consent all of the Ruthighares we own in the same mai
as the majority of the non-Oculus holders of Ruthig common stock.

Equity Plan, Oculus Equity and Corporate Governa— We and Ruthigen have agreed on the principalderfirRuthigers equity incentiv
plan, including the formula for the number of sisareserved under the plan, the vesting schedusavafds under the plan, timing, size
award type of the initial grants to be made follogvthe closing of Ruthiges'intended initial public offering, and the formdita the evergree
refresh provision and other share caps on cernygiest of awards and future equity plans. The Separdtgreement clarifies that options
common stock of our Company held by employees amdtdrs of Ruthigen shall continue to vest as laaghe individuals continue in sen
to Ruthigen. In addition, the Separation Agreemamatvides that Ruthiges’ restated articles of incorporation and bylaws garposes ¢
operating as a public company will contain provisidor a staggered Board of Directors and pluraiit§ing for the election of directors.

Indemnification— The Separation Agreement provides that each pattyndemnify, defend and hold harmless the otharty and its affiliate
for third party claims asserted against the otltyp and that we will indemnify, defend and holtihless Ruthigen and its affiliates from
against any and all direct losses relating to thd Wan agreements.

Directors’ and Officers’ Insurance- The Separation Agreement provides that, so lengeshall maintain a directors’ and officeirssuranc
program covering the past and present officersdirettors of our Company, the program shall bedsesh in our industry and if there i
change to the program, then we shall provide pmatice. In addition, we have agreed not to excladg former Oculus director from a
insurance policy coverage if such coverage is naadédable to our Company’s then existing directamd officers.

Microcyn ® Technology Platform
Mechanism of Action

We believe Microcyn® Technology’ability to reduce the need for antibiotics thdoymgevention and treatment of infections while potimg
wound healing is based on its uniquely engineeramistry. As a result of our patented manufactupnocess, Microcyn®s a proprietar
solution of oxychlorine compounds that, among otthéngs, interact with and inactivate surface prateon cell walls and membranes
microorganisms. The functions of these proteinsvaréed and play significant roles in cell commuation, nutrient and waste transport
other required functions for cell viability. Onceidvbcyn® surrounds single cell microorganisms, it damagesédiproteins, causing the
membrane to rupture, leading to cell death, whiehhelieve is caused by increased membrane perntgabild induced osmotic press
imbalance. We continue to study the exact mechantsymwhich protein and structural components ofltheterial cell walls and membrar
and the protein shell that surrounds a virus, fiected by Microcyn®.This destruction of the cell appears to occur tgtoa fundamental
different process than that which occurs as a tresfutontact with a bleachased solution because experiments have demomwistitzey
Microcyn® Kkills bleach-resistant bacteria. Howewse believe the solution remains nioritating to human tissues because human cellg
unique protective mechanisms, are interlocked, pmedent Microcyn®from targeting and surrounding single cells topicain the body
Laboratory tests suggest that our solution doepeaoetrate and kill multi-cellular organisms, ameés not damage or affect human DNA.
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In laboratory tests, Microcyn®as been shown to destroy certain biofilms. A biofs a complex cluster of microorganisms or baaterarkes
by the formation of a protective shell, allowing thacteria to collect and proliferate. It is estdathat over 65% of microbial infections in
body involve bacteria growing as a biofilm. Bacteliving in a biofilm typically have significantlgifferent properties from frefleating
bacteria of the same species. One result of this dnvironment is increased resistance to antitBoéind to the bodg’immune system.
chronic wounds, biofilms interfere with the nornhaaling process and halt or slow wound closuretédgcgrowing in biofilms can become
to 1000fold more resistant to antibiotics and other biesighs compared to their planktonic counterpartsa Aesult, biofilm infections canr
be effectively treated with conventional antibiotiherapy. In our laboratory studies, Microcym@&s shown to destroy two common biofi
after five minutes of exposure.

In published studies, Microcyn®as been shown to significantly increase the diatf capillaries in wounds as indicated by higlesels o
oxygen at a wound site after the application of praduct and also to reduce inflammation by inlvilgitcertain inflammatory responses fi
allergyproducing mast cells. It is widely accepted thalu@ng chronic inflammation surrounding an injunyveound is beneficial to woul
healing. Our laboratory research suggests thatddier®’s interference with these cells is selective ty dné inflammatory response and ¢
not interfere with other functions of these ceNsicrocyn® Technology has demonstrated antimicrobial actigig@inst numerous bacter
viral and fungal pathogens, including antibiatésistant strains, as evidenced by passing resultsumerous standardized labora
microbiology tests conducted on our 510(k) appraeetinology by a variety of certified independessting laboratories.

Current Regulatory Approvals and Clearances

The majority of our current products are based wnMicrocyn® Technology platform. We are able todifip the chemistry of Microcyn®y
changing the oxidationeduction potential, pH level and concentrationsmécific ions or chemicals, which allows us to ofanture a varie
of solutions, each specifically designed for maximefficacy and safety by indication. The indicaidor our products vary from country
country due to differences in regulatory requireteeand standards between jurisdictions. The inidicatbelow are summaries of
indications approved by the regulatory authorityaothorities in the listed jurisdictions, but da,nwowever, include pending product approy
The similarly named products have similar formulas; however, they may not have identical spedifioa due to varying requirements
different jurisdictions’ regulatory agencies. Ttaldwing is a list of the regulatory approvals arldarances that Microcyn®ased produc
have received for our most significant or potehtialgnificant markets:

Year of
Approval
Approval or or o
Region Clearance Type Clearance Summary Indication
United States 510(k) 2005 Moistening and lubricating absorbent wound dressiiog traumatic wounds requiring
prescription.

510(k) 2005 Moistening and debriding acute and chronic dermsibhs requiring a prescriptic

510(k) 2006  Moistening absorbent wound dressings and cleanimpmetuts as an over-th@sunte
product.

510(k) 2009 Management of exuding wounds such as leg ulceesspre ulcers, diabetic ulcers
for the management of mechanical or surgical debmeht of wounds in a gel form ¢
required as a prescriptio

510(k) 2009 Debridement of wounds, such as stage I-IV pressigers, diabetic foot ulcers, post-
surgical wounds, first- and secoddgree burns, grafted and donor sites as preses
which can Kkill listed bacteria such as MRSA & VREdaequired as a prescriptic

510(k) 2010 As a hydrogel, for management of dermal irritatisares, injuries and ulcers of der
tissue including itch and pain relief associatethvdermal irritation, sores, injuries &
ulcers of dermal tissue as a prescription. As\@r-thecounter product, the hydroge
intended to relieve itch and pain from minor skintations, lacerations, abrasions
minor burns. It is also indicated for managementirdgfation and pain from mins
sunburn

510(k) 2011 As a hydrogel, for management and relief of burnitghing and pain experienced w
various types of dermatoses, including atopic détim@and radiation dermatiti

510(k) 2013 As hydrogel for the management of old and new hypehic and keloid scarrit

resulting from burns, general surgical proceduresteauma wound.
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Product

Medical Device

Product
Product
Product
Medical Device
Product
Product
Product
Product
Product
Product

Medical Device

2004

2014

2003

2004

2013

2014

2004

2006

2008

2012

2010

2013

2013

2013

2011

2013

2013

2013

2011

2013

2013

2013

2013

2013

2013

2007

Debriding, irrigating and moistening acute and cicavounds in comprehensive wot
treatment by reducing microbial load and creatirgstrenvironment

Hydrogel for use in the topical treatment of mildo tmoderate aci
(GramaDerr®Solution and GramaDei®Hydrogel).

Antiseptic disinfection solution for high level difection of medical instruments, anc
equipment and clearsoms, areas of medical instruments, equipment c@an roor
areas

Antiseptic treatment of wounds and infected areas.

Scar management hydrogel (Epicyn).

Oral care products for adjunct treatment in mounith garoat infections (Microcyn60®).
Moistening, irrigating, cleansing and debriding tecand chronic dermal lesions, diab
ulcers and po-surgical wounds

Cleaning and debriding in wound managem

Reducing the propagation of microbes in wounds @edting a moist environment
wound healing (Dermac® Wound Care

Acute and chronic derma wounds moistening, heatmgl repair and debridem
(Microcyn® Hydrogel)

Cleaning and debriding in wound managen

Hydrogel for treatment of acne and various dernest@¢sace Cool™ |
Hydrogel for treatment of baby rash (Baby Cool

Feminine hygiene wash (Lady Cool™

Cleaning and debriding in wound management

Hydrogel for treatment of acne and various derneg@¢sace Cool™
Hydrogel for treatment of baby rash (Baby Cool

Feminine hygiene wash (Lady Cool™

Cleaning and debriding in wound managen

Hydrogel for treatment of acne and various derneg@¢sace Cool™
Hydrogel for treatment of baby rash (Baby Cool

Feminine hygiene wash (Lady Cool™

Hydrogel for treatment of acne and various dernet@¢sace Cool™
Hydrogel for treatment of baby rash (Baby Cool

Feminine hygiene wash (Lady Cool™

Cleaning and debriding in wound managem
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Saudi Arabic Medical Device 2010 Cleaning and debriding in wound managen
Panamz Drug 2012  Sterilizer and antisept|
Product Approva 2013  Anticipetic (Microdacy®).

El Salvador Medical Device 2013 Disinfecting in cleaning and debriding in wound ragement as well as sterilizatior
medical equipmer

Product Approva 2013  Anticipetic (Microdacy®).

Honduras Medical Device 2013 Disinfecting in cleaning and debriding in wound ragament as well as sterilizatior
medical equipmer

Singapore Medical Device 2010 Cleaning and debriding in wound managen
Malaysia Medical Device 2008 Cleaning and debriding in wound managen
Clinical Trials

We have completed a proof-of-concept Phase Il inidhe United States, which demonstrated the gfiecess of Microcyn®rechnology il
mildly infected diabetic foot ulcers with the primpaendpoint of clinical cure and improvement ofeiafion. We used 15 clinical sites
enrolled 48 evaluable patients in three arms, uMigocyn® alone, Microcyn®plus an oral antibiotic and saline plus an oralkaatic. We
announced the results of our Phase Il trial in M&©08. In the clinically evaluable population bétstudy, the clinical success rate at visit
(test of cure) for Microcyn®-alone-treated patienwtss 93.3% compared to 56.3% for the oral antibietvofloxacin plus salingeated patient
This study was not statistically powered, but thghltlinical success rate (93.3%) and theajpuie (0.033) suggest the difference is meaning
positive for the Microcyn®-treated patients. Alfor this set of data, the 95.0% confidence intefealthe Microcyn®enly arm ranged fro
80.7% to 100% while the 95.0% confidence intenal the oral antibiotic levofloxacin and saline aremged from 31.9% to 80.6%; -
confidence intervals do not overlap, indicatingredrable clinical success for Microcyré®@mpared to the oral antibiotic levofloxacin. Asivic
(end of treatment), the clinical success rate fignts treated with Microcyn®lone was 77.8% compared to 61.1% for the orabinit
levofloxacin plus saline-treated patients.

Physician Clinical Studie

In addition to the Phase Il trial mentioned abaesjeral physicians and scientists have completee than 40 clinical and scientific studie:
Microcyn® Technology generating data suggesting tha technology is noirritating to healthy tissue, reduces microbialdpaccelerate
wound healing, reduces pain, shortens treatmermt éind may have the potential to reduce costs tithicege providers and patients. We
sponsored many of the physicians performing thésdies by supplying Microcyn@ased products, unrestricted research grants, g
expenses or providing honoraria. In some casesplysicians who performed these studies also hmidheld at one time, equity in ¢
Company. The studies were performed in the UnitedeS, Europe, India, Pakistan, China and Mexiad, @sed various endpoints, meth
and controls (for example, saline, antiseptics amtibiotics). These studies were not intended toidarously designed or controlled clini
trials and, as such, did not have all of the cdstrequired for clinical trials used to supportewndrug application submission to the FD¢
that they did not necessarily include blinding, damization, predefined clinical endpoints, use &Hcpbo and active control groups
U.S. Good Clinical Practice requirements.

On April 9, 2014, Oculus announced that the compamjicrocyn® NegativeRressure Wound Therapy Solution™ received a "s
consensus" rating for use with Kinetic Concepts'sn@Cl) Negative Pressure Wound Therapy withillasbn (NPWTI) as identified in tt
First International Consensus Guidelines. The diméds were published in the December 2013 issu#ofnal of Plastic and Reconstruc
Surgery. In addition to Microcyn, only one othetgation solution available in the United Statesoateceived strong consensus (greater
80% agreement of the panel) for use with NPWTi.tThraduct is a broad-spectrum, polynexanidesed antimicrobial solution. Other soluti
reviewed, including acetic acid, sodium hypochérisilver nitrate and saline, did not achieve tlaagb support necessary for a "str
consensus" rating from the group.




In many cases the physicians who led these sthdies published articles on their studies and restte following table lists publications ¢
presentations at peer-reviewed meetings from playsiovho have completed studies on the use of iyo® Technology for wound care a

wound irrigation.

Leading Physician

Country

Number

of

Patients

Publication

David E. Allie, MD (1)

Tom Wolvos, MD (2)

Cheryl Bongiovanni, PhD (3)

Luca Dalla Paola, MD (4)

Alberto Piagessi, MD (5)

Ariel Miranda, MD (5)

Lenka Veverkova, MD (3)

Elia Ricci, MD (6)

Alfredo Barrera, MD (5)

uU.S.

uU.S.

u.S.

Italy

Italy

Italy

Mexico

Czech

Republic

Italy

Mexico

40

26

218

33

40

64

27

40

40

Allie D. Super-Oxidized Dermacyn in Lower-Extremityounds. Wounds2006
18(Suppl):-6.

Wolvos TA. Advanced Wound Care with Stable, Supeidized Water. A look i
how combination therapy can optimize wound healilgounds. 2006; 1
(Suppl):1:-13.

Bongiovanni CM. Superoxidized Water Improves WouGdre Outcomes
Diabetic Patients. Diabetic Microvascular Complicas Today. 2006 May
Jun:1:-14.

Bongiovanni CM. Nonsurgical Management of Chroniouivds in Patients wi
Diabetes. Journal of Vascular Ultrasound. 20062 B§-218.

Dalla Paola L, Brocco E, Senesi A, Merico M, De ¥id, Assaloni R, DaRos
Super©Oxidized Solution (SOS) Therapy for Infected DiabeFoot Ulcers
Wounds. 2006; 18: 262-270.

Dalla Paola L. Treating diabetic foot ulcers withper-oxidized water. Wound
2006; 18(Suppl):1-16.

Goretti C, Mazzurco S, Ambrosini Nobili L, MacchiarS, Tedeschi A, Palum!
F, Scatena A, Rizzo L, Piaggesi A. Clinical Outcenuf Wide Postsurgic
Lesions in the Infected Diabetic Foot Managed Veitbifferent Local Treatme
Tegimes Compared Using a Qué&siperimental Study Design: A Prelimin
Communication. Int. J. Lower Extremity Wounds. 20622-27.

Piaggesi A et al. A Randomized Controlled TrialEgamine the Efficacy ai
Safety of Microcyn® Technology on wide pasirgical lesions in the infect
diabetic foot. Int. J. Lower Extremity Wounds. Miarg, 2010

MirandaAltamirano A. Reducing Bacterial Infectious Complions from Bur
Wounds. A look at the use of Oculus Microcyn60 iteat wounds in Mexic
Wounds. 2006; 18(Suppl):-19.

Veverkova L, Jedlicka V, Vesely M, Tejkalova R, Zahska S, Capov |, Vota
M. Methicilin-resistent Staphylococcus aureuspreblem in health care. J Wou
Healing. 2005; 2:2(-202.

Ricci E, Astolfi S, Cassino R. Clinical results ab@an antimicrobial solutic
(Dermacyn Wound Care) in the treatment of infectddonic wounds. Post
presented at: 17th Conference of the European Wlenthgement Associati
(EWMA); 2007 May :-4; Glasgow, UK

Barrera-Zavala A, Guillen-Rojas M, Escobelipzures J, Rendon J, Ayala

Gutiérrez AA. A pilot study on source control ofrppenitis with a neutral pH—

super oxidized solution. Poster presented at: W&hd Congress of tt

International Association of Surgeons and Gasteyeitgists (IASG); 2006 25
27 May; Madrid, Spair
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D. Peterson, MD

P. Steenvoorde, MD;
L.P. Van Doorn, MA;
C.E. Jacobi, PhD; and
J. Oskam, MD, PhD (<

Fermin Martinez, MD

SF Hadi, MD (3)

BT Monaghan, DPM (3)

Fernando Uribe, MD (6)

Ning Fanggang, MD (3

Amar Pal Suri, DPM (6)

Robert G. Frykberg, DPM, MPH

(6)

Matthew Regulski, DPM (5)

Adam Landsman, DPM, PhD (5
Andres A. Gutierrez, MD, PhD

(1);

and Oculus Collaborative Groug

Christopher J. Gauland, DPM. (

R.K. Chittoria

u.S.

Netherland

Mexico

Pakistan

Ireland

Mexico

China

India

uU.S.

u.S.

uU.S.

uU.S.

u.S.

India

10

45

100

10

80

20

100

23

18

48

16

20

Peterson D, Hermann K, Niezgoda J. Dermacyn Effedti Treatment of Chror
Wounds with Extensive Bioburden While Reducing Lideain Levels. Present
at: Symposium on Advanced Wound Care and Wound ifite&ociety; 200
April 28-May 1; Tampa, FL

An unexpected effect of Dermacyn on infected legerd. J Wound Care. 20!
16:60-61.

Martinez-De Jesis FR, Ramos-De la Medina A, Refneshe JM, Armstron
DG, Wu SC, Lazaro Martinez JL, Bendibntesinos JV. Efficacy and safety
neutral pH superoxidised solution in severe diabitot infections. Int Wound
2007; 4:35-362.

Hadi SF, Khalig T, Bilal N, Sikandar |, Saaiq M, [ir M, Aurangzeb ‘!
Treating infected diabetic wounds with superoxidizeater as antseptic agent:
preliminary experience. J Coll Physicians Surg . 2007; 17:74-743.

Monaghan BT, Cundell JH. Dermacyn as the Local ffmeat for Infecte
Diabetic Foot Wounds. A case series. PresenteBitlainternational Symposit
on the Diabetic Foot. 2007 Ma-12; Noordwijkerhout, The Netherlanc

Uribe F. Effect of neutral pH Superoxidized solutim the healing of diabe
foot ulcers. Poster presented at: 47th Intersci€boeference on Antimicrobi
Agents and Chemotherapy (ICAAC). Poster L-1144.728@pt 1720; Chicagc
IL.

Fanggang N, Guoan Z. The clinical efficacy of Decyma on deep parti
thickness burn wound

Suri AP. The Effectiveness of Stable Neutral Supedized Solution for th
Treatment of Infected Diabetic Foot Wounds. Presbrtt: Diabetic Foot Glok
Conference. 2008 March -15; Hollywood, CA.

Frykberg RG, Tallis A, Tierney E. Wound Healing @hronic Lower Extremit
Wounds Comparing Sup@xidized Solution (SOS) vs. Saline. Presente:
Diabetic Foot Global Conference. 2008 Marcl-15; Hollywood, CA.

Regulski M, Floros R, Petranto R, Migliori V, Alstel, Pfeiffer D. Efficacy an
Compatibility of Combination Therapy with Sup@xidized Solution and a Sk
Substitute for Lower Extremity Wounds. PresentedSgmposium on Advanc
Wound Care and Wound Healing Society. 2008 Apr-28; San Diego, CA

Landsman A, Blume P, Palladino M, Jordan D, Vay3&rHalperin G, Gutierre
AA and Oculus Collaborative Group. An Open Labdhréle Arm Study of tt
Safety and Clinical Efficacy of Topical Wound Cars. Oral Levofloxacin v.
Combined Therapy for Mild Diabetic Foot Infectiofesented at: Diabetic Fi
Global Conference. 2008 March-15; Hollywood, CA.

Gauland C. Sickle Cell Disease. Presented at: Sgimpoon Advanced Woul
Care and Wound Healing Society. 2008 Apri-28; San Diego, CA

Gauland C. Comparison of Microcyn® and Amerigethia Podiatric Clinical
Setting.

Chittoria RK, Yootla M, Sampatrao LM, Raman SV. Thé&e of super oxidized
solution in the management of diabetic foot uloem experience. Nepal Med C
J. 2007; 9:12-128.
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A.R. Anand India 50 Anand AR. Comparative Efficacy and Tolerability ©&um against Povidone lodine Topi
Application in the Postaesarean Section Wound Management. Indian MedB=ette
December 2007: 4-505.

S.B. Dharap India 30 Dharap SB, Ghag GS, Kulkarni KP, Venkatesh V. Effic and safety of Oxum in the treatn
of the venous ulcer. J Indian Med Assoc. 2008; 32¢-330.

H. Dhusia India 41 Dhusia H, Comparative Efficacy and TolerabilityMfcrocyn® Superoxidized Solution (Oxul
against Povidone lodine Application in Orodentdettions. Indian Medical Gazette. Febrt
2008; 6{-75.

M.G. Khairulasri Malaysie 178 Khairulasri MG, Ramzisham ARM, Ooi JSM, Zamrin Ddermacyn irrigation in reducit

sternotomy wound infection following coronary aytdsypass graft surgery. Presented at:
Scientific Conference. 2008. Kota Bharu, Malay

Andres Tirado-Sanche Mexico 89 Tirado-Sanchez A, Pondelivera R. Efficacy and tolerance of superoxidizemlution in th
and RosaMaria Ponce treatment of mild to moderate inflammatory acnalddble-blinded, placebo-controlled, parallel
Olivera group, randomized, clinical trial. Journal of Detolagical Treatment. 2009; 20:2-292.

(1) Indicates that the physician is, or at one time,veastockholder of our Company. The physician wias a member of our Medical &
Business Advisory Board, which we dissolved in A@@007, and served as a paid consultant and reta@search grants, expe
payments, honorarium and Micro® to complete the stud:

(2) Indicates that the physician was a paid consult@egived expenses in connection with corporateldpment and licensing evaluatit
and is, or at one time was, a holder of warranfmutghase common stock of our Compe

(3) Indicates that the physician received Micrc® to complete the stud'

(4) Indicates that the physician was a paid consultaas, a member of our Medical and Business Advi8wgrd, which we dissolved in Ap
2007, and received expense payments and Mic® to complete the stud

(5) Indicates that the physician received paymentsges@ payments and Micro@® to complete the stud

(6) Indicates that the physician received reimburseraétravel expenses and Micro® to complete the stud:

In addition to the above articles and publicati@esjeral additional papers on the basic scientieeafechnology and related clinical guidelines
have been published or have been submitted forrpe@w and publication, including:

Researchers Country Publication

P. Kim, C. Attinger, J. Steinberg, K. Evans us. & Negative-Pressure Wound Therapy with Instillation: Interoatl Consensi

B. Lehner, C. Willy, L. Lavery, T. Wolvos, | Europe  Guidelines Plast Reconstr. Surg. 2013: 132; 156815

Orgill, W. Ennis, J. Lantis, A. Gabriel, G.

Schultz

Landa-Solis C, Gonzélez-Espinosa D, Mexico Microcyn™: a novel supeoxidized water with neutral pH and disinfect
Guzman B, Snyder M, Reyes-Teran G, activity. J Hosp Infect (UK). 2005; 61: 291-299.

Torres K, Gutiérrez AA (1

Gutiérrez AA (1) uU.S. The science behind stable, superdized water. Exploring the varic
applications of sup-oxidized solutions. Wounds. 2006; 18(Supf-10.

Dalla Paola L (2), Faglia E Italy Treatment of diabetic foot ulcer: an overview. &gges for clinical approac
Current Diabetes Reviews. 2006; 2:-447.

Gonzalez-Espinosa D, Pérez-Romano L, Mexico, U.S. Effects of neutral supasxidized water on human dermal fibroblasts in vitrd
Guzman Soriano B, Arias E, Wound J. 2007; 4:241-250.
Bongiovanni, CM (3), Gutiérrez AA (1

Medina-Tamayo J, Balleza-Tapia H, Mexico, U.S. Super-oxidized water inhibits IgE-antigeimduced degranulation and cytok
Lopez X, Cid ME, release in mast cells. International Immunopharreggo 2007; 7:1013-1024.
Gonzalez-Espinosa D, Gutiérrez AA (1),

Gonzale-Espinosa (
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Le Duc Q UK A cytotoxic analysis of antiseptic medication onnsgubstitutes and autogr:
Br J Dermatology. 2007; 157:-40.

McCurdy B U.S. Emerging Innovations in Treatment. Podiatry Tod306; 194-48.

Zahumensky E Czech Infections and diabetic foot syndrome in field giee. Vnitr Lek.2006; 52:411-
Republic  416.

Rose R, Setlow B, Monroe A, Mallozzi M, uU.S. Comparison of the properties of Bacillus subtifjeiees made in liquid or on ay

Driks A, Setlow P (5 plates. Submitted 200

Paul M, Setlow B, Setlow P (5) U.S. The killing of spores oBacillus subtilisby Microcyn(TM), a stable superoxic

water. Submitted 200

Thatcher E (4), Gutierrez AA (1) uU.S. The Anti-Bacterial Efficacy of a New Sup@xidized Solution. Paper preser
at: 47th Interscience Conference on AntimicrobigleAts and Chemothere
(ICAAC). 2007 Sept 1-20; Chicago, IL

Taketa-Graham M (5), Gutierrez AA (1), U.S. The Anti-Viral Efficacy of a New Supddxidized Solution. Poster presentec
Thatcher E (4) 47th Interscience Conference on Antimicrobial Agertnd Chemothera
(ICAAC). Poster I-1144. 2007 Sept -20; Chicago, IL

Dardine J, Martinez C, Thatcher E (4) uU.S. Activity of a pH Neutral Supe®xidized Solution Against Bacteria Selected
Sodium Hypochlorite Resistance. Poster presented 4@th Interscienc
Conference on Antimicrobial Agents and Chemotherf@®@AAC). Poster L-
1144. 2007 Sept -20; Chicago, IL

Sauer K, Vazquez G, Thatcher E (4), U.S. Neutral supe-oxidized solution is effective in KkilingP. aeruginos
Northey R (5) , Gutierrez AA (1 biofilms. Biofouling. 2009 January; 25(1): -54.

(1) Dr. Gutierrez was our Director of Medical Affairacaconducted the study during his employment atGampany

(2) Dr. Dalla Paola was a member of our Medical andifss Advisory Board, which we dissolved in Aprd®, and received expel
payments and Microc® to complete the stud

(3) Indicates that investigator received Micro® to complete the stud

(4) Dr. Thatcher is a stockholder of our Company, presiy served on our board of directors, and receM&rocyr® to complete the stud

(5) Dr. Northey is our Vice President of Research aegddlopment and conducted the study during his eynpdmit at our Compan'

Sales and Marketing

We generate revenue through established and sealabimercial operations including manufacturing/iexico and the United States, sell
products in the United States through partnerscamdlirect sales force and selling products intiéonally via strategic business partners.

In the United States, we sell into acute/wound caagkets with our dedicated contract sales fotoe dermatology markets through our pai
Quinnova and into animal healthcare and overettnter wound care markets through Innovacyn. énititernational markets, we work w
partners, ranging from country specific distribstts a large pharmaceutical company to a full sergales and marketing company. The dt
of these efforts are further discussed in the falhgy sections.

Our products are primarily purchased by, amongrsth@ospitals, physicians, nurses, and other hemkthpractitioners who are the prim
caregivers to patients, both human and animal,go@rieated for acute or chronic wounds or undergauggical procedures as well as
dermatologists for treatment of various skin afitins.

We currently make Microcyn®-based human advancedndoand tissue care products available, both ascppdion and over-theeunte
products, under our eight 510(k) clearances irlthiged States.

In addition to our current product registration aagbrovals, we intend to pursue additional regmjatipprovals for human applications
Europe, China, India, Latin America, Asia, the M&ldcast and Mexico for additional Microcyn® Techwmgy-based products and plan
initiate commercialization upon obtaining theserappls.
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Advanced Wound Ca

We launched sales of Microcyn®chnology products in October 2008 and our ing&kes were in the podiatry market in the Uniteatest |1
the second quarter of 2009, we expanded our sttetseo include wound care centers, hospitalssimg homes, urgent care clinics and h
healthcare, utilizing a contract sales organizatioaid our sales force.

On August 1, 2011, we entered into a myétar licensing agreement with Eloquest Healthcare, a subsidiary of Ferndale Pharma Gr
Inc. Under this agreement, we granted EloquesttHese an exclusive license to market certain Mign®-based wound care products ur
the Microcyn®brand to hospitals, ambulatory surgical and acate centers in the United States. In March 201&hd&de/ Eloquest launche:
family of Microcyn®-based wound care products.

In January 2014, Advocos LLC, a specialty U.S. m@mitsales organization, assumed the responsifiiity Eloquest Healthcare for sale:
acute care in hospitals in addition to sales t@o#ntities for treatment of wound care. They iasesl the number of sales people to foct
wound care centers.

In collaboration with Advocos LLC, we market a féaynof Microcyn® products for advanced wound care. In January 2@&4announced tl
introduction of two new products into our advanaemlind care product line:

« An innovative advance in hypochlorous acid hydragehnology, Microcyn®Vound & Skin Spray HydroGel is how available i
three-ounce spray bottle formulation, allowing it to kesidy and conveniently sprayed directly onto theimnasite.

o Our leading product, Microcyn® Wound & Skin Cardlwpreservatives, which is proven and easysde; is now available for the fi
time in a multi-use twaunce spray bottle. The reduced bottle size allivis be used both in the clinic, as well as ecoivafty
dispensed or prescribed for pati¢ ai-home use

Dermatology

On February 14, 2011, we announced the formatioa bfoad multiyear collaboration with Amneal Enterprises. AmnEalerprises is ¢
affiliation of independent pharmaceutical marketiriscovery and development companies. As a phrthig collaboration, Quinno
Pharmaceuticals, Inc., an Amneal alliance membegn$ed, with a $500,000 prepayment and ongoindldaligit royalties, the U.S. al
Canadian rights to the MicrocyniBased dermatology atopic dermatitis hydrogel thaeived FDA clearance in February 2011. Fu
prescription dermatology products can also be $edrfor additional upfront payments. Quinnovadasles force of over 35 people, sellin
dermatologists and podiatrists with a complete ihdermatology products.

We currently derive a significant portion of ouveaues from our dermatology products, which are golpartnership with Quinnova. \

anticipate that our presence in the market willtcore to grow. Quinnova launched the Atraphh family of products formulated from c
Microcyn® Technology platform in late February 2012 partnership with Quinnova, we now market tbiofving products:

« Atrapro™ Antipruritic Hydrogel, a nooily, quick drying gel designed for the relief o&ip, burning and itching associated v
various dermatoses (pruritus), which may includgettbatment of atopic dermatitis and radiation citis.

« Atrapro™ Dermal Spray with Preservatives, a nomipic, non-irritating, and nosensitizing spray for the management
debridement of wounds such as partial- and futtkhéss wounds, post-surgical wounds, first- andrsédegree burns, and graf
and donor sites

« A convenience kit for the treatment of various datwses which packages together Quinnova’s Neosaig@&m with Proder
Technolog® and Atrapro™ Antipruritic Hydrogel, a product basedour Microcyi® Technology

Quinnova was recently acquired by Everett Laborasoinc. and it is expected the acquisition willba Everett to increase and diversify
presence in the fagtrowing U.S. dermatology market. The assignmemtusfprevious agreement with Quinnova must be amgatdoy us and
this time we are considering all of our alternasiyeior to assigning it to Everett Laboratories. In

Animal Health Care and Ov-the-Counter Wound Care for people

On January 26, 2009, we entered into a commergi@ement with VetCure, Inc., a California corparafiwhich later changed its name
Vetericyn, Inc., to market and sell our Microcyn®@sled animal health care products branded as Vigt@idNe provide Vetericyn, Inc. wi
bulk product and Vetericyn, Inc. then bottles, ayss, and sells the products. We receive a fixezuatfor each bottle of Vetericyn@old by
Vetericyn, Inc. At the time of the 2009 transactipietericyn, Inc. was whollpwned by Robert Burlingame, who was also a directayul
Company at that time. Mr. Burlingame resigned fraun board on February 10, 2010.
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On September 15, 2009, we entered a commerciatagm with V&M Industries, Inc., a California comation, to market and sell certain
our Microcyn® over-thezounter liquid and gel products. V&M Industries¢lisubsequently changed their name to Innovacyn, On June .
2010, September 1, 2010, and November 1, 2010wemded this agreement granting Innovacyn the exelught to sell certain of our over-
the-counter products. At the time of the 2009 taatisn, V&M Industries was whollpwned by Robert Burlingame, who was also a direal
our Company at that time. Mr. Burlingame resigneanf our board on February 10, 2010.

Additionally, on July 1, 2011, Vetericyn, Inc. ahthovacyn, Inc. began to share profits with usteglao the Vetericyn® and Microcyn® over-
the-counter sales, resulting in about a 30% royafltyet revenue.

In May 2014, Innovacyn notified us that over thetnvelve months, Innovacyn intends to transitionatnew supplier of product which
currently supplied by us both for animal healthecand OTC wound care. We are discussing a transitipeement with Innovacyn that cc
potentially offset the elimination of any Innovaeganerated revenue. We are also exploring the paterf a new animal health care partner.

International Sales and Marketing by Our StrategicBusiness Partners
Europe

We currently rely on exclusive agreements with ¢puspecific distributors for the sale of MicrocyAg&sed products in Europe, includ
Italy, the Netherlands, Germany, Czech Republicg@m, Spain, Norway, Switzerland, Poland, Finlaedmark and Serbia.

Peopl¢s Republic of China

On January 28, 2011, we entered into an agreemémflvanjin Ascent Import and Export Company, Ltd.distributor in China, to sell cert:
of our liquid products, which are currently soldden the product name “Microcynfi the United States, in China. Pursuant to theagen
we received a $350,000 noefundable upfront payment from the distributoréturn for exclusivity to sell these liquid prodsidor the firs
contract year. In order to maintain exclusivity Snbsequent years, the distributor will need to nmetimum purchase requirements €
contract year. The initial term of the contractoisfive years and is cancellable if certain coiis are not met.

On June 26, 2011, we entered into an agreementShigmghai Sunvic Technology Co. Ltd., a distributoChina, to sell certain of our ¢
products, which are currently sold under the prodame “Microcyn” in the United States, in the Pledp Republic of China. The initial te
of the contract is for five years and is cance#iabtertain conditions are not met.

Mexico, South and Central America, and the Carilot

On August 9, 2012, we, along with our Mexican sdiasiy and manufacturer Oculus Technologies of Mex3cA. de C.V. entered intc
License, Exclusive Distribution and Supply Agreetneith More Pharma Corporation, S. de R.L. de (=¥t a oneiime payment of $500,0(
we granted More Pharma an exclusive license, Witright to sublicense under certain conditions\aitkd our consent, to all of our propriet
rights related to certain of our pharmaceuticaldpids for human application that utilize our Micya® Technology within Mexico. For
additional ongime payment of $3,000,000, we also agreed to awpdore Pharma as the exclusive distributor ofaiarbf our products

Mexico for the term of the agreement. Additionallye granted More Pharma an exclusive license tticeof our therheld trademarks

exchange for a payment of $100,000. The term o&greement is twentfive years from the effective date of August 15120The term of tt
license agreement will automatically renew after tiventyfive year term for successive two year terms ag ms1More Pharma has materi
complied with any and all of the obligations undke license agreement, including but not limited neeeting the minimum purche
requirements set forth therein.

On August 9, 2012, we entered into an additionadament titled Exclusive Distribution and Supplyrégment with More Pharma. For a one
time payment of $1,500,000, we granted More Phagradusive ability to market and sell certain of glrarmaceutical products for hun
applications that utilize our Microcyn® Technolodgye also appointed More Pharma as our exclusiveldisor, with the right to execute sub-
distribution agreements under certain conditiors &ith our consent, within the following countriesntigua & Barbuda, Argentina, Aruba
Curacao, Bahamas, Barbados, Belize, Bolivia, Bendirazil, British Guyana, British Islands, Caymbstands, Chile, Colombia, Cul
Dominica, Dominican Republic, Ecuador, El Salvadéench Guyana, Grenada, Guadalupe, Guatemala, Haitduras, Jamaica, Martiniq
Nicaragua, Paraguay, Peru, St. Bartolome, St. Viin&eGrenades, Surinam, Trinidad & Tobago, Turk€&icos Islands, Uruguay, Venezt
and Virgin Islands.
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In May 2013, we obtained, in close collaboratiothwour partner More Pharma, new regulatory appeofad Microcyn®based antisept
products, under the brand name Microdacyim®Panama and El Salvador. More Pharma began cocatieation of these new antisef
products in both countries in the summer of 2018, @lans to continue to expand product offeringMmrocyn®-based products into the ot
countries of South and Central America, and thebbaan in the near future. In July 2013, we wesntgd a Mexican patent for the use of
novel antimicrobial surgical solution in the treatmh and prevention of peritonitis. The term of gatent expires in 2027 and will allow M
Pharma the opportunity to pursue a new drug catalidalatin America. In December 2013, More Phaais® secured regulatory approve
Mexico for our new Microcyn®&ased scar management hydrogel under the brand ofaEpmcyn™, targeting a launch date in early 20b
February 2014, More Pharma received regulatoryagbito market our Microdacyn60@mily of products in Mexico. On April 22, 2014,
announced that the first product under the Micrgd&0® Oral Care brand intended for use as an adjuncintex® in both mouth and thr
infections was commercialized under the brand nititeodacyn60™ Bucofaringeo™, and is available inxiMan pharmacies. More Phar
has also received regulatory approval to marketiarodacyn60® family of products in Honduras.

“Rest of World”

In India, we entered into an exclusive agreemettt wlkem Laboratories, a large pharmaceutical camgpa India, for the sale of Microcyn®-
based products in India and Nepal.

Throughout the rest of the world, we intend to eBategic partners and distributors who have aifsignt sales, marketing and distribut
presence in their respective countries. We havabkshed partners and distribution channels for waund care products in Banglade
Pakistan, Singapore, United Arab Emirates and Sarahia. We have also received approval to launobwa Microcyn®based medical devi
in Indonesia.

In April 2013, we announced that our Singapore ress partner, Dyamed Biotech Pte. Ltd, is init@tihe rollout of five new Microcy®
Technologybased products in Singapore and Malaysia, bothhe Hospital and consumer markets. The five produstsch includ
Dermacyn™ BabyGuard, Dermacyn DermaGuard, Derm&ymGuard Solution, Dermacyn SkinGuard Hydrogel Bradmacyn Wound Ca
Hydrogel, will be rolled out sequentially with g@lftoducts expected to be commercialized in the futare.

In April 2013, we obtained new regulatory approvaisDubai, United Arab Emirates, Kuwait, and Iragar three new Microcyn@ase!
consumer products: Face Cool™, a hydrogel for thatinent of acne and various dermatoses; Baby Coalfiydrogel for treatment of be
rash; and Lady Cool™, a feminine hygiene wash pAdiducts were launched in 2013.

NVN Therapeutics

We established a nutritional products division lie beginning of 2012 to expand our product pipelld&N Therapeutics is based oul
Petaluma, California. This division was originaliytended to develop and manufacture medical fooids a primary focus on the women’
healthcare market. However, as a result of receatlised FDA guidance regarding medical foods, asehceased production of medical fc
and we are redirecting our efforts into the devaiept and manufacture of dietary supplements ferdaime women'’s healthcare market.

Our competition in this segment is generally frotheo consumer and health care supplement manuéastu€ompetitive factors inclu
consumer advertising, formulation, packaging, gdierinnovation, intellectual property, price, aadailability of product forms. A significa
aspect of competition is the search for ingredienbvations. The introduction of new products bynpetitors, changes in medical pract
and procedures, and regulatory changes can respitoduct obsolescence. In addition, private label local manufacturers' products 1
increase competitive pressure.

Contract Testing

We also operate a microbiology contract testingiatory division that provides consulting and latory services to medical companies
design and manufacture biomedical devices and daggaell as testing on our products and poteptiadiucts. Our testing laboratory comp
with U.S. Current Good Manufacturing Practices @uility Systems Regulations.

Manufacturing and Packaging

We manufacture Microcyn® through a proprietary &lggsis process within a multhamber system. We are able to control the passf
ions through proprietary membranes, yielding etdgired water with only trace amounts of chlorindisTprocess is fundamentally differ
from the processes for manufacturing hydrogen peeoand bleach and, we believe, is the basis foitexhnologys effectiveness and safe
Our manufacturing process produces very little ejagahd any remainder is disposed of as water aftenple non-toxic chemical treatment.
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We manufacture our products at our facilities itaRena, California and Zapopan, Mexico. We haveettsped an automated manufactu
process and conduct quality assurance testing dm @aduction batch in accordance with current @&rent Good Manufacturing Practic
Our facilities are required to meet and maintaigutatory standards applicable to the manufactur@hafrmaceutical and medical de\
products. Our United States facilities are ceifeend comply with U.S. Current Good Manufacturirgdices, Quality Systems Regulati
for medical devices, and International Organization Standardization, or ISO, guidelines. Our Mexfacility has been approved by
Ministry of Health and is also I1SO certified.

Our machines are subjected to a series of tesishvig part of a validation protocol mandated by UCurrent Good Manufacturing Practic
Quality Systems Regulation, and 1SO requiremenitgs Validation is designed to ensure that the fpraduct is consistently manufacture:
accordance with product specifications at all maotufring sites. Certain materials and componergs irs manufacturing our machines
proprietary to us.

We believe we have a sufficient number of machingsroduce an adequate amount of Microcyn®neet anticipated future requirements
at least the next two years. As we expand into geegraphic markets, we may establish additionalufsturing facilities to better serve th
new markets.

Intellectual Property

Our success depends in part on our ability to absaid maintain proprietary protection for our pradiechnology and knowew, to operat
without infringing proprietary rights of others, dato prevent others from infringing our proprietaights. We seek to protect our proprie
position by, among other methods, filing, when gaes U.S. and foreign patent applications relatiogour technology, inventions &
improvements that are important to our businessals@ rely on trade secrets, know-how, continueahhological innovation, and licensing
opportunities to develop and maintain our proprietsosition.

As of June 2014, we own a total of 31 issued patertnsisting of five issued U.S. patents and 26ed foreign patents. We also have
pending U.S. and foreign patent applications thelude several PCT applications. Three of the papplications (2 U.S. applications an
PCT application) are directed to chlorogenic a€ige remaining patent applications as well as thedd patents are directed at our Micr@@yn
Technology. The issued U.S. and foreign patentgexp 2022-2027.

In addition to our own patents and applications, haee licensed technology developed in Japan meglat an electrolyzed water soluti
methods of manufacture and electrolytic cell desigmis license includes eight issued Japanesatpate

Although we work diligently to protect our technglg we can make no assurances that any patenbevibsued from our currently pend
patent applications or from future patent applwasi The scope of any patent protection may ndudgccompetitors or provide competit
advantages to us, and any of our patents may nbeloevalid if subsequently challenged, and otmeay claim rights in or ownership of «
patents and proprietary rights. Furthermore, otmeay develop products similar to our products aray ™uplicate any of our products
design around our patents.

We have also filed for trademark protection for ksaused with our Microcyn®roducts in each of the following countries: Unitgthtes
Europe, Canada, certain countries in Central andhSamerica, including Mexico and Brazil, certaiountries in the Middle East and ceri
countries in Asia, including Japan, China, the Rdipwf Korea, India and Australia. In addition patents and trademarks, we rely on t
secret and other intellectual property laws, narid&ire agreements and other measures to proteatteliectual property rights. We belie
that in order to have a competitive advantage, wistndevelop and maintain the proprietary aspecteunftechnologies. We require
employees, consultants and advisors to executeidemtiality agreements in connection with their éogment, consulting or advisc
relationship with us. We also require our employeessultants and advisors with whom we expectddkwen our products to agree to disc
and assign to us all inventions made in the coofseur working relationship with them, while usimyr property or which relate to ¢
business. Despite any measures taken to proteéht@liectual property, unauthorized parties magrapt to copy aspects of our products «
wrongfully obtain or use information that we regadproprietary.
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Competition
Dermatology

The dermatology market is highly competitive. Wdiehee, however, we have identified a lucrative miéh the industry with our developm
of products for the relief of pain, burning andhittg associated with various dermatoses, inclu@ditapic dermatitis, eczema and radia
dermatitis. Our dermatology products face compmtitin the United States from several prescriptioodpcts, including Novartis’ Elid@
Cream, a prescription medicine used on the skipidéd) to treat eczema (atopic dermatitis), andef\a$’ Protopic®,a prescription ointme
used to treat moderate to severe eczema.

Advanced Wound and Tissue Care Marl

Competition in the markets for advanced wound dsglieé care markets is intense. We compete withngbau of large, welestablished ar
well-funded companies that sell a broad range afindoand tissue care products, including topicaitiafiéctives and antibiotics, as well
some advanced wound technologies, such as skititsitdss, growth factors and sophisticated delaydelse silvebased dressings. We beli
the principal competitive factors in our target kedrare related to improved patient outcomes, saklshortened time in the hosp
accelerated healing time, lack of adverse eveafstysof products, ease of use, stability, pathdgking and cost effectiveness.

Our products compete with a variety of productsduse wound cleaning, debriding and moisteningjuding sterile saline and chlorhexadine
based products. They also compete with a large eurab prescription and over-tlemunter products for the prevention and treatméd
infections, including topical anti-infectives, suak Betadine, silver sulfadiazine, hydrogen pemxIdakins solution and hypochlorous ac
and topical antibiotics, such as Neosporin, Mupirand Bacitracin. Currently, no single aintfective product dominates the chronic or a
wound markets because many of the products haimusdimitations or tend to inhibit the wound hegliprocess.

Our products can replace the use of saline foridielgr and moistening a dressing and can be used @smplementary product with me
advanced wound care technologies, such as the VA&apy System from Kinetic Concepts Inc., skin stiie products from Smith

Nephew, Advanced BioHealing, now called Shire Regative Medicine, Integra Life Sciences, Life Celrganogenesis and Or
International, and ultrasound products from Cetlera We believe that Microcyn®@echnology can enhance the effectiveness of matiyesi
advanced wound care technologies. Because Microcim®ompetitive with some of the large wound cammpanies’ products an
complementary to others, we may compete with seampanies in some product lines and complement soietpanies in other product lines.

Animal Healthcare

The distribution and manufacture of animal heahtbdpcts is highly competitive. We compete with nuows vendors and distributors base:
customer relationships, service and delivery, pcbdelection, price and @mmerce capabilities. Manufacturers have alsosieeeheavily i
the animal health industry by developing direcesatapabilities, which has intensified competitibtust of our products are available fr
several sources, including other distributors aedders, and our customers tend to have relatioashiifn several distributors. In addition,

competitors could obtain exclusive rights to disite certain products, eliminating our ability tstdbute those products. Consolidation in
animal healthcare distribution business could tasutxisting competitors increasing their markiear®, which could give them greater pric
power, decrease our revenues and profitability,iactase the competition for customers. Our pryncampetitors in the United States incl
the following:

« Animal Health International, Inc.;

« Henry Schein, Inc;

e Innovacyn, Inc.;

« Patterson Companies, Inc.;

« other national, regional, local and specialty distiors; and
« manufacturers with direct sales capabilities.

The role of the animal health product distribut@s hchanged dramatically during the last decadecedséul distributors are increasin
providing value -added services in addition to the products theyeheaditionally provided. We believe that to remaompetitive we mu
continue to add value to the distribution chanwélile removing unnecessary costs associated wittiymt movement.
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While many companies are able to produce oxychéofarmulations, their products, unlike ours, tyfiicdbecome unstable after a relativ
short period of time or use very large ranges tdatifveness to improve their shelf lives. We badiddicrocyn® Technology is a stable anti.
infective therapeutic available, or soon to be labde, throughout many parts of the world that tseafection while also enhancing wot
healing through increased blood flow to the wouad and reduction of inflammation.

Some of our competitors in the dermatology, advdmeeund and tissue care markets and animal headthemjoy several competiti
advantages, including:

« significantly greater name recognition;

- established relationships with healthcare profesds patients and third-party payors;

« established distribution networks;

« additional product lines and the ability to offebates or bundle products to offer discounts aeritices;

o (greater experience in conducting research and oewent, manufacturing, obtaining regulatory appkofa products an
marketing; anc

« greater financial and human resources for prodexcékbpment, sales and marketing and patient support
Government Regulation

Government authorities in the United States afi¢lderal, state and local levels and foreign coeatextensively regulate, among other thi
the research, development, testing, manufactubeliteg, promotion, advertising, distribution, saimgl marketing, and import and expor
pharmaceutical products, biologics and medical asi All of our products in development will requiregulatory approval or clearance
government agencies prior to commercializatiorpanticular, human therapeutic products are sulbgedagorous preelinical and clinical trial
and other approval procedures of the FDA and simélgulatory authorities in foreign countries. \ar$ federal, state, local and foreign stai
and regulations also govern testing, manufactusafgty, labeling, storage, distribution and regaedping related to such products and
marketing. The process of obtaining these approaafs clearances, and the subsequent process ofamaig substantial compliance w
appropriate federal, state, local, and foreignus¢st and regulations, require the expenditure bbtsuntial time and financial resources
addition, statutes, rules, regulations and poliniay change and new legislation or regulations beissued that could delay such approvals.

Medical Device Regulatiol

To date, Microcyn®has received eight 510(k) clearances for use a®dical device in wound care management (cleaniefridemen
lubricating, moistening and dressing), including &ute and chronic wounds, and in dermatologyieajidns. Any future product candida
or new applications using Microcyn® that are cléisdias medical devices will require clearancetzy/EDA.

Medical devices, such as Microcyri®ound Care, are subject to FDA clearance and extemegulation under the Federal Food Drug
Cosmetic Act. Under the Federal Food Drug and Casmiet, medical devices are classified into onetluke classes: Class I, Class |
Class lll. The classification of a device into afahese three classes generally depends on theadefrisk associated with the medical de
and the extent of control needed to ensure safedyedfectiveness. Devices may also be designatethssified. Unclassified devices
legally marketed pre-amendment devices for whickaasification regulation has yet to be finalizexl dor which a prenarket approval is n
required.

Class | devices are devices for which safety afecg¥eness can be assured by adherence to a genefal controls. These general con
include compliance with the applicable portionstbé FDA's Quality System Regulation, which sets forth gaoanufacturing practic
requirements; facility registration, device listiagd product reporting of adverse medical eventghful and nomnisleading labeling; at
promotion of the device only for its cleared or aped intended uses. Class Il devices are als@suty these general controls, and any «
special controls as deemed necessary by the FDehgare the safety and effectiveness of the deiRegiew and clearance by the FDA
these devices is typically accomplished throughsth@(k) premarket notification procedure. When 510(k) cleasiscsought, a sponsor m
submit a preanarket notification demonstrating that the propodedlice is substantially equivalent to a legallyrketed device. If the FD
agrees that the proposed device is substantiallivalgnt to the predicate device, then 510(k) elrae to market will be granted. After a de'
receives 510(k) clearance, any modification thatla¢dsignificantly affect its safety or effectivese®r that would constitute a major chang
its intended use, requires a new 510(k) clearancewd require a pre-market approval.
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Clinical trials are almost always required to supgo pre-market approval application and are samesirequired for a 510(k) prearke
notification. These trials generally require sulsitia of an application for an investigational deviexemption. An investigational dev
exemption must be supported by piHcal data, such as animal and laboratory tgstasults, which show that the device is safe b it
humans and that the study protocols are sciertifisaund. The investigational device exemption trhesapproved in advance by the FDA
a specified number of patients, unless the prottudeemed a nosignificant risk device and is eligible for moreba@viated investigation
device exemption requirements.

Both before and after a medical device is commbycdistributed, manufacturers and marketers of degice have ongoing responsibili
under FDA regulations. The FDA reviews design arshufacturing practices, labeling and record keepamgl manufacturersequired repor
of adverse experiences and other information totifjepotential problems with marketed medical d&d. Device manufacturers are subje
periodic and unannounced inspection by the FDAcmmpliance with the Quality System Regulation, vahgets forth the Current Gc
Manufacturing Practice requirements that govern rttethods used in, and the facilities and contraedufor, the design, manufactt
packaging, servicing, labeling, storage, installatnd distribution of all finished medical devidgetended for human use.

FDA regulations prohibit the advertising and proimotof a medical device for any use outside thepsoof a 510(k) clearance or pmearke
approval or for unsupported safety or effectiversdasns. Although the FDA does not regulate physisi practice of medicine, the FDA dc
regulate manufacturer communications with respeofftlabel use.

If the FDA finds that a manufacturer has failedctomply with FDA laws and regulations or that a ncatlidevice is ineffective or poses
unreasonable health risk, it can institute or seakide variety of enforcement actions and remeduesging from a public warning letter
more severe actions such as:

« imposing fines, injunctions and civil penalties;
« requiring a recall or seizure of products;
« implementing operating restrictions, which canild a partial suspension or total shutdown of prduo;
« refusing requests for 510(k) clearance or pre-ntafproval of new products;
« withdrawing 510(k) clearance or pre-market appr@amdrovals already granted; and
- criminal prosecution.
The FDA also has the authority to require a comgamgpair, replace, or refund the cost of any redievice.

The FDA also administers certain controls overakport of medical devices from the United Statasingéernational sales of medical dev
that have not received FDA clearance are subjeeDi& export requirements. Additionally, each foreicpuntry subjects such medical dev
to its own regulatory requirements. In the Europgaion, a single regulatory approval process has loeeated, and approval is represente
the CE Mark.

Other Regulation in the United States
Health Care Coverage and Reimbursement by ~Party Payors

Commercial success in marketing and selling oudyets depends, in part, on the availability of addg coverage and reimbursement 1
third-party health care payors, such as governnagat private health insurers and managed care @ag@oms. Thirdparty payors al
increasingly challenging the pricing of medical ¢uots and services. Government and private sattatives to limit the growth of health c:
costs, including price regulation, competitive priz and managedare arrangements, are continuing in many couniriese we do busine:
including the United States. These changes arengatise marketplace to be more cost-conscious aodséd on the delivery of more cost
effective medical products. Government programsluting Medicare and Medicaid, private health dasurance companies, and manage
care plans control costs by limiting coverage amal amount of reimbursement for particular procesluretreatments. This has createl
increasing level of price sensitivity among custesnéor our products. Some thighrty payors also require that a favorable cove
determination be made for new or innovative meditalices or therapies before they will provide faimsement of those medical device
therapies. Even though a new medical product mag baen cleared or approved for commercial disfidbywe may find limited demand 1
the product until adequate coverage and reimbunsehave been obtained from governmental and ottiet-party payors.

18




Fraud and Abuse Law

In the United States, we are subject to variougr@dand state laws pertaining to healthcare frand abuse, which, among other thi
prohibit the offer or acceptance of remuneratidended to induce or in exchange for the purchaggarfucts or services reimbursed unc
federal healthcare program and the submissionlsé far fraudulent claims with the government. THeses include the federal AnKickback
Statute, the False Claims Act and comparable Eate These laws regulate the activities of erstitiezolved in the healthcare industry, suc
us, by limiting the kinds of financial arrangemestgh entities may have with healthcare providdie wse or recommend the use of me:
products (including for example, sales and markefirograms, advisory boards and research and édinahgrants). In addition, in order
ensure that healthcare entities comply with heatlhdaws, the Office of Inspector General of th&.UDepartment of Health and Hun
Services recommends that healthcare entities ubestiffective compliance programs. To assist in daeelopment of effective compliar
programs, the Office of Inspector General has @dsnedel Compliance Program Guidance, materials feariety of healthcare entities whi
among other things, identify practices to avoidt theay implicate the federal Ankickback Statute and other relevant laws and dest
elements of an effective compliance program. Wtdmpliance with the Compliance Program Guidanceerias is voluntary, a California le
requires pharmaceutical and devices manufactunerstiate compliance programs that incorporate@wenpliance Program Guidance and
July 2002 Pharmaceuticals Research and Manufastaféxmerica Code on Interactions with Healthcamaféssionals.

Due to the scope and breadth of the provisionsoofesof these laws, it is possible that some of pmactices might be challenged by
government under one or more of these laws indhed. Violations of these laws, which are discdss®re fully below, can lead to civil a
criminal penalties, damages, imprisonment, fings|usion from participation in Medicare, Medicaiddaother federal health care progre
and the curtailment or restructuring of our operdi Any such violations could have a material aslveeffect on our business, finan
condition, results of operations or cash flows.

Anti-Kickback LawsOur operations are subject to federal and statekahback laws. The federal Anidckback Statute prohibits persc
from knowingly and willfully soliciting, receivingoffering or providing remuneration directly or irettly to induce either the referral of
individual for a good or service reimbursed unddederal healthcare program, or the furnishingonemending, or arranging of a gooc
service, for which payment may be made under arédealthcare program, such as Medicare or MedliCeie definition of “remuneration”
has been broadly interpreted to include anythingafie, including such items as gifts, discountg, furnishing of supplies or equipme
waiver of co-payments, and providing anything atsléhan its fair market value. Because the Kitkback Statute makes illegal a wide var
of common (even beneficial) business arrangemémesQOffice of Inspector General was tasked witluiigg regulations, commonly known
“safe harbors,'that describe arrangements where the risk of illleg@auneration is minimal. As long as all of theuugements of a particul
safe harbor are strictly met, the entity engagimthat activity will not be prosecuted under thdeial AntiKickback Statute. The failure o
transaction or arrangement to fit precisely witbire or more safe harbors does not necessarily thaait is illegal or that prosecution will
pursued. However, business arrangements that dfulhptsatisfy an applicable safe harbor may resulincreased scrutiny by governm
enforcement authorities, such as the Office of éatgr General. Our agreements to pay compensaigiaurt advisory board members .
physicians who provide other services for us maguigect to challenge to the extent they do ndtwihin relevant safe harbors under s
and federal anti-kickback laws. In addition, manmgtes have adopted laws similar to the federal -Kitkback Statute which apply to 1
referral of patients for health care services reirmbd by Medicaid, and some have adopted such \éthsrespect to private insuran
Violations of the AntiKickback Statute are subject to significant finexl gpenalties and may lead to a company being eadlidon
participating in federal health care programs.

False Claims LawsThe federal False Claims Act prohibits knowinglinfy a false claim, knowingly causing the filing affalse claim, ¢
knowingly using false statements to obtain paynfemh the federal government. Under the False Claiuts such suits are known agui
tam” actions. Individuals may file suit on behalf of tgevernment and share in any amounts received déygtivernment pursuant tc
settlement. In addition, certain states have edaet@s modeled after the federal False Claims Awten the Deficit Reduction Act of 20(
where the federal government created financialritices for states to enact false claims laws ctesisvith the federal False Claims Act.
more states enact such laws, we expect the nunfilgei tam lawsuits to increase. Qui tam actionsehincreased significantly in recent ye
causing greater numbers of healthcare companibave to defend false claims actions, pay fineseoexcluded from Medicare, Medicaid
other federal or state government healthcare pnogjies a result of investigations arising out ohsactions.

HIPAA. Two federal crimes were created under the Healsarence Portability and Accountability Act of 1998, HIPAA: healthcare frat
and false statements relating to healthcare maffeshealthcare fraud statute prohibits knowiregig willfully executing a scheme to defr:
any healthcare benefit program, including privadgqgrs. The false statements statute prohibits kmgiywiand willfully falsifying, concealing «
covering up a material fact or making any mateyiédiise, fictitious or fraudulent statement in cention with the delivery of or payment
healthcare benefits, items or services.
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Health Information Privacy and Securi

Individually, identifiable health information is Bject to an array of federal and state regulatt@deral rules promulgated pursuant to HIF
regulate the use and disclosure of health infownally “covered entities.Covered entities include individual and instituébrealth car
providers from which we may receive individuallyeiifiable health information. These regulationyeym, among other things, the use
disclosure of health information for research pggsy and require the covered entity to obtain thiten authorization of the individual beft
using or disclosing health information for researf€ailure of the covered entity to obtain such autation could subject the covered entit
civil and criminal penalties. We may experienceagisland complex negotiations as we deal with eatity'ss differing interpretation of tl
regulations and what is required for compliancesocAWwhere our customers or contractors are covartties, including hospitals, universiti
physicians or clinics, we may be required by th&AdA regulations to enter into “business associageements that subject us to ce
privacy and security requirements. In addition, ynatates have laws that apply to the use and dismoof health information, and these |
could also affect the manner in which we conduat search and other aspects of our business. Satd laws are not preempted by
federal privacy law where they afford greater peiv@rotection to the individual. While activities &ssure compliance with health informa
privacy laws are a routine business practice, weeusmable to predict the extent to which our resesinmay be diverted in the event ol
investigation or enforcement action with respectuoh laws.

Foreign Regulation

Whether or not we obtain FDA approval for a prodws must obtain approval of a product by the aalie regulatory authorities of fore
countries before we can commence clinical trialsnarketing of the product in those countries. Thpraval process varies from countn
country, and the time may be longer or shorter tham required for FDA approval. The requiremerdsagning the conduct of clinical tria
product licensing, pricing and reimbursement alaopy\greatly from country to country. Although gowed by the applicable country, clini
trials conducted outside of the United States glpicare administered under a thigiease sequential process similar to that discusisede fo
pharmaceutical products.

European Union Regulatior

Medical Device Regulatior Our Dermacyn®products are classified as medical devices in thfean Union. In order to sell our med
device products within the European Union, we argiired to comply with the requirements of the MatiDevices Directive, and its natio
implementations, including affixing CE Marks on qunoducts. In order to comply with the Medical Dmas Directive, we must meet cerl
requirements relating to the safety and performasfceur products and, prior to marketing our praduave must successfully unde
verification of our product’s regulatory complian@e conformity assessment.

Medical devices are divided into three regulatdasses: Class |, Class 1IB and Class Ill. The matfrthe conformity assessment proced
depends on the regulatory class of the produabrdier to comply with the examination, we complettiong other things, a risk analysis
presented clinical data, which demonstrated thapoaducts met the performance specifications dadlitny us, provided sufficient evidence
adequate assessment of unwanted side effects amzhdirated that the benefits to the patient outivig risks associated with the device.
are subject to continued supervision and are reduiv report any serious adverse incidents to pipeopriate authorities. We are also reqt
to comply with additional national requirementsttage beyond the scope of the Medical Devices [irec

We received our CE certificate for Dermacyl®&und Care as a Class 1IB medical device in Felgr@@04 In February 2014 we received
CE certification for GramaDerm®Solution and Gramab® Hydrogel for topical treatment of mild to moderatene. We may not be able
maintain the requirements established for CE M&wksiny or all of our products or be able to pragtivese products in a timely and profit:
manner while complying with the requirements of kihedical Devices Directive and other regulatoryuiegments.

Marketing Authorizations for Drug: In order to obtain marketing approval of any af drug products in Europe, we must submit foree
an application similar to a U.S. new drug applmatio the relevant authority. In contrast to thetébh States, where the FDA is the ¢
authority that administers and approves new drygiegiions, in Europe there are multiple authositithat administer and approve tr
applications. Marketing Authorizations in Europ@eg after five years but may be renewed.

We believe that any drug candidate will be revievagdthe Committee for Medicinal Products for Humase, on behalf of the Europe
Medicines Agency. Based upon the review of the Cdtemfor Medicinal Products for Human Use, thedpgan Medicines Agency provic
an opinion to the European Commission on the safptglity and efficacy of the drug. The decisiorgtant or refuse an authorization is m
by the European Commission.

Approval of Marketing Applications can take sevarainths to several years, or may be denied. Thisogpl process can be affected by
of the same factors relating to safety, quality afftcacy as in the approval process for new drmpglieations in the United States. As in
United States, European drug regulatory authorit@ésrequire us to perform additional ndimical studies and clinical trials. The need soct
studies or trials, if imposed, may delay marketagproval and involve unanticipated costs. Inspactb clinical investigation sites by
competent authority may also be required as pathefregulatory approval procedure. In addition,aasondition of marketing approv
regulatory agencies in Europe may require moatketing surveillance to monitor for adverse dfeor other additional studies may be reqt
as deemed appropriate. The terms of any appravelliding labeling content, may be more restrictiian expected and could affect
marketability of a product. In addition, after apyal for the initial indication, further clinicatidies are usually necessary to gain approvi
any additional indications.
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European Good Manufacturing Proceln the European Union, the manufacture of pharmtaeadproducts and clinical trial supplies is sutt
to good manufacturing practice as set forth in rdevant laws and guidelines. Compliance with goawahufacturing practice is gener:
assessed by the competent regulatory authoritiesy Thay conduct inspections of relevant facilitiasd review manufacturing procedu
operating systems and personnel qualificationsaddition to obtaining approval for each productmany cases each drug manufactL
facility must be approved. Further inspections megur over the life of the product.

Mexican Regulation

The Ministry of Health is the authority in chargé sanitary controls in Mexico. Sanitary controle a group of practices related to
orientation, education, testing, verification amgbléication of security measures and sanctions éeatdy the Ministry of Health. The Minis
of Health acts by virtue of the Federal Commissionthe Protection against Sanitary Risks, or CORER a decentralized entity of 1
Ministry of Health whose mission is to protect @pulation against sanitary risks, by means ofradinéd sanitary regulations, controls ant
raising public awareness.

The Ministry of Health is responsible for the issc@ of Official Mexican Standards and specificasiéor drugs subject to the provisions of
General Health Law, which govern the process amtifipations of drugs, including the obtaining, jpeeing, manufacturing, maintainit
mixing, conditioning, packaging, handling, trandpay, distributing, storing and supplying of protikido the public at large. In addition
medical device is defined as a device that mayadordntiseptics or germicides used in surgical fmacor in the treatment of continu
solutions, skin injuries or its attachments.

Regulations applicable to medical devices and dangglivided into two sections: the business thetufactures the medical device or drug
the product itself.

Manufacturing a Medical Device or DrulUnder the General Health Law, a business that naatwies drugs is either required to obte
“Sanitary Authorization” or to file an “Operatingdtice.” Our Mexico subsidiary, Oculus Technologies of Mexi8.A. de C.V., is considere
business that manufactures medical devices andftiteris not subject to a Sanitary Authorizatiom, tather only to file an Operating Notice.

In addition to its Operating Notice, our Mexico sighary has obtained a “Good Processing Practiagsficate” issued by Mexican Fede
Commission for the Protection against Sanitary ®iskhich demonstrates that the manufacturing ofrddign® at the facility located |
Zapopan, Mexico, operates in accordance with tipdicgble official standards.

Commercialization of Drugs and Medical DevicBsugs and medical devices should be commercializeappropriate packaging contain
labels printed in accordance with specific officééndards. For medical devices, there are no fspstandards or regulations related to
labeling of the product, but rather only a geneatahdard related to the labeling for all types afdpicts to be commercialized in Mexi
Advertising of medical devices is regulated in theneral Health Law and in the specific regulatiohshe General Health Law relatec
advertising. Generally, the advertising of medidavices is subject to a permit only in the cas¢ shah advertising is directed to the ger
public.

Medical Devices and Drugs as a ProdLTo produce, sell or distribute medical devicesaaitary Registry is required in accordance witt
General Health Law and the Regulation for DrugehSegistry is granted for a term of five yearg] #nis term may be extended. The San
Registry may be revoked if the interested partysdua request the extension in the term or theymiodr the manufacturer or the raw mate
is changed without the permission of the MinisthHealth.

The Ministry of Health classifies the medical d@ddn three classes:

» Class |. Devices for which safety and effectiveness have luedy proved and are generally not used insidéoduy;

« Class Il. Devices that may vary with respect to the malteisad for its fabrication or in its concentratiamd generally used inside
the body for a period no greater than 30 days;

« Class lll. New devices or recently approved devices in thlelical practice or those used inside the body ahdhvshall remai
inside the body for a period greater than 30 d

Violation of these regulations may result in theagation of the registrations or approvals, andheatic fines. In some cases, such violat
may constitute criminal actions.

In addition, regulatory approval of prices is regdiin most countries other than the United Statdsch could result in lengthy negotiatic

delaying our ability to commercialize our produdfge face the risk that the prices which result frin@ regulatory approval process woulc
insufficient to generate an acceptable return.
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Research and Development

Research and development expense consists prinsdnilgrsonnel expenses, clinical and regulatoryises and supplies. For the years el
March 31, 2014 and 2013, research and developmgeinse amounted to $2,887,000 and $2,223,000, atdggdg. None of these expen
were borne by our customers.

Significant Customers

We rely on certain key customers for a significpattion of our revenues. At March 31, 2014 we hatlatcounts receivable of $1,790,(
Additionally, at March 31, 2014, one customer repréed 44%, one customer represented 15%, andustanter represented 12% of the
accounts receivable balance. At March 31, 2013,cos¢0mer represented 34%, one customer represe&¥dand one customer represe
15% of the net accounts receivable balance. Dutiegyear ended March 31, 2014, one customer rapeeb88%, and another custol
represented 23%, respectively, of net revenuesinBuhe year ended March 31, 2013, one customeesepted 25% and another custc
represented 13%, respectively, of net revenues.

Our Employees

As of May 24, 2014, we employed a total of 32 eryipls in the United States and the Netherlandsf 8dizh were fulltime. Additionally
we had 70 employees in Mexico, all of which weratcacted through an employment agency. We are pairty to any collective bargaini
agreements. We believe our relations with our eyg#e are good.

Available Information

Our website is located at www.oculusis.com. We makailable on our website, free of charge, copiesus annual reports on Form 1Q-
quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reportsFonm 8K and amendments to those reports, as soon asneddgoracticable after v
electronically file or furnish such materials t@tBecurities and Exchange Commission. Our webailettze information contained thereir
connected thereto are not intended to be incorpdiato this annual report on Form 10-K.

ITEM 1A. Risk Factors
Risks Related to Our Business
We have a history of losses, we expect to contitwuacur losses and we may never achieve profiteypil

We reported net income of $3,735,000 and losses fiperations of $6,051,000 for the year ended Madc014. We reported net losse
$5,431,000 and losses from operations of $3,374{@0the year ended March 31, 2013. At March 31,£2®ur accumulated deficit amoun
to $134,010,000. During the year ended March 3142@et cash used by operating activities amoutat&id,890,000. At March 31, 2014,
working capital amounted to $1,970,000. We expeatdntinue incurring losses for the foreseeablar&uand may never achieve or sus
profitability. We may need to raise additional ¢apito pursue product development initiatives angénetrate markets for the sale of
products. We believe that we have access to capisalurces through possible public or private gqaiferings, debt financings, corpor
collaborations or other means. If the economic atarin the United States does not improve or furde¢eriorates, our ability to raise additic
capital could be negatively impacted. If we arehl@do secure additional capital, we may be regluicecurtail our research and developr
initiatives and take additional measures to reduasts in order to conserve our cash in amountscgiff to sustain operations and meet
obligations. These measures could cause signifabelals in our efforts to commercialize our produntthe United States, which are critice
the realization of our business plan and to futperations.

We derive a substantial portion of our revenue froour partnership with Innovacyn and based on newnt@ct negotiations we may lo
some or all of that revenue

For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2014, approtéima23% of our total revenues were derived fromn agreement with Innovacyn, ¢
animal health care partner. In April of 2014, Inaoyn, notified us thabver the next twelve months Innovacyn will trarwitito a new suppli
of animal care products. We are discussing a tiansagreement with Innovacyn. We are actively segloew distribution channels &
locating a new animal health care partner. We ¢e@ igo assurances that we will be able to find & agaimal health care partner under te
acceptable to us, if at all. If we are unable tate new distribution channels or a new animalthezdre partner, our results of operations
financial condition may be adversely affected.
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Our strategy to separate our businesses into twblmly traded companies may have a negative impatiour business operations, operati
results and assets.

On March 26, 2014, our formerly wholtywned subsidiary, Ruthigen, Inc. closed its inigablic offering. As a result, we now own a ming
interest in Ruthigen. There are various uncertgnéind risks relating to this separation that cbalke, and in some cases have had, a ne
impact on our business operations, operating esuliassets, including: (i) the distraction of ngeraent and disruption of operations;
perceived uncertainties as to our future directitay result in increased difficulties in recruitingd retaining employees, particularly hic
qualified employees; (iii) perceived uncertaintéssto our future direction may have a negative chpa our relationships with our custom
suppliers, vendors and partners and may resuliaridss of business opportunities; (iv) the proegssompleting the separation may be t
consuming and expensive and may result in thedbbsisiness opportunities; and (v) we may not He shsuccessfully achieve the benefit
any strategic alternative undertaken by us.

The value of the shares we hold in Ruthigen maydiuate dramatically, which may affect the value @fir assets and could negatively aff
our stock price.

On March 21, 2014, our previously consolidated, Nyrowned subsidiary, Ruthigen, announced its initighliz offering which closed Mart
26, 2014. On April 10, 2014, we had a mamtrolling 43% interest in Ruthigen. As such, ouerest in Ruthigen is now reported as an ass
our financial statements rather than a consolidstddidiary. Because we own shares in a public eamphe value of this asset may flucti
and the value stated in our financial reports mange substantially over time. Given that we n@ércontrol Ruthigen, we have very i
means to control the value of the asset. If theevalf our holdings in Ruthigen decreases or fluesiat may adversely affect the value of
stock price.

The shares we own in Ruthigen are not liquid and way never be able to realize cash for the valusedd in our financials.

According to the terms of our separation agreemeatare unable to transfer any of the Ruthigeneshare own for one year following 1
initial public offering of Ruthigen without the wien consent of Ruthigen’s Board. After the g®ar lock up expires, we have agree
additional transfer restrictions that may makeffiallt to sell the shares we own in Ruthigen itiraely manner, if at all. Therefore, we may
unable to realize the value of this asset even #ftelock up period expires. Furthermore, we dap go assurance that a liquid trading me
for Ruthigen shares will develop and be sustaimetthé future and we may be unable to sell the shasown in Ruthigen for the amoun
which they are valued, if at all.

Our Company and Ruthigen may be unable to achiewens or all of the benefits that we expect to aclei¢lirough the Separation.

We have entered into certain new agreements withfawmerly wholly-owned subsidiary, Ruthigen, Inc. that govern olatienship witt
Ruthigen following the completion of Ruthigen’stial public offering. Each of these agreements {thecillary Agreements”was entered in
in the overall context of Ruthigen’s separatiomfras (the “Separation”)The effective date for the Ancillary Agreementdviarch 26, 201«
the closing date of Ruthigen’s initial public offey.

The strategic, operating and financial benefitseetgpd to result from the Separation may be delayethay never be realized at all.
instance, there can be no assurance that by sieygatia¢ businesses that either our Company or Beithwill be better positioned to capita
on future market opportunities or that either compwill be able to increase their respective shalagr value.

If we are unable to maintain compliance with the mtinued listing requirements as set forth in the N(¥®AQ Listing Rules, our commc
stock could be delisted from The NASDAQ Capital Mat, and if this were to occur, then the price afirotcommon stock, the liquidity of ot
common stock, and our ability to raise additionadgital may be adversely affected.

Our common stock is currently listed on The NASDA&@pital Market. Continued listing of a security ®he NASDAQ Capital Market
conditioned upon compliance with certain continlistihg requirements and continued listing standaget forth in the NASDAQ Listing Rul
for NASDAQ Capital Market companies. There can beassurance we will continue to satisfy the requéets for maintaining a NASDA
Capital Market listing.

If we are not able to maintain compliance with tleatinued listing standards as set forth in theddgd.isting Rules for Nasdaq Capital Mai
companies, our common stock will likely be delistesim The NASDAQ Capital Market and an associatedrdase in liquidity in the marl
for our common stock may occur. In addition, thdistieg of our common stock could materially adwdysaffect our access to the caf
markets, and any limitation on liquidity or redwctiin the price of our common stock could mateyiativersely affect our ability to ra
capital on terms acceptable to us or at all. Oatistrom The NASDAQ Capital Market could also redalthe potential loss of confidence
our business partners and suppliers, the lossstifuitional investor interest and fewer businessetigpment opportunities.
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Our inability to raise additional capital on acceghle terms in the future may causgs to curtail certain operational activities, inctling
regulatory trials, sales and marketing, and intertianal operations, in order to reduce costs and &is the business, and such inabili
would have a material adverse effect on our busimesd financial condition.

We expect capital outlays and operating expendituce increase over the next several years as wd& weorconduct regulatory tria
commercialize our products and expand our infrasine. We may need to raise additional capitakridepto, among other things:

« fund our clinical trials and preclinical studies;

« sustain commercialization of our current productaew products;

« expand our manufacturing capabilities;

« increase our sales and marketing efforts to drigeket adoption and address competitive developments

e acquire or license technologies;

« finance capital expenditures and our general andrastrative expenses; and

« develop new products.
Our present and future funding requirements wifleted on many factors, including:

« the progress and timing of our clinical trials;

« the level of research and development investmentimed to maintain and improve our technology posit

- cost of filing, prosecuting, defending and enfogcpatent claims and other intellectual propertitsg

« our efforts to acquire or license complementarjt@togies or acquire complementary businesses;

« changes in product development plans needed t@ssldny difficulties in commercialization;

« competing technological and market developmenid; an

« changes in regulatory policies or laws that aftagtoperations.
If we raise additional funds by issuing equity s@as, dilution to our stockholders will resultng equity securities issued also may provids
rights, preferences or privileges senior to thdgeotders of our common stock. If we raise addiéibfunds by issuing debt securities, these
securities would have rights, preferences and lpges senior to those of holders of our commonkstand the terms of the debt secur
issued could impose significant restrictions on operations. If we raise additional funds throughaborations or licensing arrangements
might be required to relinquish significant rigltsour technologies or products, or grant licerseserms that are not favorable to us. A fai
to obtain adequate funds may cause us to curtddineoperational activities, including regulatdrials, sales and marketing, and internati
operations, in order to reduce costs and sustaibuginess, and would have a material adverseteaffeour business and financial condition.
We do not have the necessary regulatory approvalsairket Microcyn® as a drug in the United States.
We have obtained eight 510(k) clearances in théedristates that permit us to sell Microcyb@sed products as medical devices. In Dece
2013, we announced that we had received our I&®8tk) device clearance from the FDA for our newcidcyn® Scar Manageme
HydroGel. Before we are permitted to sell Microcya® a drug in the United States, we must, amongr dkliegs, successfully comple
additional preclinical studies and well-controligahical trials, submit a new drug application keetFDA and obtain FDA approval.
The FDA approval process is expensive and uncentaduires detailed and comprehensive scientifit @her data and generally takes se
years. Despite the time and expense exerted, agpiownever guaranteed. Even if we obtain FDA apgirdo sell Microcy® as a drug, w

may not be able to successfully commercialize Mign® as a drug in the United States and may never re¢heesubstantial costs we h
invested in the development of our Microcyn®-bageatiucts.
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Delays or adverse results in clinical trials coutdsult in increased costs to 1and could delay our ability to generate revenue.

Clinical trials can be long and expensive, and dhtcome of clinical trials is uncertain and subjezrtdelays. It may take several year
complete clinical trials, if at all, and a prodwandidate may fail at any stage of the clinicaltgrocess. The length of time required ve
substantially according to the type, complexityyety and intended use of the product candidateerim results of a preclinical study
clinical trial do not necessarily predict final véts, and acceptable results in preclinical studiesarly clinical trials may not be repeatabl
later subsequent clinical trials. The commencemeribmpletion of any of our clinical trials may telayed or halted for a variety of reas:
including the following:

« insufficient funds to continue our clinical trials;

« changes in the FDA requirements for approval, idicig requirements for testing efficacy and safety;

» delay in obtaining or failure to obtain FDA or othliegulatory authority approval of a clinical trjaotocol;
- patients not enrolling in clinical trials at theeave expect;

« delays in reaching agreement on acceptable clitiighlagreement terms with prospective sites;

« delays in obtaining institutional review board apgal to conduct a study at a prospective site;

« third party clinical investigators not performingreclinical trials on our anticipated schedule erfprmance is not consistent with
clinical trial protocol and good clinical practices the third party organizations not performirggadcollection and analysis in a tim
or accurate manner; a

- changes in governmental regulations or adminisgadctions.

We do not know whether future clinical trials wilemonstrate safety and efficacy sufficiently toutei additional FDA approvals. While
number of physicians have conducted clinical stud®sessing the safety and efficacy of Microcyo®various indications, the data from th
studies are not sufficient to support approval @mgcyn® as a drug in the United States.

Clinical trials involve a lengthy and expensive mmess with an uncertain outcome, and results of @arlstudies and trials may not |
predictive of future trial results

The results of preclinical studies and early chhitrials of new drugs do not necessarily prediet tesults of latestage clinical trials. Tt
design of our clinical trials is based on many agsiions about the expected effects of our prodaadiates, and if those assumptions
incorrect, the trials may not produce statisticallynificant results. Preliminary results may netdonfirmed upon full analysis of the deta
results of an early clinical trial. Product candetain later stages of clinical trials may failgbow safety and efficacy sufficient to sup
intended use claims despite having progressed ghramitial clinical testing. The data collected frcclinical trials of our product candida
may not be sufficient to obtain regulatory approiralthe United States or elsewhere. Because ofutfeertainties associated with d
development and regulatory approval, we cannotrohéte if or when we will have an approved produatdommercialization or achieve s¢
or profits.

If we fail to obtain, or experience significant d&ys in obtaining, additionaregulatory clearances or approvals to market ourrcent or
future products, we mabe unable to commercialize these products.

The developing, testing, manufacturing, marketing aelling of medical technology products are sttbje extensive regulation by numer
governmental authorities in the United States atidtrocountries. The process of obtaining regulatdearance and approval of med
technology products is costly and time consuminger&though their underlying product formulationsyniie the same or similar, our prodt
are subject to different regulations and approvat@sses depending upon their intended use.

To obtain regulatory approval of our products aggdrin the United States, we must first show thatppoducts are safe and effective for ts
indications through preclinical studies (laboratand animal testing) and clinical trials (humartitey. The FDA generally clears marketing

a medical device through the 510(k) pnerket clearance process if it is demonstratedhétve product has the same intended use and the
or similar technological characteristics as anotbgally marketed Class Il device, such as a deafic@ady cleared by the FDA through the 51
(k) premarket notification process, and otherwiseta the FDAs requirements. Product modifications, includingeling the product for a ne
intended use, may require the submission of a k3 clearance and FDA approval before the madiifieoduct can be marketed.

The outcomes of clinical trials are inherently utaia. In addition, we do not know whether the reseey approvals or clearances will
granted or delayed for future products. The FDAldoaquest additional information, changes to pobdarmulation(s) or clinical testing tt
could adversely affect the time to market and e&lgroducts as drugs. If we do not obtain the reitgiregulatory clearances and approvals
will be unable to commercialize our products asgdror devices and may never recover any of thetaotial costs we have invested in
development of Microcyn®.
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Distribution of our products outside the United t8¢ais subject to extensive government regulatibimese regulations, including 1
requirements for approvals or clearance to matkettime required for regulatory review and thecsiams imposed for violations, vary frc
country to country. We do not know whether we wititain regulatory approvals in such countries at tlie will not be required to inc
significant costs in obtaining or maintaining thesgulatory approvals. In addition, the export lsyofi certain of our products that have not
been cleared for domestic commercial distributicayrbe subject to FDA export restrictions. Failuweobtain necessary regulatory approy
the restriction, suspension or revocation of exgstpprovals or any other failure to comply witgukatory requirements would have a mat
adverse effect on our future business, financiatlt@mn, and results of operations.

We have established a nutritional products divisiander the name NVN Therapeutics, and if the prodsieve create in our new division &
not accepted by the marketplace, we may cease dpesain this division.

We established a nutritional products division urttie name Napa Valley Nutritionals in the begimnaf 2012 to expand our product pipel
The name of the division was subsequently changedMN Therapeutics. This division was originallyténded to develop and manufac
medical foods with a primary focus on the wonsenéalthcare market. However, as a result of rgcestised FDA guidance regarding med
foods, we have ceased production of medical foaus \me are redirecting our efforts into the develepimand manufacture of diet:
supplements for this same wometiealthcare market. If we cannot generate sufficievenues from the sale of such products, we ceag
operations in this nutritional products division. dddition, the introduction of new products by gatitors, changes in medical practices
procedures, and regulatory changes can resulbuhugt obsolescence.

If our products do not gain market acceptance, dumsiness will suffer because vmight not be able to fund future operations.
A number of factors may affect the market accepmarfour products or any other products we devetagcquire, including, among others:
® the price of our products relative to other produdot the same or similar treatment

* the perception by patients, physicians and othenibees of the healthcare community of the effectassnand safety of our prodi
for their indicated applications and treatmen

® changes in practice guidelines and the standacdreffor the targeted indicatior
® our ability to fund our sales and marketing effpatisd
* the effectiveness of our sales and marketing efforiour partne’ sales and marketing effor

Our ability to effectively promote and sell any apyged products will also depend on pricing and -&ffdctiveness, including our ability
produce a product at a competitive price and oilityatp obtain sufficient thirdparty coverage or reimbursement, if any. In addijtmur effort
to educate the medical community on the benefitsuofproduct candidates may require significanbueses, may be constrained by FDA 1
and policies on product promotion, and may nevesuxxessful. If our products do not gain markeeptance, we may not be able to f
future operations, including developing, testingl abtaining regulatory approval for new product didates and expanding our sales
marketing efforts for our approved products, whighuld cause our business to suffer.

If our competitors develop products similar to Mimcyn ® , we may need to modify alter our business strategy, which may delay
achievement of our goals.

Competitors may develop products with similar chteastics to Microcyn®Such similar products marketed by larger competitam hinde
our efforts to penetrate the market. As a resudtpvay be forced to modify or alter our businessragailatory strategy and sales and mark
plans, as a response to changes in the market,atitioyp and technology limitations, among otherscls modifications may pose additio
delays in achieving our goals.

We depend on third parties and intend to continue license or collaborate with third parties in varis potential marketsand event
involving these strategic partners or any futurelt@boration could delay or prevent us from develogior commercializing products.

Our business strategy and our short- and kengr operating results depend in part on our ghititexecute on existing strategic collaborat
and to license or partner with new strategic pastr@/e believe collaborations allow us to leverageresources and technologies and to a
markets that are compatible with our own core ardaexpertise while avoiding the cost of establighor maintaining a direct sales forct
each market. We may incur significant costs in tise of third parties to identify and assist in klshing relationships with potent
collaborators. We currently have a small direcesdbrce which sells our products in the wound @aré@ womers health markets, and
intend to slowly expand the geographical coverdgmiodirect sales force.
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To penetrate our target markets, we may need terento additional collaborative agreements to sis@ the development a
commercialization of products. For example, depegdipon our analysis of the time and expense imgbla obtaining FDA approval to se
product to treat open wounds, we may choose tadie@ur technology to a third party as opposedutsying commercialization ourselv
Establishing strategic collaborations is difficehd timeeonsuming. Potential collaborators may reject twtations based upon th
assessment of our financial, regulatory or intéllatproperty position and our internal capabiditi®ur discussions with potential collabora
may not lead to the establishment of new collalb@naton favorable terms and may have the potetttiplovide collaborators with acces:
our key intellectual property filings and next geat®n formations. We have limited control over #mmount and timing of resources that
current collaborators or any future collaboratoggate to our collaborations or potential productsese collaborators may breach or termi
their agreements with us or otherwise fail to cartdheir collaborative activities successfully anda timely manner. Further, our collabora
may not develop or commercialize products thateanist of our collaborative arrangements or devaféicgent resources to the developm
manufacture, marketing or sale of these productserBering into collaboration, we may preclude apyaties to collaborate with other th
parties who do not wish to associate with our @xgsthird party strategic partners. Moreover, ie #went of termination of a collaborat
agreement, termination negotiations may resukss favorable terms.

If we are unable to expand our direct domestic saferce, we may not be able to successfully setlmoducts in the United State:

We currently use a direct sales force to sell godpcts in the wound care and wongehkalth markets, while we have established paathipe
to commercialize our products in the animal healteand dermatology markets. Expanding our salee fie expensive and time consum
and the lack of qualified sales personnel coul@yler limit the success of our product launch ia thnited States. Our domestic sales for¢
established, will be competing with the sales ofi@na of our competitors, which are better fundad enore experienced. We may not be
to develop domestic sales capacity on a timelyshasiat all.

Our dependence on a commission-based sales forak distributors for sales could limit or prevent deom selling our products and fror
realizing long-term revenue growth.

We currently depend on a commission-based sales ford distributors to sell Microcyni® the United States, Europe and other countried
intend to continue to sell our products primarilyaugh a commissiobased sales force and distributors in Europe amdUttited States for tl
foreseeable future. If we are unable to expanddoect sales force, we will continue to rely onamenissionbased sales force and distribu
to sell Microcyn®. Our existing commission-basetesdorce and distribution agreements are geneshiyrtterm in duration, and we m
need to pursue alternate partners if the otheigsard these agreements terminate or elect nartew their agreements. If we are unab
retain our current commissidiased sales force and distributors for any reagermust replace them with alternate salespeoplelemtidbutor:
experienced in supplying the wound care marketchvitiould be time-consuming and divert managemeaittention from other operatio
matters. In addition, we will need to attract aubahial distributors to expand the geographic areashich we sell Microcyn®Distributors ma
not commit the necessary resources to market dhdweproducts to the level of our expectationsiiein could harm our ability to gener
revenues. In addition, some of our distributors ralgp sell products that compete with ours. In somtries, regulatory licenses must be
by residents of the country. For example, the @guy approval for one of our products in Indiaigned and held by our Indian distributol
the licenses are not in our name or under our chnte might not have the power to ensure theiroomg effectiveness and use by us. If cur
or future distributors do not perform adequatelyywe are unable to locate distributors in particgi@ographic areas, we may not realize lon
term revenue growth.

If we fail to comply with ongoing regulatory requements, or if we experiencunanticipated problems with our products, these gumts
could be subject to restrictions or withdrawal frothe market.

Regulatory approvals or clearances that we cugrdrale and that we may receive in the future abgestito limitations on the indicated u
for which the products may be marketed, and anyréutipprovals could contain requirements for pantcostly post-marketing follovuyp
studies. If the FDA determines that our promotiomaterials or activities constitute promotion of @mapproved use or we otherwise fa
comply with FDA regulations, we may be subjectagulatory enforcement actions, including warninteks, injunctions, seizures, civil fir
or criminal penalties. In addition, the manufaatgrilabeling, packaging, adverse event reportitayjrgy, advertising, promoting, distributi
and recorckeeping for approved products are subject to ektenggulation. Our manufacturing facilities, preses and specifications
subject to periodic inspection by the FDA, Europesm other regulatory authorities and from timetitoe, we may receive notices
deficiencies from these agencies as a result ol smgpections. Our failure to continue to meet taguy standards or to remedy
deficiencies could result in restrictions being aspd on our products or manufacturing processass fisuspension or loss of regula
approvals or clearances, product recalls, terminati distribution, product seizures or the neetht@st substantial resources to comply
various existing and new requirements. In the negmegious cases, criminal sanctions, civil pergliitsgorgement of profits or closure of
manufacturing facilities are possible. The subsatjdescovery of previously unknown problems withdiicyn®,including adverse events
unanticipated severity or frequency, may resutestrictions on the marketing of our products, eadld include voluntary or mandatory re:
or withdrawal of products from the market.
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New government regulations may be enacted and elsamgFDA policies and regulations and, their iptetation and enforcement, co
prevent or delay regulatory approval of our produi¥e cannot predict the likelihood, nature or Bktef adverse government regulation
may arise from future legislation or administrataetion, either in the United States or abroad.r@foee, we do not know whether we will
able to continue to comply with any regulationstluait the costs of such compliance will not have a&emal adverse effect on our fut
business, financial condition, and results of ofiena. If we are not able to maintain regulatorynpliance, we will not be permitted to mat
our products and our business would suffer.

We may experience difficulties in manufacturing Miocyn ® , which could prevent us from commercializing onemore of our products.

The machines used to manufacture our Microcyra®ed products are complex, use complicated saftaad must be monitored by hig
trained engineers. Slight deviations anywhere inroanufacturing process, including quality conttabeling and packaging, could lead
failure to meet the specifications required by Bi2A, the Environmental Protection Agency, Europd&otified Bodies, Mexican regulatc
agencies and other foreign regulatory bodies, whely result in lot failures or product recallswié are unable to obtain quality internal
external components, mechanical and electricakp#drbur software contains defects or is corruptadif we are unable to attract and re
qualified technicians to manufacture our produocis; manufacturing output of Microcyn®r any other product candidate based or
platform that we may develop, could fail to meeguieed standards, our regulatory approvals coulddé@yed, denied or revoked, i
commercialization of one or more of our Microcyiti®sed products may be delayed or foregone. Manufagtprocesses that are use
produce the smaller quantities of Microcym®eded for clinical tests and current commercilssmay not be successfully scaled up to ¢
production of significant commercial quantities. yAfailure to manufacture our products to requirtghdards on a commercial scale ci
result in reduced revenues, delays in generativgntee and increased costs.

Our competitive position depends on our abilitygootect our intellectual property and our proprietatechnologies.

Our ability to compete and to achieve and mainfaiofitability depends on our ability to protect oimtellectual property and propriet:
technologies. We currently rely on a combinationpafents, patent applications, trademarks, tradeeséaws, confidentiality agreemel
license agreements and invention assignment agrasnueprotect our intellectual property rights. Wlso rely upon unpatented kndwew anc
continuing technological innovation to develop andintain our competitive position. These measurag not be adequate to safeguard
Microcyn® Technology.

We also have agreed to certain prohibitions onimteflectual property. Pursuant to the License 8ogdply Agreement we entered into with
subsidiary, Ruthigen, Inc., we agreed to exclugilieense certain of our proprietary technologyRiathigen to enable Ruthigentesearch ai
development and commercialization of the newly @igced RUT580, and any improvements to it, in the United Sta€@anada, Europe
Union and Japan for certain invasive procedurdsuiman treatment as defined in the License and $ubpgieement. Under the terms of
agreement, we are also prohibited from using ttenked proprietary technology to sell products toatpete with Ruthiges’products withi
the defined territory. Such agreement will takeseffas of the closing date of Ruthigemiitial public offering, if any should occur. addition
we granted a security interest in our assets, dikajucertain intellectual property under specificcemstances, under a loan and sec
agreement. If we do not protect our rights adedyatieird parties could use our technology, and @itity to compete in the market would
reduced.

Although we have filed several U.S. and foreigrepagpplications related to our Microcyr#@sed products, the manufacturing technolog
making the products, and their uses, only five p&ents have been issued from these applicatodate.

Our pending patent applications and any patentiggfmns we may file in the future may not resultissued patents, and we do not k
whether any of our iticensed patents or any additional patents thahtmidfimately be issued by the U.S. Patent and @maadk Office a
foreign regulatory body will protect our Microcyn®echnology. Any claims that are issued may not Uficiently broad to prevent thi
parties from producing competing substitutes ang b®infringed, designed around, or invalidatecdttiyd parties. Even issued patents |
later be found to be invalid, or may be modifiedr@voked in proceedings instituted by third parbeore various patent offices or in cot
For example, our European patent that was initiséped on May 30, 2007 was revoked by the Opposiiivision of the European Pat
Office in December 2009 following opposition prodiags instituted by a competitor.

The degree of future protection for our proprietaghts is more uncertain in part because legalnmiedford only limited protection and n
not adequately protect our rights, and we will betable to ensure that:

- we were the first to invent the inventions desdaibepatent applications;
« we were the first to file patent applications foventions;
« others will not independently develop similar oreatative technologies or duplicate our productheit infringing our intellectu

property rights

28




« any patents licensed or issued to us will proviglevith any competitive advantages;
« we will develop proprietary technologies that as¢eptable; or
« the patents of others will not have an adversecetfa our ability to do business.

The policies we use to protect our trade secrets moa be effective in preventing misappropriatidroar trade secrets by others. In addit
confidentiality and invention assignment agreemexiscuted by our employees, consultants and advisay not be enforceable or may
provide meaningful protection for our trade secmt®ther proprietary information in the event ofauthorized use or disclosures. We ca
be certain that the steps we have taken will prethen misappropriation and use of our intellectoraperty in the United States, or in fore
countries where the laws may not protect our petary rights as fully as in the United States.

We may face intellectual property infringement afas that could be time-consumingiostly to defend and could result in our loss
significant rights and, in the casof patent infringement claims, the assessment @ftie damages.

On occasion, we may receive notices of claims fifnigement, misappropriation or misuse of othertipar proprietary rights. We may hs
disputes regarding intellectual property rightshwtite parties that have licensed those rights taMes may also initiate claims to defend
intellectual property. Intellectual property litiian, regardless of its outcome, is expensive and-tonsuming, and could divert management
attention from our business and have a materiathageffect on our business, operating resulfinancial condition. In addition, the outco
of such litigation may be unpredictable. If theseaisuccessful claim of infringement against usmag be required to pay substantial dam
(including treble damages if we were to be foundhawe willfully infringed a third party patent) to the party claiming infringement, dey
nondinfringing technology, stop selling our productsusing technology that contains the allegedly ntfimg intellectual property or enter il
royalty or license agreements that may not be abiglon acceptable or commercially practical teriinaf all. Our failure to develop non-
infringing technologies or license the proprietaights on a timely basis could harm our businessaddition, modifying our products
exclude infringing technologies could require us¢éek reapproval or clearance from various regulatory bedas our products, which wot
be costly and time consuming. Also, we may be umewsd pending patent applications that relate to @chnology. Parties maki
infringement claims on future issued patents mayable to obtain an injunction that would preventfisn selling our products or usi
technology that contains the allegedly infringintgllectual property, which could harm our business

Our ability to generate revenue will be diminishéfdwe are unable to obtairacceptable prices or an adequate level of reimbunsat fronr
third-party payors of health care costs.

The continuing efforts of governmental and otherdtparty payors, including managed care organizatismsh as health maintena
organizations, or HMOs, to contain or reduce co$tiealth care may affect our future revenue arditpbility, and the future revenue ¢
profitability of our potential customers, supplieasd collaborative or license partners and thelalvitity of capital. For example, in cert:
foreign markets, pricing or profitability of pregaion pharmaceuticals is subject to governmentrobnin the United States, governmental
private payors have limited the growth of healtheceosts through price regulation or controls, cetitipe pricing programs and drug rek
programs. Our ability to commercialize our produstgcessfully will depend in part on the extentwhbich appropriate coverage ¢
reimbursement levels for the cost of our Microcyp®ducts and related treatment are obtained fromemonental authorities, private hei
insurers and other organizations, such as HMOs.

There is significant uncertainty concerning thiay coverage and reimbursement of newly approvedical products and drugs. Thipaxty
payors are increasingly challenging the prices gidwrfor medical products and services. Also, teedrtoward managed healthcare in
United States and the concurrent growth of orgaioiza such as HMOs, as well as legislative promosalreform healthcare or red
government insurance programs, may result in Iguvires for or rejection of our products. The casttainment measures that health
payors and providers are instituting and the efééeny healthcare reform could materially and aslely affect our ability to generate reven:

In addition, given ongoing federal and state gonent initiatives directed at lowering the total ttoEhealth care, the United States Cong
and state legislatures will likely continue to fgcon health care reform, lowering the cost of pipdon pharmaceuticals and Medicare
Medicaid payment systems reform. While we cannatdigt whether any proposed castatainment measures will be adopted,
announcement or adoption of these proposals cedigce the price that we receive for our Microcym@&duicts in the future.

We could be required to indemnify third parties fatleged infringement, which could cause us to incsignificant costs.
Some of our distribution agreements contain comuiitis to indemnify our distributors against lialyilgrising from infringement of third pa
intellectual property such as patents. We may Qaired to indemnify our customers for claims madaimast them or contribute to license 1

they are required to pay. If we are forced to indéynfor claims or to pay license fees, our busthesd financial condition could
substantially harmed.
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A significant part of our business is conducted side of the United Statelexposing us to additional risks that may not existthe Unitec
States, which irturn could cause our business and operating resutissuffer.

We have material international operations in Mexdrml Europe. During the years ended March 31, 2042013, approximately 43% ¢
53% of our total revenues respectively were gerdréiiom sales outside of the United States. Ouinkess is highly regulated for the L
marketing and manufacturing of our Microcyi@sed products both domestically and internatign&lur international operations are suk
to risks, including:

« local political or economic instability;

« changes in governmental regulation;

« changes in import/export duties;

- trade restrictions;

« lack of experience in foreign markets;

« difficulties and costs of staffing and managingragiens in certain foreign countries;
« work stoppages or other changes in labor conditions

« difficulties in collecting accounts receivablesatimely basis or at all; and

« adverse tax consequences or overlapping tax stasctu

We plan to continue to market and sell our prodirdernationally to respond to customer requirersemtd market opportunities. We curre
have international manufacturing facilities in Mexiand the United States. Establishing operatioreniy foreign country or region prese
risks such as those described above as well asspgcific to the particular country or regionalidition, until a payment history is establis
over time with customers in a new geographic araggion, the likelihood of collecting receivablgsnerated by such operations could be
than our expectations. As a result, there is atgrek that the reserves set with respect tactliection of such receivables may be inadeq
If our operations in any foreign country are un&ssful, we could incur significant losses and wg mat achieve profitability.

In addition, changes in policies or laws of the tddiStates or foreign governments resulting in, rgnather things, changes in regulations
the approval process, higher taxation, currencyersion limitations, restrictions on fund transfersthe expropriation of private enterpri:
could reduce the anticipated benefits of our iradamal expansion. If we fail to realize the argatied revenue growth of our fut
international operations, our business and operaésults could suffer.

Our sales in international markets subject us taréign currency exchange and other risks and costsiet could harm our business.

A substantial portion of our revenues are derivedhfoutside the United States; primarily from Mexand Europe. We anticipate that revel
from international customers will continue to reg@mt a substantial portion of our revenues forftiieseeable future. Because we gen
revenues in foreign currencies, we are subjedtdceffects of exchange rate fluctuations. The fonel currency of our Mexican subsidian
the Mexican Peso and the functional currency of Matherlands subsidiary is the Euro. For the prpar of our consolidated financ
statements, the financial results of our foreighsidiaries are translated into U.S. dollars usimgrage exchange rates during the applic
period. If the U.S. dollar appreciates against bhexican Peso or the Euro, as applicable, the ree®mwe recognize from sales by
subsidiaries will be adversely impacted. Foreignhexge gains or losses as a result of exchangdluateations in any given period co
harm our operating results and negatively impactrevuenues. Additionally, if the effective price @fir products were to increase as a resi
fluctuations in foreign currency exchange ratesnated for our products could decline and adverséfigctaour results of operations ¢
financial condition.

We rely on a number of key customers who may nonsistently purchase our products in the future aritiwe lose any one of the
customers, our revenues may decline.

Although we have a significant number of custoniermsach of the geographic markets that we openatee rely on certain key customers fi
significant portion of our revenues. During the iyeaded March 31, 2014, one customer representés] 88d another customer represe
23% of net revenues. During the year ended Mati¢t2813, one customer represented 25%, and anotistsmer represented 13% of
revenues. In the future, a small number of custemeay continue to represent a significant portibouwr total revenues in any given peri
These customers may not consistently purchaserodupts at a particular rate over any subsequertcerlhe loss of any of these custon
could adversely affect our revenues.

30




Negative economic conditions increase the risk tha could suffer unrecoverable losses on our custos’ accounts receivable which wot
adversely affect our financial results.

We grant credit to our business customers, whiehpaimarily located in Mexico, Europe and the Uditetates. Collateral is generally
required for trade receivables. We maintain allowes for potential credit losses. At March 31, 20dde customer represented 44%,
customer represented 15%, and one customer repeds&B% of the net accounts receivable balanceMaitch 31, 2013, one custor
represented 34%, one customer represented 26%grendustomer represented 15% of the net accoures/able balance. While we belie
we have a varied customer base and have experiesticed) collections in the past, if current ecormeonditions disproportionately imp.
any one of our key customers, including reductiortheir purchasing commitments to us or theirigbtb pay their obligations, it could hav
material adverse effect on our revenues and liuiiVe have not purchased insurance on our accoecgsvable balances.

The loss of key members of our senior managemeatiteany of our directors, or our highly skilled smitists, technicians and salespec
could adversely affect our business.

Our success depends largely on the skills, expegiemd performance of key members of our executiaeagement team, including .
Schutz, our Chief Executive Officer and Robert Next, our Vice President of Research and Developnidm efforts of these people will
critical to us as we continue to develop our prasland attempt to commercialize products in thernwoand skin care markets. If we wer
lose one or more of these individuals, we mightegigmce difficulties in competing effectively, démging our technologies and implement
our business strategies.

Our research and development programs depend oabdity to attract and retain highly skilled sciists and technicians. We may not be
to attract or retain qualified scientists and teciams in the future due to the intense competition qualified personnel among med
technology businesses, particularly in the Sandisan Bay Area. We also face competition from ursitees and public and private rese
institutions in recruiting and retaining highly djfiad personnel. In addition, our success dependsur ability to attract and retain salespe
with extensive experience in wound care and clet&ionships with the medical community, includplgysicians and other medical staff.
may have difficulties locating, recruiting or retaig qualified salespeople, which could cause aydel decline in the rate of adoption of
products. If we are not able to attract and reth@necessary personnel to accomplish our busoigestives, we may experience constre
that will adversely affect our ability to supporraesearch, development and sales programs.

The dermatology, wound and skin care industries drighly competitive and subject to rapid technologl change. If our competitors au
better able to develop and market products that Ergs expensive or more effective than any produbtt we may develop, o@ommercia
opportunity will be reduced or eliminated.
Our success depends, in part, upon our abilityap at the forefront of technological change andnitaén a competitive position. We comp
with large healthcare, pharmaceutical and bioteldgyo companies, along with smaller or eastgge companies that have collabor:
arrangements with larger pharmaceutical comparaeademic institutions, government agencies andr gpiblic and private reseal
organizations. Many of our competitors have sigaffitly greater financial resources and expertisesearch and development, manufactu
pre<linical testing, conducting clinical trials, olnéng regulatory approvals and marketing approveztipets than we do. Our competit
may:

« develop and patent processes or products eardiantte will;

« develop and commercialize products that are legsresive or more efficient than any products thatwes develop;

« Obtain regulatory approvals for competing produmtse rapidly than we will; and

- improve upon existing technological approachesawetbp new or different approaches that rendeteximnology or products obsol
or nor-competitive.

As a result, we may not be able to successfullymengialize any future products.
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The success of our research and development efforéy depend on our ability to finduitable collaborators to fully exploit our capalties.
If we are unable tcestablish collaborations or if these future collataiions are unsuccessful, ouresearch and development efforts may
unsuccessful, which could adversely affect our réiswof operations and financial condition.

An important element of our business strategy léllto enter into collaborative or license arrangasiender which we license our Micro®n
Technology to other parties for development androencialization. We expect to seek collaboratorsdiar drug candidates and for a nun
of our potential products because of the experféert @end expertise required to conduct additiodatical trials and further develop thc
potential product candidates. Because collaboraticangements are complex to negotiate, we mapengticcessful in our attempts to estal
these arrangements. If we need third party assistanidentifying and negotiating one or more atakle arrangements, it might be cos
Also, we may not have products that are desirablether parties, or we may be unwilling to licerss@otential product because the p
interested in it is a competitor. The terms of amangements that we establish may not be favotahis. Alternatively, potential collaborat
may decide against entering into an agreement wgthbecause of our financial, regulatory or intellat property position or for scientif
commercial or other reasons. If we are not ablestablish collaborative agreements, we may notble ta develop and commercialize r
products, which would adversely affect our busireas® our revenues.

In order for any of these collaboration or licemseingements to be successful, we must first ifyeptitential collaborators or licensees wk
capabilities complement and integrate well withsoMe may rely on these arrangements for not angntial resources, but also for expel
or economies of scale that we expect to need irfuthee relating to clinical trials, manufacturinggles and marketing, and for license
technology rights. However, it is likely that wellwiot be able to control the amount and timingesources that our collaborators or licen
devote to our programs or potential products. if callaborators or licensees prove difficult to wavith, are less skilled than we origine
expected, or do not devote adequate resourcestpridgram, the relationship will not be succesdfuh business combination involving
collaborator or licensee and a third party weredour, the effect could be to diminish, terminateause delays in development of a pote
product.

If we are unable to comply with broad and compleaderal and state fraud and abudaws, including state and federal ankickback laws
we could face substantial penalties and our prodaicbuld be excluded from government healthcare pags.

We are subject to various federal and state lawtaipeéng to healthcare fraud and abuse, which mhejuamong other things, “anti-kickback”
laws that prohibit payments to induce the refeofaproducts and services, and “false clairs&itutes that prohibit the fraudulent billing
federal healthcare programs. Our operations areciutn the Federal Antdckback Statute, a criminal statute that, subjeatertain statuto
exceptions, prohibits any person from knowingly avitifully offering, paying, soliciting or receivigp remuneration, directly or indirectly,
induce or reward a person either (i) for referramgindividual for the furnishing of items or sem#cfor which payment may be made in wl
or in part by a government healthcare program asiMedicare or Medicaid, or (ii) for purchasingading, ordering or arranging for
recommending the purchasing, leasing or orderingroftem or service for which payment may be maddeu a government healthc
program. Because of the breadth of the federatlatitback statute, the Office of Inspector Generfathe U.S. Department of Health ¢
Human Services, was authorized to adopt regulasetting forth additional exceptions to the protidsis of the statute commonly knowr
“safe harbors.'If all of the elements of an applicable safe hardu@r fully satisfied, an arrangement will not béjsat to prosecution under
federal anti-kickback statute.

In addition, if there is a change in law, regulatar administrative or judicial interpretationstbése laws, we may have to change our bus
practices or our existing business practices ctlcchallenged as unlawful, which could have a negaffect on our business, finan
condition and results of operations.

Healthcare fraud and abuse laws are complex, aed minor, inadvertent irregularities can potengiajlve rise to claims that a statute
regulation has been violated. The frequency okdgitenforce these laws has increased significamtigcent years and has increased the
that a healthcare company will have to defend sefalaim action, pay fines or be excluded fromNtezlicare, Medicaid or other federal :
state healthcare programs as a result of an imatith arising out of such action. We cannot asgatethat we will not become subject to s
litigation. Any violations of these laws, or anytiao against us for violation of these laws, eviameé successfully defend against it, could h
our reputation, be costly to defend and divert nganzents attention from other aspects of our businessil&iy if the physicians or oth
providers or entities with which we do businessfatand to have violated abuse laws, they may bgestitp sanctions, which could also ha
negative impact on us.

Our efforts to discover and develop potential pratsi may not lead to the discovedgvelopment, commercialization or marketing of aat
drug products.

We are currently engaged in a number of differgraaches to discover and develop new product egins and product candida
Discovery and development of potential drug caneislaare expensive and timensuming, and we do not know if our efforts wéhd tc
discovery of any drug candidates that can be sefidgsdeveloped and marketed. If our efforts d¢ lead to the discovery of a suitable ¢
candidate, we may be unable to grow our clinicpefine or we may be unable to enter into agreemeitkscollaborators who are willing
develop our drug candidates.
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We may not be able to maintain sufficient produ@Bility insurance to cover claims against us.

Product liability insurance for the healthcare isitly is generally expensive to the extent it isilabde at all. We may not be able to main
such insurance on acceptable terms or be ablectoesencreased coverage if the commercializatioouwfproducts progresses, nor can w
sure that existing or future claims against us kallcovered by our product liability insurance. Blorer, the existing coverage of our insur:
policy or any rights of indemnification and contrtton that we may have may not be sufficient tseffexisting or future claims. A succes
claim against us with respect to uninsured liabgitor in excess of insurance coverage and noesuty any indemnification or contributi
could have a material adverse effect on our fubusness, financial condition, and results of ofiens.

If any of our third-party contractors fail to perform their responsilties to comply with FDA rules and regulations, the@anufacture
marketing and sales of our products could be deldyehich could decrease our revenues.

Supplying the market with our Microcyn®echnology products requires us to manage reldtipasvith an increasing number of collabora
partners, suppliers and thipdty contractors. As a result, our success depgadilly on the success of these third partigserforming thei
responsibilities to comply with FDA rules and regfidns. Although we preualify our contractors and we believe that theyfally capable ¢
performing their contractual obligations, we candioéctly control the adequacy and timeliness efrdssources and expertise that they apj
these activities. For example, we and our suppéeesrequired to comply with the FD&\guality system regulations, which cover the me
and documentation of the design, testing, prodactiontrol, quality assurance, labeling, packagstgrage and shipping of our products.
FDA enforces the quality system regulation throingpections.

In December 2011, we initiated a voluntary recaBelect lot numbers of certain of our Microcyis®sed products due to product labeling.
voluntary recall was prompted after notification thye FDA that a limited number of our products wangroperly labeled. The recall w
classified by the FDA as a Class Il recall, whichams the probability of serious health consequewessremote. Customer safety and pro
quality are critically important to us and to date have received no complaints regarding customafetysor product quality issues. The cos!
the voluntary recall were nominal and there wereresdrictions on our future sales of Microcym®sed products, other than revising
product labeling for certain products. The voluptagcall did not materially impact revenues.

If any of our partners or contractors fail to penfiotheir obligations in an adequate and timely neanar fail to comply with the FDA' rule:
and regulations, including failure to comply withadity systems regulations or a corrective actionsitted to the FDA after notification by 1
FDA of a deficiency is deemed insufficient, thee thanufacture, marketing and sales of our prodranitd be delayed. Our products coulc
detained or seized, the FDA could order a recaltequire our partner to replace or offer refunalsdur products. The FDA could also req
our partner, and, depending on our agreement with partner, us, to notify health professionals aniers that the products pres
unreasonable risks of substantial harm to the puigalth. If any of these events occur, the manufac marketing and sales of our prod
could be delayed which could decrease our revenues.

If we fail to comply with the FD/s rules and regulations and are subject to a FDAca#l as part of an FDA enforcement action, t
associated costs could like have a material advefect on our business, financial position, ressilbf operations and cash flows.

Our Company, our products, the manufacturing faedifor our products, the distribution of our puots, and our promotion and marke
materials are subject to strict and continual nevésd periodic inspection by the FDA and other taguy agencies for compliance with pre-
approval and post-approval regulatory requirements.

If we fail to comply with the FDAS rules and regulations, we could be subject terdarcement action by the FDA. The FDA could unals
regulatory actions, including seeking a consentakscrecalling or seizing our products, orderintptal or partial shutdown of productic
delaying future marketing clearances or approwats, withdrawing or suspending certain of our curgoducts from the market. A prod
recall, restriction, or withdrawal could resultsaobstantial and unexpected expenditures, destruofiproduct inventory, and lost revenues

to the unavailability of one or more of our produfdr a period of time, which could reduce profitépand cash flow. In addition, a prodi
recall or withdrawal could divert significant mamsgent attention and financial resources. If angwofproducts are subject to an FDA re:
we could incur significant costs and suffer ecormioisses. Production of our products could be sudp@ and we could be requirec
establish inventory reserves to cover estimatedritory losses for all work-in-process and finislgetds related to products we or our third
party contractors manufacture. A recall of a mateaimount of our products could have a significamfavorable impact on our future gr
margins.

If our products fail to comply with FDA and other@vernmental regulations, or our products are deemaefective, we may be required
recall our products and we could suffer adverse fiakrelations that could adversely impact our salesgperating results, and reputatic
which would adversely affect our business operaton

We may be exposed to product recalls, includinginvialry recalls or withdrawals, and adverse pul@lations if our products are allegec
cause injury or illness, or if we are alleged tavénanislabeled or misbranded our products or otherwiolated governmental regulatic
Governmental authorities can also require prodecalis or impose restrictions for product desiganafacturing, labeling, clearance, or o
issues. For the same reasons, we may also volynétett to recall, restrict the use of a productvithdraw products that we consider be
our standards, whether for quality, packaging, apgrgce or otherwise, in order to protect our brapditation.
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Product recalls, product liability claims (everuifmerited or unsuccessful), or any other eventsddase consumers to no longer associat
brand with high quality and safe products may absult in adverse publicity, hurt the value of dwand, harm our reputation among
customers and other healthcare professionals wh@uszcommend the products, lead to a declin@msumer confidence in and demanc
our products, and lead to increased scrutiny beridand state regulatory agencies of our operatiany of which could have a mate
adverse effect on our brand, business, performgmospects, value, results of operations and filaheondition.

Declining general economic or business conditionsiyrhave a negative impact on obusiness.

Concerns over inflation, energy costs, geopolitisslies, the availability and cost of credit, th& Umortgage market and a declining real e
market in the United States have contributed teeiased volatility and diminished expectations fog global economy and expectation
slower global economic growth going forward. Théssdors, combined with volatile oil prices, dedtigibusiness and consumer confidence
increased unemployment, have precipitated a glebahomic slowdown. If the economic climate in theiteld States does not improve
further deteriorates, our business, including oatigmt population, our suppliers and our thpalty payors, could be negatively affec
resulting in a negative impact on our business.

Risks Related to Our Common Stock

Our operating results may fluctuate, which could ese our stock price to decrease.

Fluctuations in our operating results may leadldotéiations, including declines, in our share prioer operating results and our share |
may fluctuate from period to period due to a vagrigtfactors, including:

« demand by physicians, other medical staff and p&gifor our Microcyn-based products;
« reimbursement decisions by third-party payors ambancements of those decisions;

« clinical trial results published by others in omdustry and publication of results in peewiewed journals or the presentatiol
medical conference

» the inclusion or exclusion of our Microcyn-baseddgcts in large clinical trials conducted by others
- actual and anticipated fluctuations in our quaytériancial and operating results;

« developments or disputes concerning our intellégit@perty or other proprietary rights;

« issues in manufacturing our product candidatesa@dyrts;

« new or less expensive products and services ott@éemology introduced or offered by our competitmrdy us;
« the development and commercialization of produba@cements;

« changes in the regulatory environment;

- delays in establishing new strategic relationships;

« costs associated with collaborations and new piochutdidates;

« introduction of technological innovations or newntuoercial products by us or our competitors;

« litigation or public concern about the safety of product candidates or products;

« changes in recommendations of securities analysék of analyst coverage;

. failure to meet analyst expectations regardingoparating results;

- additions or departures of key personnel; and

- general market conditions.
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Variations in the timing of our future revenues axpenses could also cause significant fluctuationsur operating results from perioc
period and may result in unanticipated earning téalts or losses. In addition, The NASDAQ CapitaaMet, in general, and the market for
sciences companies, in particular, have experiesiggificant price and volume fluctuations that éaften been unrelated or disproportio
to the operating performance of those companies.

If an active, liquid trading market for our commostock does not develop, you mnot be able to sell your shares quickly or at orcafe the
price you paid for it.

Although our common stock is listed on The NASDA@p&al Market, an active and liquid trading marf@t our common stock has not
and may not ever develop or be sustained. You noayp@ able to sell your shares quickly or at orvabthe price you paid for our stocl
trading in our stock is not active.

Anti-takeover provisions in our certificate of incorpation and by-laws and under Delaware law may makeore difficult for stockholder
to change our management and may also make a takeakfficult.

Our corporate documents and Delaware law contaimigipns that limit the ability of stockholders ¢thange our management and may
enable our management to resist a takeover. Thes&jons include:

« the ability of our board of directors to issue atwbkignate, without stockholder approval, the righttsup to 5,000,000shares
convertible preferred stock, which rights couldseaior to those of common stoc

» limitations on persons authorized to call a spemieéting of stockholders; and

« advance notice procedures required for stockholteraake nominations of candidates for electiordiasctors or to bring matte
before meetings of stockholde

We are subject to Section 203 of the Delaware Gatf@rporation Law, which, subject to certain ex@ays, prohibits “business combinations’
between a publicly-held Delaware corporation and‘iaterested stockholder,iivhich is generally defined as a stockholder whoabee
beneficial owner of 15% or more of a Delaware caafion’s voting stock for a thregear period following the date that such stockhk
became an interested stockholder.

These provisions might discourage, delay or prewenhange of control in our management. These gitng could also discourage pri
contests and make it more difficult for you andesthtockholders to elect directors and cause tekeother corporate actions. In addition,
existence of these provisions, together with Detawaw, might hinder or delay an attempted takemiker than through negotiations with
board of directors.

Our stockholders may experience substantial dilution the value of their investmenf we issue additional shares of our capital stook
other securities convertible into common stock.

Our Certificate of Incorporation allows us to issieto 14,285,715 shares of our common stock amsbtee and designate, without stockhc
approval, the rights of up to 5,000,000 sharesoofertible preferred stock. In the event we issiditional shares of our capital stock, dilut
to our stockholders could result. In addition, & wésue and designate a class of convertible peefestock, these securities may provide
rights, preferences or privileges senior to thddgotders of our common stock.

ITEM 2. Properties

We currently lease 13,840 square feet of officeeaech and manufacturing space in Petaluma, Qaiifowhich serves as our princi
executive offices. On October 10, 2012, we entarelAmendment No. 7 to our property lease agre¢ngending the lease on our Petal
facility to September 30, 2017. Pursuant to theradmeent, in exchange for certain improvements onbihigding, we agreed to increase
lease payment from $10,380 to $11,072 per month.

We also share certain office and laboratory spasevell as certain laboratory equipment, in a lingdocated at 454 North 34th Street, Se:
Washington. The space is rented for $2,700 per imand requires a ninety day notice for cancellation

On October 31, 2011, we leased approximately 1s8@@re feet of office and manufacturing space eréaento, California. On August .
2012, we entered into an amendment to our leass dattober 31, 2011 for the property located at384th Street, Suite 13, Sacrame
California 95820, to amend the lease to include0®@ square foot industrial unit located at 3021h6Street, Sacramento, California, an
extend the lease on both properties to OctobeP@13. The total rent for both properties is $2,§80 month. On March 7, 2014, we ex
these leases. We incurred no additional costs liyngxhe leases.
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On June 15, 2013, we leased office space in Mewitio an address of: Av De Las Americas, 1592 Piservla Colonia Country Club
Guadalajara Jalisco, CP 44637 for 23,400 Mexicaso®éapproximately $1,800 USD) per month. One memént was required as a depc
If we terminate this lease within the first yeampenalty in the amount of 12 monthent is applicable. If we terminate the contradthni the
second year, a penalty in the amount of 8 month# is applicable. The lease term is for 3 yeaggjrtning on June 15, 2013.

Also on June 15, 2013, we leased warehouse spabkexico with an address of: Industra Mecanica Nwm2t68 en el Fraccionamiel
Industrial Zapopan Norte, de esta Ciudad for 350@&ican Pesos (approximately $2,700 USD) per moatdeposit equal to two months’
rent was required. The lease term is from Jun2Q53 to June 14, 2014.

We currently rent approximately 800 square feetabés office space in Herten, the Netherlands. oftiee space is rented on a month to mi
basis for $1,700 per month and requires a sixtyradige for cancellation.

As we expand, we may need to establish manufagtdiaicilities in other countries. We believe that pwoperties will be adequate to meet
needs through March 31, 2015.

ITEM 3. Legal Proceedings

On July 25, 2011, we received notice of a lawsléatlfin Mexico by Cesar Mangotich Pacheco and Prodi S.A. de C.V. represented by Ci
Mangotich Pacheco. The lawsuit alleged conversiomseets, tortious interference and defamation,rgnather claims. In 2014, the case
dismissed due to inactivity. We remain of the opinthat the lawsuit was completely without merit.

From time to time, we are involved in legal mattarssing in the ordinary course of business incigdmatters involving proprieta
technology. While we believe that such matterscareently not material, there can be no assuramatematters arising in the ordinary cours
business for which we are or could become invoiwdlitigation, will not have a material adverseesff on our business, financial conditiot
results of operations.

ITEM 4. Mine Safety Disclosures.

Not applicable
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PART Il
ITEM 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Skbmlder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Seities
Market Information

Our common stock is traded on The NASDAQ Capitathdaiunder the symbol “OCLS” and has been tradingesour initial public offering
on January 25, 2007.

Effective as of the open of business on April 1120wve effected a reverse stock split of our comsstook, par value $0.0001 per share. E
7 shares of common stock were reclassified and gwdlinto one share of common stock. No fractiatedres were issued as a result o
reverse stock split. Instead, each resulting foaeti share of common stock was rounded up to orendhare. The reverse stock split redi
the number of shares of common stock outstandimm #6,080,513 to 6,583,150. The total number di@iged shares of common stock
also proportionally decreased by a ratio of 1:7 tmedpar value per share of the common stock coedirto be $0.0001. All prices have b
adjusted to reflect a 1 for 7 reverse stock seffective April 1, 2013.

As of June 23, 2014, we had 8,460,145 shares ofrmmstock issued and outstanding.

The following table sets forth the range of higld émw sales prices for our common stock for eacirigu during the last two fiscal years, be
on the last daily sale in each of the quarters:

Year Ended March 31, 2014

First Second Third Fourth

Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Stock pric-high $ 6.0C $ 3.0 $ 474 $ 5.84
Stock pric-low $ 24¢  $ 231 $ 231 % 3.02

Year Ended March 31, 201:

First Second Third Fourth

Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Stock pric-high $ 931 % 7.0C $ 6.3C $ 5.74
Stock pric-low $ 458 % 448 % 364 § 2.8(C

Holders

As of June 25, 2014, we had approximately 389 hsldé record of our common stock. Holders of recmidude nominees who may h
shares on behalf of multiple owners.

Dividends

We have never declared or paid any cash dividemdsun capital stock, and we do not currently intémdbay any cash dividends on
common stock in the foreseeable future.

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Corpensation Plans

The information required to be disclosed by Item (&) of Regulation 3, "Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equitympensatic
Plans," is incorporated herein by reference. Riefélem 12 of Part 11l of this annual report on fpt0-K for additional information.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities; Use of Reeds from Registered Securities
February 26, 2014 Offerin

On February 21, 2014, we entered into agreemenksimstitutional and accredited investors for taesof $1.35 million in units, consisting
shares of our common stock and Series A and SBriesrrants yielding net proceeds of $1,186,000.hEdait was priced at $3.00 &
comprised of one share of common stock, a Seriearant and a certain number of Series B warrditts.Series A Warrants have an exel
price per share of $3.00 and expire five years fthendate of issuance. The Series B Warrants arexescisable for six months from -
closing, have an exercise price per share of $&mi3expire on the later of (a) one year from théiereof (i) the effective date of an effect
registration statement pursuant to which all theeSeB Warrant shares are registered for resalgigrttie date that all Series B Warrant sh
may be sold by the holder pursuant to Rule 144h@ut volume limitations and assuming cashless ésa&rand (b) one year anniversary of
closing of the initial public offering of our subdgry, Ruthigen, Inc. We retained Dawson James i8&3) Inc. as the exclusive placenr
agent for this offering, and we paid them $94,68placement agent commissions. The offering claseBebruary 26, 2014 .

37




In addition to the payment of certain cash feesugosing of the offering, we issued a warrant sswBon James Securities, Inc. to purchas
to 69,037shares of common stock. The warrants are exereiszth$3.00 per share and will expire on May 3, 20 warrant issued
Dawson James Securities, Inc. has no registraiist but does contain cashless exercise prodsion

The Shares and Series A Warrants were offered potda a shelf registration statement (File No.-333411), that was declared effective
May 3, 2011 by the Securities and Exchange Comarisdihe Series B Warrants, the shares underlyiagStéries B Warrants, the Daw
warrants and the shares underlying the Dawson wareae not registered and were sold pursuant examption from registration for sales
a limited number of qualified institutional buyeM/e used the net proceeds from the offering forkimgr capital and general corpor
purposes.

We relied on the Section 4(a)(2) exemption fronrusigies registration under the federal securit@sd for transactions not involving any pu
offering. No advertising or general solicitation sMamployed in offering the securities. The seasitivere issued to accredited investors.
securities were offered for investment purposeg anl not for the purpose of resale or distribytenmd the transfers thereof was appropri
restricted by us.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

There were no repurchases made by us or on outfpehdy any “affiliated purchaserf shares of our common stock during the qu
ended March 31, 2014.

ITEM 6. Selected Financial Data

As a smaller reporting company, as defined by R@le-2 of the Exchange Act and in Item 10(f)(1) &dgRlation SK, we are electing scal
disclosure reporting obligations and thereforermierequired to provide the information requestedhis Item.

ITEM 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financiab@dition and Results of Operations
Business Overview

We are a global healthcare company that desigongupes, and markets prescription and pogscription products in over 20 countries. We
pioneering innovative products for the dermatologyrgical, advanced wound and tissue care, andahriigalthcare markets. Our prim
focus is on the commercialization of our proprigtiErchnology platform called Microcyn®echnology. This technology is based on electny
charged oxychlorine small molecules designed tgetaa wide range of organisms that cause diseagbhogens). These organisms incl
viruses, fungi, spores and antibiotic-resistantistr of bacteria, such as methicillin-resist@taphylococcus aureus or MRSA, an
vancomycin-resistariEnterococcuspr VRE, as well a£lostridium difficile,or C. diff, a highly contagious bacteria spreadhlinan contac
Several Microcyn®Technology tissue care products are designed d@b itrfections and enhance healing while reduciregnibed for antibiotic
Infection is a serious potential complication irttbohronic and acute wounds, and controlling infects a critical step in wound healing.

Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of our consolidated financial steets in conformity with accounting principles geally accepted in the United Sts
requires management to exercise its judgment. Vdecese considerable judgment with respect to estdbl sound accounting policies an
making estimates and assumptions that affect therted amounts of our assets and liabilities, @egognition of revenues and expenses,
disclosure of commitments and contingencies atlttie of the consolidated financial statements.

On an ongoing basis, we evaluate our estimategugiginents. Areas in which we exercise significagjment include, but are not necess
limited to, our valuation of accounts receivablejeintory, income taxes, equity transactions (coregtemy and financing) and contingenc
We have also adopted certain polices with resmeotit recognition of revenue that we believe amsigient with the guidance provided ur
Securities and Exchange Commission Staff AccourBinetin No. 104.

We base our estimates and judgments on a varidgctafrs including our historical experience, knedde of our business and industry, cul
and expected economic conditions, the attributeswf products, the regulatory environment, and éntain cases, the results of out:
appraisals. We periodically essaluate our estimates and assumptions with redpethese judgments and modify our approach \
circumstances indicate that modifications are resngs

While we believe that the factors we evaluate mevis with a meaningful basis for establishing applying sound accounting policies,
cannot guarantee that the results will always lirate. Since the determination of these estimatgsires the exercise of judgment, ac
results could differ from such estimates.

A description of significant accounting policiesathrequire us to make estimates and assumptioriBeirpreparation of our consolida
financial statements is as follows:
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Long-Term Investments

Our longterm investments consisted of the shares it ownRuthigen at March 31, 2014. We carry securitiet tfio not have a read
determinable fair value at cost. We have not restbrdny impairment losses during the years endecctiMad, 2014 as it relates to
investments held.

Stoclk-based Compensation

We account for sharkased awards exchanged for employee services loaséte estimated fair value of the award on thetgdate. W
estimate the fair value of employee stock awardisguthe BlackScholes option pricing model. We amortize the failue of employee sto
options on a straigHine basis over the requisite service period ofdla@rds. Compensation expense includes the ingfaam estimate fc
forfeitures for all stock options.

We account for equity instruments issued to rorployees based on the estimated fair value ofndteument on the measurement date.
measurement of stock-based compensation is sutgeperiodic adjustment as the underlying equitytrimeent vests or becomes non
forfeitable. Non-employee stock-based compensatiamges are amortized over the vesting period eaased.

Revenue Recognition and Accounts Receiva

We generate revenue from sales of our productsgpitals, medical centers, doctors, pharmaciesgdatdbutors. We sell our products dires
to third parties and to distributors through vas@ancelable distribution agreements. We also edii@to agreements to license our technc
and products.

We also provide regulatory compliance testing amality assurance services to medical device anchpdzeutical companies.

We record revenue when (i) persuasive evidencen @rengement exists, (ii) delivery has occurréi),tfie fee is fixed or determinable, ¢
(iv) collectability of the sale is reasonably asslr

We require all of our product sales to be suppobtgcvidence of a sale transaction that clearlycates the selling price to the custor
shipping terms and payment terms. Evidence of emngement generally consists of a contract or @setorder approved by the customer
have ongoing relationships with certain customermfwhich it customarily accepts orders by teleghionlieu of purchase orders.

We recognize revenue at the time in which we recebnfirmation that the goods were either tendatdtieir destination, when shippeldOB
destination,” or transferred to a shipping ageftemwshipped “FOB shipping pointDelivery to the customer is deemed to have occunieer
the customer takes title to the product. Genertillg, passes to the customer upon shipment, buldcoccur when the customer receives
product based on the terms of the agreement wétledistomer.

The selling prices of all goods are fixed, and edr® with the customer, prior to shipment. Selljinges are generally based on establishe
prices. We do not customarily permit our customenseturn any products for monetary refunds or itreglinst completed or future sales.
may, from time to time, replace expired goods atisaretionary basis. We record these types of &djsts, when made, as a reductio
revenue. Sales adjustments were insignificant dufie years ended March 31, 2014 and 2013.

We evaluate the creditworthiness of new customedsnaonitor the creditworthiness of our existingtonsers to determine whether event
changes in their financial circumstances woulderaisubt as to the collectability of a sale at theetin which a sale is made. Payment terrr
sales made in the United States are generally g alad internationally, generally range from 3090 days.

In the event a sale is made to a customer undarmstances in which collectability is not reasopassured, we either require the custom
remit payment prior to shipment or defer recognitid the revenue until payment is received. We taina reserve for amounts which may
be collectible due to risk of credit losses.

Additionally, we defer recognition of revenue reltto distributors’ that are unable to provide meey or product selthrough reports on
timely basis, until payment is received. We belithvereceipt of payment is the best indicationrofpct sell-through.

We have entered into distribution agreements irofeir Mexico, and certain other countries. Recogmitif revenue and related cost of reve
from product sales is deferred until the productolsl from the distributors to their customers.

When we receive letters of credit and the termghef sale provide for no right of return except éplace defective product, revenu
recognized when the letter of credit becomes éffecnd the product is shipped.
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Product license revenue is generated through agmetsnwith strategic partners for the commercialirabf Microcyn®products. The terms
the agreements sometimes include nefindable upfront fees. We analyze multiple elena@rangements to determine whether the eler
can be separated. Analysis is performed at theptiare of the arrangement and as each product igedetl. If a product or service is |
separable, the combined deliverables are accofimted a single unit of accounting and recognizeset the performance obligation period.

Assuming the elements meet the criteria for sejparand all other revenue requirements for recagmithe revenue recognition methodol
prescribed for each unit of accounting is summarizelow:

When appropriate, we defer recognition of non-rdabie upfront fees. If we have continuing perforoenbligations then such dmnt fee!
are deferred and recognized over the period ofimeing involvement.

We recognize royalty revenues from licensed praaupbn the sale of the related products.

Revenue from consulting contracts is recognizedemgices are provided. Revenue from testing cotstiaarecognized as tests are compl
and a final report is sent to the customer.

Inventory

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost, cesidpdetermined on a standard cost basis (whichoajpates actual cost on a first-in, filstH
basis), or market. Due to changing market conusticestimated future requirements, age of the itovies on hand and production of r
products, we regularly review inventory quantiteeshand and record a provision to write down exeggkobsolete inventory to its estime
net realizable value.

Income Taxes

We are required to determine the aggregate amduntome tax expense or loss based upon tax statut@risdictions in which we condt
business. In making these estimates, we adjustesutts determined in accordance with generallgpi®e accounting principles for items
are treated differently by the applicable taxinghauties. Deferred tax assets and liabilities H&sy from these differences are reflected on
balance sheet for temporary differences in loss @rdit carryforwards that will reverse in subsagugears. We also establish a valua
allowance against deferred tax assets when it i® rikely than not that some or all of the defertad assets will not be realized. Valua
allowances are based, in part, on predictionsrttsatagement must make as to our results in futured® The outcome of events could di
over time which would require that we make charigesur valuation allowance.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statesiémtconformity with accounting principles geneyadlccepted in the United States reqt
management to make estimates and assumptionsffinettthe reported amounts of assets and liaksligied disclosures of contingent liabili
at the dates of the consolidated financial statésnand the reported amounts of revenues and expehsiag the reporting periods. Act
results could differ from these estimates. Sigaificestimates and assumptions include reservesvateldowns related to receivables i
inventories, the recoverability of loriiyed assets, the valuation allowance related todefierred tax assets, valuation of equity andvaéxie
instruments, debt discounts, and the estimatedt@aton periods of upfront product licensing feeseived from customers.

Deconsolidation of Ruthigen, In

On March 26, 2014, we deconsolidated our formetiply-owned subsidiary Ruthigen in connection witile completion of Ruthiges'initial
public offering of its common stock. As a resulttbé initial public offering, our ownership intetéa Ruthigen decreased to approxima
43%. Ruthigen'’s results of operations and cashdldwough March 26, 2014 have been included ircoasolidated financial statements.
Recent Accounting Pronouncemen

Accounting standards that have been issued or peapby the FASB, SEC and/or other standaating bodies that do not require adog

until a future date are not expected to have anahtmpact on the consolidated financial stateraenton adoption.

40




Comparison of Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2014 ang013
Revenue:

Total revenues were $13,668,000 for the fiscal yeaied March 31, 2014 as compared to $15,452,00eifiscal year ended March 31, 2(
This consisted of total product revenues, includimgduct licensing fees received, of $12,723,000tHe fiscal year ended March 31, 2
compared to $14,583,000 in the fiscal year endedcM&1, 2013. Product revenues were down 13% fioensame period last year w
decreases in US, Mexico and China, which wereglribffset by increases in Europe, the Middle Ebstia and Singapore.

Product revenue in the United States for the yealeé March 31, 2014 decreased $1,502,000, or 226 tal decline in sales in anir
healthcare, dermatology and other markets. We decbrevenue from our partner Innovacyn in the arteoah$3,100,000 and $3,906,000
the year ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, respegtiVhE decline in revenue attributed to other posiwas partially due to a decrease in ¢
related to the discontinuation of our partnershifith Union Springs and Onset Pharmaceuticals akased decline in sales to Quinnova.

Revenue in Mexico for the fiscal year ended MarthZ914 decreased $627,000, or 11%, when compautbe same period in the prior yea
a result of the More Pharma transaction closingugust 2013. The impact of the transaction resutedcreased sales in the fiscal year el
March 31, 2013, to existing customers prior to ¢lese of the transaction, as well as sales relatddore Pharma. The higher unit volu
growth of 12% and the recognition of $1,501,00@texd to the amortization of upfront fees paid byr&Bharma was more than offset by a
a 32% reduction in the average overall sales pécaunit. As a result of the transfer of the sélestion in Mexico to More Pharma, our rele
operating expenses in Mexico were $1,001,000 Idkean that in the same period last year.

Revenue in Europe and Rest of World for the fisealr ended March 31, 2014 increased $269,000, %, 45 compared to the same peric
the prior year, with increases in sales in Eurtipe Middle East, India, and Singapore, which watigdly offset by a decrease in China.

The following table shows our product revenues &égggaphic region:

Fiscal year
Ended March 31,
2014 2013 $ Change % Change
United State: $ 5,340,000 $ 6,842,000 $ (1,502,00) (22)%
Mexico 5,259,001 5,886,001 (627,000 (11)%
Europe and Rest of World 2,124,00! 1,855,00! 269,00( 15%
Total $ 12,723,00 $ 14,583,00 $ (1,860,001 (13)%

Licensing revenues were $1,829,000 and $1,686,00thé fiscal year ended March 31, 2014 and 20d4shactively. These amounts prime
relates to More Pharma and are included in ourutation of product revenues and are reflected m tdible above under the respec
geographic region where such licensing revenues e@&med.

Service revenues increased $76,000 when compartaé tsame period in the prior year due to an irserea the number of tests providec
our services business.

Gross Profit

We reported gross profit related to our Microcyp®@ducts of $8,213,000 or 65% of product revendasng the fiscal year ended March
2014, compared to a gross profit of $10,607,000/3% of product revenues, for the same period énptior year. Licensing revenues
included in our calculation of product revenues grnaks profit for the fiscal year ended March 31142 and 2013. Gross margins were d
mostly due to the decline of margins in Mexico tethto the More Pharma transaction and in the du8.to lower revenue, partially offset
higher gross margins in Europe.

Research and Development Exper

Research and development increased $664,000, ort8($2,887,000 for the fiscal year ended March281,4, compared to $2,223,000 for
same period in the prior year, with an expenseesme of $1,120,000 to $1,378,000 incurred by Rathighe increased expense relate
Ruthigen was partially offset by a decrease inicdihrelated costs of $227,000.

We expect that our research and development expéhskecrease since we will not be spending amd&ion Ruthigen.
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Selling, General and Administrative Expen:

Selling, general and administrative expense deeck&3833,000, or 3%, to $11,561,000 during the figemr ended March 31, 2014,
compared to $11,894,000 for the same period irpther year. The decrease for the fiscal year eridacch 31, 2014 was primarily due t
reduction in selling expenses in Mexico of $1,000,0nvhich was offset by higher costs related tchiRyen.

We expect selling, general and administrative egpeito remain at the same level in the next year.
Other Expense, Net

Other expense, net, decreased $44,000, or 35%31@®0 for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2014ngared to other expense, ne
$125,000 for the same period in the prior year. dienge in other expense, net for the fiscal yedeé March 31, 2014 foreign exchange ¢
and losses and franchise tax expenses.

Interest Expense and Interest Incon

Interest expense decreased $49,000, or 4%, duvinfiscal year ended March 31, 2014 to $1,058,88@ompared to $1,107,000 for the s
period in the prior year. The cash and magh interest is primarily related to borrowingsnfrVenture Lending & Leasing V, Inc. and Ven
Lending & Leasing VI, Inc. (collectively “VLL")As of December 16, 2013, the outstanding debt ahdd interest payments due to VLL\
settled in full as a result of VLL liquidating conom stock issued pursuant to the terms of a stocghpge agreement we entered into witt
entities on October 30, 2012. Neash interest increased $402,000 due to the seitiewf $94,000 of future interest payments anc
recognition of $475,000 of non-cash interest reldte the amortization of the discount on notes ply®ffset by lower norash intere:
recorded during the nine months ended Decembe2(®I13 due to the maturity of two of the VLL notegidg the period. Castelated intere:
decreased $187,000 for the fiscal year ended Matcl2014, primarily due to the maturity of two bEtVLL notes during the period. Inter
income for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2014&tbno material change as compared to the samadgarthe prior year.

Derivative Liabilities

In connection with our February 26, 2014 registatdct offering we issued a series of common simaichase warrants which contain ¢
settlement provisions. On the initial measuremeé¢ @f February 26, 2014, we recorded the fairevalithe common stock purchase warr
as derivative liabilities and due to a decreas¢hanvalue of our common stock from the initial measent date to March 31, 2014,
recorded the change in fair value of our derivafiabilities as a noreash loss of $1,566,000. As of March 31, 2014 weehderivativi
liabilities of $3,175,000 as compared to $0 for phevious year.

Fair Value of Common Stock Issued with Stock Purd@Agreement

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2014 we med a gain of $1,357,000, and during the fiscarynded March 31, 2013 we record:
loss of $1,599,000, on the fair value of commorlsigsued pursuant to the terms of a stock purcagesement we entered into with VLL
October 30, 2012 for the issuance to the entitieshares of our common stock having an initial aggte fair market value equal to $3,500,
This gain was attributed to an increase in ourksfrece from March 31, 2013 to the value on thesitig of the sale of the shares of com
stock by VLL on December 4, 2013.

Accounting for our Investment in Ruthigen, Inc

On March 26, 2014, our formerly wholtywned subsidiary Ruthigen, Inc. completed an infiglic offering of its common stock. As a res
during the three months ended March 31, 2014, werded a gain in the amount of $11,133,000 rel&tethe accounting treatment of
deconsolidation of the former subsidiary which riegg us to record our investment in Ruthigen atrizérket value.

Net Income (Loss

Net income for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2@&4 $3,735,000, an increase of $9,166,000, as a@uo net loss of $5,431,000 for
same period in the prior year. The increase is guilnrelated to the gain of $11,133,000 relatedh® Ruthigen, Inc. transaction previot
described, which was patrtially offset by lossesfraperations of $6,051,000.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

We reported a net income of $3,735,000 and logses dperations of $6,051,000 for the year endedch&d, 2014. At March 31, 2014, «
accumulated deficit amounted to $134,010,000. Wk vearking capital of $1,970,000 as of March 31, £0In the future, we may rai
additional capital from external sources in ora@ecantinue the longer term efforts contemplatedenrdir business plan. We expect to coni
incurring losses for the foreseeable future and megd to raise additional capital to pursue oudpecd development initiatives, to penet
markets for the sale of our products and contiraia going concern. We cannot provide any assurahaésve will be able to raise additio
capital. Our management believes that we have sdoesapital resources through possible publicravage equity offerings, debt financin
corporate collaborations or other means, if neetlediever, we have not secured any commitment far fiveancing at this time, nor can
provide any assurance that new financing will bailabble on commercially acceptable terms, if needed

Sources of Liquidity

As of March 31, 2014, we had cash and cash equitslef $5,480,000. Since our inception, substdgtial of our operations have be
financed through sales of equity securities. Olmerrces of financing that we have used to dateidtecbur revenues, as well as various loans.

Since April 1, 2012, substantially all of our op@was have been financed through the following $eantions:

« proceeds of $1,323,000 received from the exerdisermmon stock purchase warrants and options;

« net proceeds of $2,797,000 received from a regidtdirect offering of common and preferred stocl&pnil 22, 2012;
o net proceeds of $3,291,000 from sale of sharesipntgo October 2012 stock purchase agreement;

« net proceeds of $3,052,000 received from an undiewroffering on March 12, 2013;

« net proceeds of $2,002,000 received from a regdtdirect offering on December 9, 2013;

« net proceeds of $1,187,000 received from a regidtdirect offering on February 26, 2014; and

« net proceeds of $983,553 received from an At thekktdssuance of common stock as of May 21, 2014.

April 2012 Registered Direct Offerir

On April 25, 2012, we closed on agreements withituntgonal and accredited investors to issue upa)o337,143 shares of common stoc
1,000 shares of Series A 0% Convertible PrefertedkS(the “Series A Preferred Stockgnd c) warrants to purchase up to 495,873 sha
common stock, or the Warrants. We also offeredaut58,730 shares of common stock issuable uponetsion of the Series A Prefer
Stock and 495,873 shares of common stock in thatehe Warrants are exercised. The Warrants havai@a exercise price of $8.26
share, are not exercisable for six months fromddie of issuance, and an exercise term of 2.5 yearsthe date of issuance. We rece
approximately $3,124,000 in gross proceeds fromstle of these securities. Net proceeds after dieduthe placement agent commissi
legal expenses and other offering expenses, anonasg no exercise of the Warrants, was $2,797,008.paid approximately $219,000
placement agent commissions. On May 4, 2012, otleedinvestors, and the sole holder of Series Aeied Stock, converted 1,000 share
the Series A Preferred Stock purchased in the ddius into 158,730 shares of common stock. Noeshaf Series A Preferred Stock
currently outstanding.

On October 29, 2012, we entered into a side letjeeement with Sabby Healthcare Volatility Mastandf, Ltd. and Sabby Volatility Warre
Master Fund, Ltd., (collectively, “Sabbytp amend the terms of the warrants issued to Sabbgnjunction with our April 22, 2012 registe
direct offering. Pursuant to the amendment, Salgoged to waive certain neash settlement features contained in the warrargschange fc
our agreement to a twygear extension of the expiration date of the wastaficcordingly, the expiration date of the wargissued to Sabby
connection with the April 22, 2012 registered direffering was extended from October 25, 2014 teober 25, 2016. No other terms, right
provisions of the purchase agreement or warrante wedified by the terms of the side letter agre@me

March 2013 Underwritten Public Offerir

On March 12, 2013, we closed an underwritten putifiering of 1,232,143 shares of common stock abféering price to the public of $2.
per share, including 160,714 shares of common stoatover the underwriters’ ovatlotment. The gross proceeds from this offeringe
$3,450,000, before deducting underwriting discoami$ commissions and other offering expenses d8,$89.

December 9, 2013 Offerir

On December 4, 2013, we entered into agreemenksimstitutional and accredited investors to iss68,800 shares of its common stoc
$4.00 per share, with no warrant coverage, yieldjrass proceeds of $2,200,000 and net proceed®,608000 after deducting placerr
agent commissions and other offering costs. We $atd,000 in placement agent commissions. In addit the payment of certain cash
upon closing of the offering, we issued a warranDawson James Securities, Inc. to purchase u,B0Q shares of common stock.
warrants are exercisable at $5.00 per share ahéxpire on May 3, 2016. The offer closed on Decenth) 2013.
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February 26, 2014 Offerin

On February 21, 2014, we entered into agreemeritsimstitutional and accredited investors for théesf $1,352,000 in units, consisting
shares of our common stock and Series A and Sé&isgrrants yielding net proceeds of $1,187,000rafleducting placement ag
commissions and other offering costs. Each Unit praed at $3.00 and was comprised of one shacermfmon stock, a Series A warrant ai
certain number of Series B warrants. The Seriesakréivits will have an exercise price per share d®and expire five years from the dat
issuance. The Series B Warrants will not be exabbisuntil six months following closing, will haan exercise price per share of $3.63
expire on the later of (a) one year from the eadid(i) the effective date of an effective regiion statement pursuant to which all the Seri
Warrant shares are registered for resale andh@i)diate that all Series B Warrant shares may likmolsuant to Rule 144 (without volu
limitations and assuming cashless exercise) andr(®@)year anniversary of the closing of the inifiablic offering of our subsidiary, Ruthig
Inc. We paid $94,630 in placement agent commissibhs offering closed on February 26, 2014 .

In addition to the payment of certain cash feesugosing of the offering, we issued a warrant swWBon James Securities, Inc. to purchas
to 69,037 shares of common stock. The warrantereecisable at $3.00 per share and will expire aay M, 2016. The warrant issuec
Dawson James Securities, Inc. has no registraiyist but does contain cashless exercise prodsion

At-the-Market Sales Issuance

On April 2, 2014, we entered into an At-tMarket Issuance Sales Agreement with MLV & Co. Lu@der which we may issue and sell sh
of our common stock having an aggregate offeririgepof up to $9,159,000 from time to time throughWlacting as our sales agent. We
pay MLV a commission rate equal to 3.0% of the gim®ceeds from the sale of any shares of comnuoak sbld through MLV as agent un
the Sales Agreement. As of June 24, 2014, we €080 shares for net proceeds of $982,000.

Material Trends and Uncertainties

In April of 2014, Innovacyn, our animal health car@rtner notified us thabver the next twelve months Innovacyn will trargitito a ne\
supplier of animal care products. We are discussingansition agreement with Innovacyn. For thedisyear ended March 31, 20
approximately 23% of our total revenues were derifrem our agreement with Innovacyn. During thergeanded March 31, 2014 and 2(
we recorded revenue related to these agreemerntseiamounts of $3,100,000 and $3,906,000, resgdgtiVWe are actively seeking n
distribution channels and locating a new animalthezare partner. Our revenue may be adversely étepgaduring this transition.

Cash Flows
As of March 31, 2014, we had cash and cash equiteat# $5,480,000, compared to $7,900,000 as otMaL, 2013.

Net cash used in operating activities during tharyended March 31, 2014 was $4,890,000, primatily th our net income of $3,735,0
offset by noneash transactions during the year ended March @14,2including: $11,133,000 of unrealized gain ba teconsolidation
Ruthigen; a $1,357,000 gain on the fair value ddjast of common stock issued to VLL in connectidthwhe stock purchase agreement d
October 30, 2012; a $1,566,000 loss on the fairevaldjustment of our derivative liabilities; $1,4810 of stockbased compensation expen
and non-cash interest of $863,000.

Net cash provided by operating activities during jtlear ended March 31, 2013 was $1,150,000 priyndué to the receipt of a $5,100,!
upfront payment from More Pharma offset by ourlnes of $5,431,000 for the period. Additionally, Wwad noneash transactions during
year ended March 31, 2013, including: $1,601,006to€}l-based compensation expenses; a $767,000 gain daithalue adjustment of o
derivative liabilities; a $1,599,000 loss on the falue adjustment of common stock issued in cotioe with the stock purchase agreen
dated October 30, 2012; and non-cash interest24,$60.

Net cash used in investing activities was $445 fadGhe year ended March 31, 2014, consisting @f4$800 related to equipment purchi
offset by $59,000 related to changes in long-tessets.

Net cash used in investing activities was $370,@00he year ended March 31, 2013, consisting &73200 related to equipment purchi
and $113,000 related to changes in long-term assets

Net cash provided by financing activities was $8,980 for the year ended March 31, 2014. Duringpgbeod ended March 31, 2014,
received net proceeds from the December 9, 2018teegd direct offering of common and preferrectistof $2,002,000 and net proceeds f
the February 26, 2014 underwritten offering of comnnstock of $1,186,000. The offering proceeds wéfget by principal payments on
debt in the amount of $1,615,000. We also receBid95,000 in connection with the exercise of commitock purchase warrants.

Net cash provided by financing activities was $8,080 for the year ended March 31, 2013. Duringptegod ended March 31, 2013,
received net proceeds from the April 22, 2012 tegéxl direct offering of common and preferred stot%2,797,000 and net proceeds fromr
March 12, 2013 underwritten offering of common &to€ $3,052,000. The offering proceeds were offgeprincipal payments on the deb
the amount of $2,083,000. We also received $28i9@0nnection with the exercise of stock options.
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Contractual Obligations
As of March 31, 2014, we had contractual obligatias follows (long-term debt amounts include ppatpayments only:

Payments Due by Period

Less Than 1-3 After
Total 1 Year Years 3 Years
Long-term debt $ 147,000 $ 143,000 $ 4,00C $ =
Operating leases 725,00( 321,00( 404,00( -
Total $ 872,000 $ 464,000 $ 408,00 $ =

Operating Capital and Capital Expenditure Requirements

We reported a net income of $3,735,000 for the ysated March 31, 2014. At March 31, 2014, our aadatad deficit amounted
$134,010,000. We had working capital of $1,970,80@f March 31, 2014.

We may need to raise additional capital from exesources in order to continue the longer terroreffcontemplated under our business |
We expect to continue incurring losses for the §egable future and may need to raise additionatatdp pursue our product developm
initiatives and to penetrate markets for the s&leuo products.
In order for us to potentially commercialize Micyo® as a drug product in the United States, we mustlwcnclinical trials, which can |
costly. Therefore, commencement of such pivotalicdil trials will be delayed until we find a strgite partner to assist with funding. Withot
strategic partner or additional capital, our pivetaical trials will be delayed for a period ofrte that is currently indeterminate.
Our future funding requirements will depend on méawotors, including:

- the scope, rate of progress and cost of our clitigds and other research and development aietsyit

« future clinical trial results;

« the terms and timing of any collaborative, licegsamd other arrangements that we may establish;

« the cost and timing of regulatory approvals;

« the cost and delays in product development asudt fsany changes in regulatory oversight applieab our products;

« the cost and timing of establishing sales, markedind distribution capabilities;

- the effect of competing technological and markefettgpments;

« the cost of filing, prosecuting, defending and eciftg any patent claims and other intellectual proprights; and

« the extent to which we acquire or invest in bussessproducts and technologies.
Off-Balance Sheet Transactions
We currently have no offalance sheet arrangements that have or are rdédgdik@ly to have a current or future material exff on ou
financial condition, changes in financial conditiorevenues or expenses, results of operationsidifgu capital expenditures or cap
resources.
ITEM 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About MagkRisk
As a smaller reporting company as defined by Rale2 of the Exchange Act and in Item 10(f)(1) ofgRkation SK, we are electing scal

disclosure reporting obligations and thereforerarerequired to provide the information requestedHis Item.
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ITEM 8. Consolidated Financial Statements and SupplementBrgta
Oculus Innovative Sciences, Inc.

Index to Consolidated Financial Statements

Report of Independent Registered Public AccourfEing

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of March 31, 204213

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive IncomssjLfor the years ended March 31, 2014 and :
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockh¢ Equity for the years ended March 31, 2014 and :
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the ye@iled March 31, 2014 and 2C

Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINKERM

To the Audit Committee of the
Board of Directors and Shareholders
of Oculus Innovative Sciences, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheets of Oculus Innovative Sciences, Inc. arnkifiaries (the “Company’as o
March 31, 2014 and 2013, and the related conselidatatements of comprehensive income (loss), @saimgstockholdersequity and cas
flows for the years then ended. These financidéstants are the responsibility of the Companyanagement. Our responsibility is to exg
an opinion on these financial statements basedipaudits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighamioUnited States). Those stand.
require that we plan and perform the audits to iobtaasonable assurance about whether the finastaééments are free of mate
misstatement. The Company is not required to hasewere we engaged to perform, an audit of itsrirdl control over financial reportir
Our audits included consideration of internal cohtiver financial reporting as a basis for desigradit procedures that are appropriate il
circumstances, but not for the purpose of exprgsamopinion on the effectiveness of the Compsaiyternal control over financial reportii
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An autfibancludes examining, on a test basis, evidenpparting the amounts and disclosure
the financial statements, assessing the accouptingiples used and significant estimates made bypagement, as well as evaluating
overall financial statement presentation. We belithat our audits provide a reasonable basis foopimion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referredabove present fairly, in all material respedtg, tonsolidated financial position of Oct
Innovative Sciences, Inc. and Subsidiaries, as afckl 31, 2014 and 2013, and the consolidated sestiits operations and its cash flows
the years then ended in conformity with accounfirigciples generally accepted in the United StafeSmerica.

/s/ Marcum LLP

Marcum LLP

New York, NY
June 30, 2014
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OCULUS INNOVATIVE SCIENCES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

March 31,
2014 2013
(In thousands, except share
and per share amounts)

ASSETS
Current assett
Cash and cash equivalel $ 548 $ 7,90(
Accounts receivable, n 1,79( 1,70
Due from affiliate 537 -
Inventories, ne 1,08¢ 997
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 647 93¢
Total current asse 9,54: 11,53¢
Property and equipment, r 971 80C
Deferred offering cost - 44
Long-term investment, at co 10,15( -
Other assets 12¢ 187
Total assets $ 20,79:  $ 12,56
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payabl $ 73 $ 80¢
Accrued expenses and other current liabili 88¢ 703
Current portion of cash settlement liability (Seet&l10) - 37
Deferred revenu 2,62¢ 2,32(
Current portion of longerm debt, net of debt discount of $0 and $521 atdd 31, 2014 ar
2013, respectivel 145 1,25¢
Derivative liabilities 3,17¢ —
Total current liabilities 7,57 5,127
Deferred revenue, less current port 1,152 2,61¢
Long-term debt, net of debt discount of $0 and $24Blarch 31, 2014 and March 31, 20:
respectively, less current porti 4 67€
Cash settlement liability, less current portiongSeote 10) - 62
Total liabilities 8,72¢ 8,48¢
Commitments and Contingenci
Stockholder Equity
Convertible preferred stock, $0.0001 par value08,000 shares authorized, none issuec
outstanding at March 31, 2014 and 2013, respdygt
Common stock, $0.0001 par value; 14,285,715 stearémwrized, 8,160,145 and
6,583,150 shares issued and outstanding at Marck034 and 2013, respective 1 1
Additional paic-in capital 149, 14: 144,811
Accumulated other comprehensive |i (3,069 (2,99))
Accumulated deficit (134,010 (137,74Y
Total stockholders’ equity 12,06! 4,081
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 20,79 $ 12,56¢

The accompanying footnotes are an integral patiede consolidated financial statements.
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OCULUS INNOVATIVE SCIENCES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LO SS)

Revenue:
Product
Product licensing fee
Service
Total revenues
Cost of revenue
Product
Service
Total cost of revenues
Gross profit
Operating expens¢
Research and developme
Selling, general and administrative
Total operating expenses
Loss from operation
Interest expens
Interest incom
Gain due to change in fair value of common stode(Note 10
Gain on deconsolidation of Ruthig
Loss due to change in fair value of derivativeilitibs
Other expense, net
Net income (loss
Preferred stock deemed dividend
Net income (loss) available to common sharehol
Earnings (loss) per common sh.
Basic
Diluted
Weightec-average number of common shares outstan:
Basic
Diluted
Other comprehensive income (lo

Net income (loss
Foreign currency translation adjustments

Comprehensive income (loss)

The accompanying footnotes are an integral patiede consolidated financial statements.
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Year Ended March 31,

2014

2013

(In thousands, except
per share amounts)

$ 10,89 $ 12,89
1,82¢ 1,68¢

94t 86¢

13,66¢ 15,45

4,51( 3,97¢

761 732

5,271 4,70¢

8,397 10,74

2,881 2,22¢

11,56: 11,89:

14,44¢ 14,11°

(6,05) (3,379

(1,05¢) (1,107

1 7

1,357 (1,599

11,13: -

(1,56€) 767

(81) (125)

3,73t (5,432)

- (1,06:)

$ 373  $ (6,497
$ 05/  $ (1.30)
$ 05¢  $ (1.30)
6,88: 4,977

6,89¢ 4,977

$ 3,73 3 (5,43))
(78) 62

$ 3,651 $ (5,369)




Balance,
March 31,
2012
Issuance o
common stock
in connection
with April 22,
2012 closing
of offering, ne
of
commissions,
expenses and
other offering
costs
Issuance o
convertible
preferred stoc
in connection
with April 22,
2012 closing
of offering, ne:
of
commissions,
expenses and
other offering
costs
Fair value of
common stoc}
purchase
warrants issue
with a cash
settlement
provision
Conversion o
convertible
preferred stoc
issued on Apr|
22,2012 into
common stocl
Issuance o
common stoc}t
in connection
with March 12
2013 closing
of offering, ne
of
commissions,
expenses and
other offering
costs
Issuance o
common stockt
in connection
with exercise
of stock
options
Issuance o
common stock
for services
Issuance of
common stock
to settle
obligations
Fair value of
common stoc}
issued in
connection
with stock
purchase
agreement (St
Note 10)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

OCULUS INNOVATIVE SCIENCES, INC.

For the Years Ended March 31, 2014 and 2013
(In thousands, except share amounts)

Accumulated

Convertible Preferred Stock Common Stock Additional Other
($0.0001 par Value ($0.0001 par Value Paid in Comprehensive Accumulated
Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital Loss Deficit Total

- - 4,144200 $ $ 134,49¢ $ (3,059 $ (132,319 $ (86¢)

- - 337,14 1,89( - - 1,89(

1,00( - - 907 - - 907

- - - (2,349 - - (2,349

(1,000 = 158,73( = = = =

- - 1,232,14. 3,051 - - 3,052

- 9,87¢ 28 - - 28

- - 71,53¢ 443 - - 445

- - 12,23 51 - - 51

- - 617,28: 3,50( - - 3,50(



Reclassificatior
of liability to
equity related
to the
modification o
common stock
purchase
warrants with
cash settleme
provision - - - - 1,63¢ - - 1,63¢
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Common stock
purchase
warrants issue
to consultant:

Employee stoc-
based
compensation
expense, net (
forfeitures

Foreign currenc'
translation
adjustmen

Net loss

Balance, Marcl
31, 2013

Issuance o
common stoct
in connection
with
December 9,
2013 closing
of offering, ne:
of
commissions,
expenses and
other offering
costs

Issuance o
common stoc}
in connection
with
February 26,
2014 closing
of offering, ne
of
commissions,
expenses and
other offering
costs

Fair value of
common stockt
purchase
warrants issue
with a cash
settlement
provision

Reclassificatior
of derivative
liability to
equity related
to the exercise
of common
stock purchas
warrants with
cash settleme
provision

Issuance o
common stock
in connection
with the
exercise of
common stock
purchase
warrants

Issuance o
common stoc}
in connection
with the
cashless
exercise of
common stock
purchase
warrants

Issuance o
common stock
for services

Common stock
purchase
warrants issue
to consultants
in exchange

1,15¢ - .

— 62 —
_ - (5,430

1,15¢

62
(5,432

6,583,15

550,00(

450,62(

449,62(

20,77:

105,98:

144,811 (2,99)) (137,749

2,002 = =

1,18¢ - -

(3,297) = g

1,68 - -

1,29¢ - -

341 - .

4,081

2,002

1,18¢

(3,292

1,68

1,29¢

341



for services

Employee stoc-
based
compensation
expense, net (
forfeitures

Foreign currenc'
translation
adjustmen

Net income

Balance, Marcl
31, 2014

- - - - 3 - - 3
- - - - 1,107 - - 1,107
- - - - - (78) - (79)
- - - - - - 3,73 3,73t
- - 8,160,14 1 149,14: (3,069 (134,010 12,06

The accompanying footnotes are an integral patiede consolidated financial statements.
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OCULUS INNOVATIVE SCIENCES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating activities
Net income (loss
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash pieviby (used in) operating activitie
Depreciation and amortizatic
Provision for doubtful accoun
Provision for obsolete invento
Stoclk-based compensatic
Loss (gain) due to change in fair value of deriatiabilities
(Gain) loss due to change in fair value of commols(See Note 1(
Gain on deconsolidation of Ruthig
Non-cash interest expen
Foreign currency transaction (gains) los
Loss on disposal of property and equipm
Changes in operating assets and liabilii
Accounts receivabl
Due from affiliate
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current a:
Accounts payabl
Accrued expenses and other current liabili
Deferred revenue and other liabilities
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activi
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property and equipm
Long-term deposits
Net cash used in investing activiti
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of common stock, net ofinffeosts
Proceeds from the issuance of convertible prefesteck, net of offering cos
Deferred offering cost
Proceeds from issuance of common stock upon exeotistock options and warrar
Proceeds from cash settlement liability (See NG
Principal payments on long-term debt
Net cash provided by financing activiti
Effect of exchange rate on cash and cash equigalent
Net (decrease) increase cash and cash equiv.
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid for interest

Non-cash operating and financing activities
Insurance premiums financed

Issuance of common stock to settle obligations

Non-cash investing and financing activities
Common stock issued in connection with stock pusetegreement (See Note 10)

Debt settled in connection with stock purchase exgent (See Note 10)

Cash settlement liability settled in connectionhwgtock purchase agreement (See Note

Reclassification of derivative liabilities to pdidcapital
Warrants issued as derivative liabilities in cortimecwith registered direct offering

The accompanying footnotes are an integral patiede consolidated financial statements.
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Year Ended March 31,

2014 2013
(In thousands)
$ 3,73t $ (5,43))
284 26¢
(6) 33
6 8t
1,451 1,601
1,56¢ (767)
(1,359) 1,59¢
(11,137 -
86° 624
(6) 11
39 2
(88) 411
(537
(12¢) (109
45¢ (262)
84¢ (10
271 (141)
(1,159 3,23(
(4,890 1,15(
(504 (257)
5 (117)
(445) (370
3,18¢ 4,94;
- 907
44 (44
1,29¢ 28
33 —
(1,615 (2,087)
2,94¢ 3,75(
(30) 1¢
(2,42() 4,54¢
7,90( 3,351
$ 548 $ 7,90(
$ 19t $ 48%
$ 18¢ $ 15%
$ = $ 51
$ — $ 3,50(
$ 1,131 $ -
$ 2,00( $ =
$ 168: $ 1,63¢
$ 3,292 $ 2,34




OCULUS INNOVATIVE SCIENCES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 — Organization and Recent Developments
Organization

Oculus Innovative Sciences, Inc. (the “Companwas incorporated under the laws of the State off@ala in April 1999 and we
reincorporated under the laws of the State of Datewn December 2006. The Companprincipal office is located in Petaluma, Califiar.
The Company is a global healthcare company thaigugsproduces, and markets prescription and preseription products in over
countries. It is pioneering innovative productstfee dermatology, surgical, advanced wound and ckie, and animal healthcare markets.
Company’s primary focus is on its proprietary temlogy platform called Microcyn®echnology. This technology is based on electry
charged oxychlorine small molecules designed tgetam wide range of organisms that cause diseamBogens). Several Microcgn
Technology tissue care products are designedapitrtections and enhance healing while reduciegieed for antibiotics.

Reverse Stock Spl

Effective April 1, 2013, the Company effected aaese stock split of its common stock, par valu®@01 per share. Every 7 shares of com
stock were reclassified and combined into one shemmon stock. No fractional shares were issagd result of the reverse stock s
Instead, each resulting fractional share of comstock was rounded up to one whole share. The revaock split reduced the numbe
shares of the Comparsytommon stock outstanding from 46,080,513 to 6B8B The total number of authorized shares of comstock wa
also proportionally decreased by a ratio of 1:7 twedpar value per share of the common stock ceadirio be $0.0001.

All common shares and per share amounts contam#tkiconsolidated financial statements have betoactively adjusted to reflect a 1 fc
reverse stock split.

Deconsolidation of Ruthigen, Inc

On March 26, 2014, the Company deconsolidatedoisdrly wholly-owned subsidiary Ruthigen, Inc. (fRigen”) in connection with th
completion of Ruthigen’s initial public offering @ common stock. As a result of the initial paliffering, the Compang’ownership intere
in Ruthigen decreased to approximately 43%. ThéiBeh results from operations and cash flows thnodgrch 26, 2014 have been inclu
in the Company’s consolidated financial stateme®¢z Note 8.

NOTE 2 — Liquidity and Financial Condition

The Company had net income of $3,735,000 and ieduosses from operations of $6,051,000 for the geded March 31, 2014. At Mal
31, 2014, the Comparny’accumulated deficit amounted to $134,010,000. Cbmpany had working capital of $1,970,000 as ofdia31
2014. The Company expects the need to raise additoapital from external sources in order to amri the longer term efforts contemple
under its business plan. The Company expects toneenincurring losses for the foreseeable future may need to raise additional capite
pursue its product development initiatives, perietraarkets for the sale of its products and coetisia going concern.

On April 2, 2014, the Company entered into an At-lMarket Issuance Sales Agreement with MLV & Co.CLEMLV”) under which th
Company may issue and sell shares of common staxikdy an aggregate offering price of up to $9,160,6om time to time through ML
acting as the Comparg/sales agent. The Company will pay MLV a commissate equal to 3.0% of the gross proceeds fronsale of an
shares of common stock sold through MLV as agedeuthe Sales Agreement. As of June 24, 2014, dles ®f shares under this agreer
have resulted in net proceeds of $982,000.

The Company currently anticipates that its cash aasth equivalents will be sufficient to meet itsrking capital requirements to continue
sales and marketing and research and developnfertsehrough at least April 1, 2015. However, ider to execute the Company’s lotag#r
Microcyn® product development strategy and to penetrate meleaisting markets, the Company may need to @adsktional funds throug
public or private equity offerings, debt financingsrporate collaborations or other means and piatgrreduce operating expenditures.

Management believes that the Company has accesspttal resources through possible public or pevequity offerings, debt financin
corporate collaborations or other means; however,Gompany has not secured any commitment for meanding at this time, nor car
provide any assurance that other new financingsbeilavailable on commercially acceptable termsieiéded. If the Company is unabl
secure additional capital, it may be required tdaiuits research and development initiatives #alce additional measures to reduce cos
order to conserve its cash.




NOTE 3 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidatior

The accompanying consolidated financial statemémtkide the accounts of the Company and its whollyred subsidiaries, Aquan
Technologies, Inc. (“Aquamed”), Oculus Technologiédlexico S.A. de C.V. (“OTM"), Oculus Innovativeciences Netherlands, B.V.Q!S
Europe”) and Ruthigen (through the date of deconsolidationMarch 26, 2014). Aquamed has no current operatiédl significan
intercompany accounts and transactions have baamated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial states@ntonformity with accounting principles geneyalkccepted in the United States of Ame
requires management to make estimates and assms\ptiat affect the reported amounts of assetsiahiities and disclosures of conting
liabilities at the dates of the consolidated finahstatements and the reported amounts of revem@®xpenses during the reporting per
Actual results could differ from these estimateignBicant estimates and assumptions include reseand writedowns related to receivab
and inventories, the recoverability of long-livessats, the valuation allowance relating to the Canmgjs deferred tax assets, valuation of ec
and derivative instruments, debt discounts, vabmatf investments, and the estimated amortizatienods of upfront product licensing f
received from customers.

Revenue Recoghnitio

The Company generates revenue from sales of iguptse to hospitals, medical centers, doctors, pheies, and distributors. The Comp
sells its products directly to third parties andlistributors through various cancelable distribntagreements. The Company has also er
into agreements to license its technology andritslycts.

The Company also provides regulatory compliancingsnd quality assurance services to medicalogeand pharmaceutical companies.

The Company records revenue when (i) persuasivéerge of an arrangement exists, (ii) delivery hesuoed, (iii) the fee is fixed
determinable, and (iv) collectability of the sade@¢asonably assured.

The Company requires all of its product sales tesigported by evidence of a sale transaction tleatrlg indicates the selling price to
customer, shipping terms and payment terms. Evelefi@an arrangement generally consists of a cantrapurchase order approved by
customer. The Company has ongoing relationshipb wéttain customers from which it customarily adseprders by telephone in lieu
purchase orders.

The Company recognizes revenue at the time it vesea confirmation that the goods were either terdlat their destination, when ship
“FOB destination,” or transferred to a shipping rigevhen shipped “FOB shipping poinDelivery to the customer is deemed to have occ
when the customer takes title to the product. Galyetitle passes to the customer upon shipmarttcbuld occur when the customer rece
the product based on the terms of the agreemehtthétcustomer.

The selling prices of all goods that the Comparils see fixed, and agreed to with the customemid shipment. Selling prices are genel
based on established list prices. The Company doesustomarily permit its customers to return afyts products for monetary refunds
credit against completed or future sales. The Caomppfom time to time, may replace expired goodsaodiscretionary basis. The Comp
records these types of adjustments, when madereaiiation of revenue. Sales adjustments werenifgignt during the years ended March
2014 and 2013.

The Company evaluates the creditworthiness of nestomers and monitors the creditworthiness ofxistieg customers to determine whe!
events or changes in their financial circumstameasld raise doubt as to the collectability of eesatl the time in which a sale is made. Pay
terms on sales made in the United States are dgn@dadays and internationally, generally rangenir30 days to 90 days.

In the event a sale is made to a customer undeurastances in which collectability is not reasopassured, the Company either require:
customer to remit payment prior to shipment or defecognition of the revenue until payment is @@ The Company maintains a rest
for amounts which may not be collectible due t& o credit losses.

Additionally, the Company’s treatment for recognizirevenue related to distributors that are unablprovide inventory or product sell-

through reports on a timely basis, is to defer mubgnize revenue when payment is received. Thep@oynbelieves the receipt of paymel
the best indication of product sell-through.
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The Company has entered into distribution agreesnenEurope. Recognition of revenue and related ebsevenue from product sales
deferred until the product is sold from the digitirs to their customers.

When the Company receives letters of credit andehmas of the sale provide for no right of retuxtept to replace defective product, reve
is recognized when the letter of credit becomescéife and the product is shipped.

Product license revenue is generated through agmetsnwith strategic partners for the commercialiwadf Microcyn®products. The terms
the agreements sometimes include nefitndable upfront fees. The Company analyzes pialélement arrangements to determine wheth:
elements can be separated. Analysis is perform#teanception of the arrangement and as each ptaslalelivered. If a product or servict
not separable, the combined deliverables are ateddior as a single unit of accounting and recagghiaver the performance obligation period

Assuming the elements meet the criteria for sewerand all other revenue requirements for recagmithe revenue recognition methodol
prescribed for each unit of accounting is summalrizelow:

When appropriate, the Company defers recognitionoof-refundable upfront fees. If it has continupgrformance obligations then such up
front fees are deferred and recognized over thieghef continuing involvement.

The Company recognizes royalty revenues from liedqsoducts upon the sale of the related products.

Revenue from consulting contracts is recognizedesgices are provided. Revenue from testing cotstigcrecognized as tests are compl
and a final report is sent to the customer.

Sales Tax and Value Added Tax
The Company accounts for sales taxes and valualadsdes imposed on its goods and services on laasé.
Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investmentth an original maturity of three months or legisen purchased to be cash equival
Cash equivalents may be invested in money marketsfucommercial paper, variable rate demand ingnisn and certificates of deposits.

Long-Term Investments

The Company’s longerm investments consist of the 2,000,000 sharewriis in Ruthigen at March 31, 2014. The Compamgieasecuritie
that do not have a readily determinable fair valtieost. The Company has not recorded any impairtoegses during the years ended M
31, 2014 as it relates to its investments held.

Concentration of Credit Risk and Major Customers

Financial instruments that potentially subject empany to concentration of credit risk consishgpally of cash, cash equivalents

accounts receivable. Cash and cash equivalenthairgained in financial institutions in the Unit&dates, Mexico and the Netherlands.
Company is exposed to credit risk in the eventaffdlt by these financial institutions for amouinteexcess of the Federal Deposit Insur:
Corporation insured limits. Cash and cash equitalbald in foreign banks are intentionally keptratimal levels, and therefore have minii
credit risk associated with them.

The Company grants credit to its business custgnvengch are primarily located in Mexico, Europe atmé United States. Collateral
generally not required for trade receivables. Tloenffany maintains allowances for potential credisé&s. At March 31, 2014, one custo
represented 44%, one customer represented 15%grandustomer represented 12% of the net accoureévable balance. During the y
ended March 31, 2014, one customer represented 88&opne customer represented 23%, respectivelyetofevenues. At March 31, 20
one customer represented 34%, one customer repeds2f%, and one customer represented 15% of thacoeunts receivable balar
During the year ended March 31, 2013, one custoamesented 25%, and one customer representedr&8pectively, of net revenues.
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Accounts Receivabl

Trade accounts receivable are recorded net of altoes for cash discounts for prompt payment, dabbtficounts, and sales returns. Estinr
for cash discounts and sales returns are basedabys& of contractual terms and historical trends.

The Companyg policy is to reserve for uncollectible accoundsdd on its best estimate of the amount of probeeldit losses in its existi
accounts receivable. The Company periodically negi@s accounts receivable to determine whetheallowance for doubtful accounts
necessary based on an analysis of past due acanahtsther factors that may indicate that the zatibn of an account may be in doubt. O
factors that the Company considers include itstiexjscontractual obligations, historical paymentt@ans of its customers and individ
customer circumstances, an analysis of days salestaading by customer and geographic region, andvaew of the local econon
environment and its potential impact on governnfanting and reimbursement practices. Account basrdeemed to be uncollectible
charged to the allowance after all means of catlechave been exhausted and the potential for mgag considered remote. The allowe
for doubtful accounts at March 31, 2014 and 20p8a®ents probable credit losses in the amount8,609 and $22,000, respectively.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost, cesidpdetermined on a standard cost basis (whichoajpates actual cost on a first-in, filstH
basis), or market.

Due to changing market conditions, estimated futaggiirements, age of the inventories on hand anduygtion of new products, the Comp
regularly reviews inventory quantities on hand esxbrds a provision to write down excess and obsatwentory to its estimated net realiz:
value. The Company recorded reserves to reduceattnging amounts of inventories to their net reaie value in the amounts of $47,000
$170,000 at March 31, 2014 and 2013, respectivelyich is included in cost of product revenues om tbompanys accompanyir
consolidated statements of comprehensive inconss)(lo

Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Financial instruments, including cash and cashwedgits, accounts receivable, accounts payableaaodied liabilities are carried at ci
which management believes approximates fair value t the short-term nature of these instrumenit& darrying amounts of lorgr
investments include the investment in Ruthigen aracarried at cost, which management believesoappates fair value. The fair value
capital lease obligations and equipment loans apetes their carrying amounts as a market ratetefest is attached to their repayment.
Company measures the fair value of financial assetsliabilities based on the exchange price thatlevbe received for an asset or pai
transfer a liability (an exit price) in the prinaipor most advantageous market for the asset laitityain an orderly transaction between ma
participants on the measurement date. The Compamymmzes the use of observable inputs and minintizesise of unobservable inputs w
measuring fair value. The Company uses three lefalgputs that may be used to measure fair value:

Level 1 — quoted prices in active markets for itdtassets or liabilities

Level 2 —quoted prices for similar assets and liabilitiegative markets; quoted prices for identical oriEiminstruments in marke
that are not active; and modétrived valuations in which all significant inpwad significant value drivers are observable irva
markets.

Level 3 — inputs that are unobservable (for exaropkh flow modeling inputs based on assumptions)

Financial liabilities measured at fair value oreaurring basis are summarized below:

Fair Value Measurements at March 31, 2014 Usin

Quoted prices in Significant other
Total active markets for  Significant other unobservable
March 31, identical assets observable inputs inputs
2014 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Liabilities:
Derivative liabilities— warrants $ 3,175,001 - - $ 3,175,00!

Level 3 liabilities are valued using unobservabiguits to the valuation methodology that are sigaift to the measurement of the fair valu
the liabilities. For fair value measurements catgal within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchjzet Companys accounting and finan
department, who report to the Chief Financial @ffficdetermine its valuation policies and procedufé® development and determinatiol
the unobservable inputs for Level 3 fair value mieaents and fair value calculations are the resipiity of the Companys accounting ar
finance department and are approved by the Chiefrigial Officer.
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Level 3 Valuation Techniques

Level 3 financial liabilities consist of the dertixee liabilities for which there is no current matkor these securities such that the determin
of fair value requires significant judgment or pwition. Changes in fair value measurements categmnvithin Level 3 of the fair vali
hierarchy are analyzed each period based on chamgseimates or assumptions and recorded as aipp

The Company uses the Bla8icholes option valuation model to value Level 3w@gives at inception and on subsequent valuatatesi Thi
model incorporates transaction details such aCtirapanys stock price, contractual terms, maturity, riskefrates, as well as volatility.
significant decrease in the volatility or a sigcdfnt decrease in the Compamgtock price, in isolation, would result in a sfggantly lower fail
value measurement. Changes in the values of tlieatiee liabilities are recorded in “Loss due tcaclge in fair value of derivative liabilities”
in the Company’s consolidated statements of congrgille income (loss).

As of March 31, 2014, there were no transfers ioudrof Level 3 from other levels in the fair valoierarchy.

Property and Equipmen

Property and equipment are stated at cost lessradated depreciation and amortization. Depreciatibproperty and equipment is compt
using the straighline method over the estimated useful lives ofrdspective assets. Depreciation of leasehold ingmants is computed usi

the straightine method over the lesser of the estimated udéubf the improvement or the remaining term loé fease. Estimated useful a
life by classification is as follows:

Years
Office equipmen 3
Manufacturing, lab and other equipm: 5
Furniture and fixture 7

Upon retirement or sale, the cost and related aataied depreciation are removed from the consdatiatlance sheet and the resulting ga
loss is reflected in operations. Maintenance apdire are charged to operations as incurred.

Impairment of Lon¢-Lived Assets

The Company periodically reviews the carrying valoéits longlived assets when events or changes in circumstamoald indicate that it
more likely than not that their carrying values nexgeed their realizable values, and records impmit charges when considered neces
Specific potential indicators of impairment includheit are not necessarily limited to:

- asignificant decrease in the fair value of antasse

- asignificant change in the extent or manner incligin asset is used or a significant physical chamgn asset;
« asignificant adverse change in legal factors ahénbusiness climate that affects the value aismet;

« an adverse action or assessment by the U.S. FabBraig Administration or another regulator; and

« an accumulation of costs significantly in excesthefamount originally expected to acquire or cartstan asset; and operating or ¢
flow losses combined with a history of operatingcash flow losses or a projection or forecast ttexhonstrates continuing los
associated with an incor-producing asse

When circumstances indicate that an impairment imaye occurred, the Company tests such assets dowambility by comparing ti
estimated undiscounted future cash flows expecedsult from the use of such assets and theirteakdisposition to their carrying amoul
In estimating these future cash flows, assets mfudities are grouped at the lowest level for whitere are identifiable cash flows that
largely independent of the cash flows generatedthgr such groups. If the undiscounted future dlasts are less than the carrying amour
the asset, an impairment loss, measured as thesgté¢he carrying value of the asset over itsretd fair value, will be recognized. The ¢
flow estimates used in such calculations are basedstimates and assumptions, using all availatitgrnation that management believe
reasonable. During the years ended March 31, 2884013, the Company had noted no indicators p&airment.

Research and Developme
Research and development expense is charged tatioper as incurred and consists primarily of pemgbrexpenses, clinical and regulal

services and supplies. For the years ended March2@14 and 2013, research and development expensented to $2,887,000 s
$2,223,000, respectively.
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Advertising Cost:

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Adiieglicosts amounted to $155,000 and $91,000, éyé¢lars ended March 31, 2014 and 2
respectively. Advertising costs are included inisg] general and administrative expenses in thempanying consolidated statement
comprehensive income (loss).

Shipping and Handling Cost

The Company classifies amounts billed to customeleted to shipping and handling in sale transastias product revenues. Shipping
handling costs incurred are recorded in cost oflpcorevenues. For the years ended March 31, 26d2@13, the Company recorded reve
related to shipping and handling costs of $58,060%116,000, respectively.

Foreign Currency Reporting

The Companys subsidiary, OTM, uses the local currency (MexiPasos) as its functional currency and its subsidi@lS Europe, uses t
local currency (Euro) as its functional currencyssAts and liabilities are translated at exchantgs ria effect at the balance sheet date
revenue and expense accounts are translated agavekchange rates during the period. Resultintgsladon adjustments were recorde
accumulated other comprehensive loss in the accopmmaconsolidated balance sheets at March 31, aad4013.

Foreign currency transaction gains (losses) rgdetearily to trade payables and receivables betveedasidiaries OTM and OIS Europe. Tt
transactions are expected to be settled in theséemble future. The Company recorded foreign cayréransaction gains of $6,000 and lo:
of $11,000 for the years ended March 31, 2014 abti32respectively. The related gains were recordedther expense, net, in -
accompanying consolidated statements of compreleirsiome (loss).

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for shdr@sed awards exchanged for employee services astimmated grant date fair value of the award.
Company estimates the fair value of employee stalrds using the Blackeholes option pricing model. The Company amortibesfail
value of employee stock options on a straigi#-basis over the requisite service period of dhards. Compensation expense include
impact of an estimate for forfeitures for all stagtions.

The Company accounts for equity instruments issaetbn-employees at their fair value on the meamarg date. The measurement of stocl
based compensation is subject to periodic adjustamthe underlying equity instrument vests or bee® non-forfeitable. Non-employee stock
based compensation charges are amortized oveestieg period or as earned.

Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are determimeskd on the differences between the financialrtieyggoand tax bases of assets and liabil
and net operating loss and credit carryforwardaguginacted tax rates in effect for the year in Whtwe differences are expected to im
taxable income. Valuation allowances are estaldistigen necessary to reduce deferred tax asséte trounts expected to be realized.

Tax benefits claimed or expected to be claimed texaeturn are recorded in the Compangbnsolidated financial statements. A tax be
from an uncertain tax position is only recognizei is more likely than not that the tax positiaill be sustained on examination by the ta:
authorities, based on the technical merits of thsitfpn. The tax benefits recognized in the finahgtatements from such a position
measured based on the largest benefit that hasaéegrthan fifty percent likelihood of being realizupon ultimate resolution. Uncertain
positions have had no impact on the Company’s dimtzged financial condition, results of compreh&edoss or cash flows.

Comprehensive Loss
Other comprehensive loss includes all changes agkbblders’ equity during a period from nommner sources and is reported in
consolidated statement of changes in stockholdegsity. To date, other comprehensive loss consitshanges in accumulated fore

currency translation adjustments. Accumulated ottemprehensive losses at March 31, 2014 and 2018 $2069,000 and $2,991,0
respectively.
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Earnings (Loss) Per Shar

Basic earnings and loss per share are computedviding) the net income or loss available to comnstockholders by the weighted aver
number of common shares outstanding during th@geBiluted earnings per share is computed usiagmtighted average number of comi
shares and, if dilutive, potential common sharetstanding during the period. Potential common shaansist of the incremental comn
shares issuable upon the exercise of stock opfimiag the treasury stock method) and warrantaigugie ifconverted method). Diluted Ic
per share excludes the shares issuable upon theisexef stock options and warrants from the calitoih of net loss per share as their e
would be anti-dilutive.

For the Years Ended

March 31,
2014 2013
Net income (loss) available to common stockhol- basic $ 3,735,001 $ (6,493,001
Denominator- basic:

Weighted average number of common shares outsgndin 6,882,00! 4,977,001
Basic earnings (loss) per common share $ 052 % (1.30)
Net income (loss) income available to common stotrkdrs- diluted $ 3,735,000 $ (6,493,001
Denominator- diluted:

Weighted average number of common shares outs@ 6,882,00! 4,977,00

Common share equivalents of outstanding stock ng 12,00( -

Common share equivalents of outstanding warrants 4,00( -

Weighted average number of common shares outsgndin 6,898,00! 4,977,001
Dilutive earnings (loss) per common share $ 052 % (1.30)
Securities excluded from the weighted averageiddutommon shares outstanding becaus

their inclusion would have been &dilutive:

Stock options 1,122,001 975,00(
Warrants 1,410,00 1,318,00
2,532,001 2,293,00!

Common Stock Purchase Warrants and Other Derivatikiaancial Instruments

The Company classifies common stock purchase wareard other free standing derivative financiatrineents as equity if the contracts
require physical settlement or net-share settlerer(ti) give the Company a choice of regtsh settlement or settlement in its own st
(physical settlement or net-share settlement). Chmpany classifies any contracts that (i) requetcash settlement (including a requiren

to net cash settle the contract if an event ocandsif that event is outside the control of the @any), (ii) give the counterparty a choice of ne
cash settlement or settlement in shares (physetdement or neshare settlement), or (iii) contain reset provisi@s either an asset ¢
liability. The Company assesses classification tef freestanding derivatives at each reporting dateletermine whether a change
classification between assets and liabilities guied. The Company determined that its freestanderivatives, which principally consist
warrants to purchase common stock, satisfied tierier for classification as equity instrumentdjetthan certain warrants that contained
provisions and certain warrants that requiredaasty settlement that the Company classified asatem liabilities as more fully described
Note 11.

Preferred Stock

The Company applies the accounting standards $tinduishing liabilities from equity when determigithe classification and measuremel
its preferred stock. Shares that are subject tadatany redemption (if any) are classified as ligpiinstruments and are measured at fair v
The Company classifies conditionally redeemabléepred shares, which includes preferred shared¢laaire redemption rights that are ei
within the control of the holder or subject to regeion upon the occurrence of uncertain eventssolly within the Companyg’ control, a
temporary equity. At all other times, preferredreiseare classified as stockholders' equity.

Convertible Instruments

The Company evaluates and bifurcates conversigarapfrom their host instruments and accountstent as free standing derivative finan
instruments according to certain criteria. Theetid include circumstances in which (a) the ecowaorharacteristics and risks of the embe
derivative instrument are not clearly and closelated to the economic characteristics and riskbethost contract, (b) the hybrid instrun
that embodies both the embedded derivative instniraed the host contract is not meeasured at fair value under otherwise applic
generally accepted accounting principles with cleanig fair value reported in earnings as they oeawd (c) a separate instrument with
same terms as the embedded derivative instrumenltdwze considered a derivative instrument. An etioapto this rule is when the hi
instrument is deemed to be conventional as that tedescribed under applicable Generally Accepexbunting Principles (“GAAP”).
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Subsequent Event

Management has evaluated subsequent events aadtioms occurring through the date these conselitifibancial statements were issued.
Recent Accounting Pronouncemen

Accounting standards that have been issued or pempby the Financial Accounting Standards BoardA$B"), the U.S. Securities a
Exchange Commission (“SEC”) and/or other standasdng bodies that do not require adoption unfiltare date are not expected to ha
material impact on the consolidated financial stegpets upon adoption.

NOTE 4 — Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consists of the following:

March 31,
2014 2013
Accounts receivabl $ 1,798,000 $ 1,729,00!
Less: allowance for doubtful accounts (8,000 (22,000
$ 1,790,000 $ 1,707,00
Allowance for doubtful accounts activities are akofvs:
Balance at Additions
Beginning Charged to Deductions Balance at
Year Ended March 31 of Year Operations Write-Offs End of Year
2013 $ 52,00 $ 33,000 $ (63,000 $ 22,00(
2014 $ 22,000 $ (6,000 $ (8,000 $ 8,00(
NOTE 5 — Inventories
Inventories consist of the following:
March 31,
2014 2013
Raw material $ 790,000 $ 835,00(
Finished goods 345,00( 327,00!
1,135,00! 1,162,00
Less: inventory allowances (47,000 (170,000
$ 1,088,000 $ 992,00(
Reserve for obsolete inventories activities arfobgws:
Additions
Balance at Charged to
Beginning Cost of Deductions Balance at
Year Ended March 31 of Year Product Revenues Write-Offs End of Year
2013 $ 105,00 $ 85,000 $ (20,000 $ 170,00(
2014 $ 170,00 $ 6,000 $ (129,000 $ 47,00(
NOTE 6 — Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets
Prepaid expenses and other current assets cohgist following:
March 31,
2014 2013
Prepaid insuranc $ 429,000 % 332,00(
Other prepaid expenses and other current assets 218,00( 603,00(
$ 647,000 $ 935,00
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NOTE 7 — Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consists of the following:

March 31,
2014 2013

Manufacturing, lab, and other equipm $ 3,073,000 $ 2,731,00!
Office equipmen 302,00t 356,00
Furniture and fixture 88,00( 78,00(
Leasehold improvements 269,00( 282,00(
3,732,00! 3,447,00!

Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization (2,761,001 (2,647,001
$ 971,000 $ 800,00

Depreciation and amortization expense amounte@8d $00 and $268,000 for the years ended Marc@@4 and 2013, respectively.

During the year ended March 31, 2014 and 2013Ctmpany incurred losses on the disposal of propanty equipment in the amounts
$39,000 and $2,000, respectively. This amount veaerded within operating expenses in the acconipgngonsolidated statements
comprehensive income (loss).

NOTE 8 — Investment in Ruthigen, Inc.

The Companys formerly wholly owned subsidiary, Ruthigen, wasdrporated in the State of Nevada on January AB3,2and reincorporat
from Nevada to Delaware on September 25, 2013.fAdasch 31, 2014 and 2013 and on the date of dedimlasion, March 26, 2014, t
Company held 2,000,000 shares of Ruthigen comnuaark st

The Company has entered into key agreements witig&n establishing the arrangements between tlwe dwmpanies following tt
completion of Ruthigen’s Initial Public Offeringh@ “IPO”), including license and supply and certain sharedices arrangements. Eacl
these agreements was entered into in the ovenaléxbof Ruthigen’s separation from the Companyg (tBeparation”)The effective date fi
all three agreements is March 26, 2014, the clodatg of Ruthigen’s IPO.

License and Supply Agreement

On June 6, 2013, the Company entered into a LicandeSupply Agreement with Ruthigen. Pursuant ¢oLtlcense and Supply Agreement,
Company agreed to exclusively license certain ®fpioprietary technology to Ruthigen to enable Ryath's research and development
commercialization of the newly discovered RUTERB-and any improvements to it, in the United Sta@anada, European Union and Jé
referred to as the Territory, for certain invasprecedures in human treatment as defined in thenisie and Supply Agreement. On Octob
2013 and November 6, 2013, the Company enteredAntendment No. 1 and No. 2 to the License and Supgreement with Ruthige
respectively, to amend certain milestone eventdasét in Section 7.1 of the License and Supply @gment and to amend the terms of
manufacturing equipment purchases set forth ini@eét 13 of the License and Supply Agreement. Qudey 31, 2014, the Company ente
into Amendment No. 3 to the License and Supply Agrent with Ruthigen to further amend certain milestevents and the terms of
manufacturing equipment purchases, and to remast@se of the License and Supply Agreement whidhteel to an exclusive option gran
to Ruthigen by the Company to expand the termé@iLicense and Supply Agreement to dermatologis.usk other terms and conditions
the License and Supply Agreement remain unmodéigdiin full force and effect.

Under the terms of the License and Supply AgreepteetCompany will be prohibited from using theshised proprietary technology to
products that compete with Ruthigerproducts within the Territory, and Ruthigen cansell any device or product that competes witt
Company’s products being sold or developed aseéffective date of the License and Supply Agreégmen

Ruthigen will be required to make a total of $8,000 in milestone payments to the Company for trs¢ product only, as follows: up
completion of last patient enrollment in Ruthige®hase 1/2 clinical study; upon completion of fedtent enrollment in Ruthigen's first pivc
clinical study; upon completion of Ruthigen’s finsteeting with the U.S. Food and Drug AdministratiRDA”") following completion ¢
Ruthigen’s first pivotal clinical trial; and uporirdt patient enrollment in Ruthigesi’second pivotal clinical trial. In addition, asrthel
consideration under the agreement, Ruthigen wilidpiired to make royalty payments to the Compasetl on Ruthiges’annual net sales
the product from the date of first commercial dal¢he date that Ruthigen ceases to commercidiezetoduct, which percentage royalty
will vary between 3% and 20% and will increase base various net sales thresholds and will diffepehding on the country in which
sales are made.
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Separation Agreement

On August 2, 2013, the Company entered into a &&ipar Agreement with Ruthigen that contains keyvjgions relating to its ongoil
relationship with Ruthigen following the completiai Ruthigens initial public offering. On January 31, 2014, tharties amended t
Separation Agreement. The separation agreementefiekt on March 26, 2014 upon the closing of Rgghis initial public offering an
terminates on the earlier of 8.5 years following tosing of the offering, or when the parties nailjuagree to terminate it. The Separa
Agreement also contains a series of restrictiontherCompany’s ability to transfer the Ruthigenrsekaas well as restrictions on the Company
ability to vote on the shares it owns.

The Company is restricted from transferring anyttef Ruthigen shares it owns during the first yeahe (‘lock up period”)immediatel
following the completion of Ruthiges'initial public offering, unless consent to sumsfer has been provided by both the Ruthigendbot
directors and the lead underwriter in the Ruthitié@. Following the onegear lock up period and during the second yeaoWilg the closin
of the IPO, if Oculus owns greater than 19.9% & idsued and outstanding common stock of Ruthigansfers by the Company of

Ruthigen shares are restricted unless the Compatajns consent from the Ruthigen’s board of dinecto

Following the completion of the second year, trarsbf the Ruthigen shares must be conducted mréacce with the prescribed requirem

for such transfers set forth in the Separation Agrent. These prescribed requirements include tigatransfers must be in private placer
transactions, the purchase price discount may xe#esl certain percentages depending on the traesfire amount of shares transferred
given transfer (or series of transfers comprisirgingle transaction) may not exceed the great&fobf Ruthigers outstanding shares or $
million in net proceeds to the Company, as weltextain other requirements set forth in the Semaragreement. In addition to the prescri

manner for the Company to conduct transfers desdrdbove, if, following a minimum of 41.5 monthgldaing the closing of Ruthiger’
initial public offering have lapsed under the Sapan Agreement and the Company has not consumntiesifers of the Ruthigen share
owns resulting in at least $3.8 million in net preds to the Company, then the Company has dimeetransfer and registration right
transfer the Ruthigen shares it owns in an amogogleto the difference between $3.8 million and Ewethigen shares transferred by

Company pursuant to the Separation Agreement #eedfme the Company elects to exercise its time-right. Transfers conducted using

one-time right must be conducted with the consémuihigens board of directors or within the prescribed regmients for such transfers

forth in the Separation Agreement, including, feample, that the purchase price discount may no¢eck certain percentages, the amou
shares transferred may not exceed $3.8 millioreinpnoceeds to the Company, as well as certairr offgiirements set forth in the Separe
Agreement.

In addition to the above transfer restrictiongh# Company owns greater than 19.9% of the issnddatstanding common stock of Ruthi
during the 8.5 year term of the Separation Agredmbie Company is required to vote, in person omlgxy, all of the shares it owns
Ruthigen in the same manner as the majority ofvtites cast by the holders of all the other issustl @utstanding shares of Ruthigen at
duly called meeting of the stockholders or in aotjam by written consent of the stockholders of tiRgeen.

On January 31, 2014, the Company also enteredairfanding Agreement with Ruthigen due to certaianges to the terms of Ruthigen’
initial public offering that had occurred in order govern the terms of certain additional financimlgich was provided to Ruthigen by
Company, in connection with the Separation, sulifethe terms and conditions set forth in the ages®. The amended Separation Agree!
disclosed above amended the terms of the priorragpa agreement such that the terms of the Fundiggeement shall control t
methodology for the allocation of the operationad ®@ffering related expenses incurred prior to imncbnnection with Ruthiger’initial public
offering for which Ruthigen was required to reimbaithe Company.

Since the legal inception of Ruthigen on January2083 and through the date of the Funding Agreé¢ntiee Company had advanced Ruth
$916,000 in connection with the funding of RuthigetPO and operations. Pursuant to the Funding Agee¢ the Company agreed
continue to fund Ruthigen for a total of up to aldiional $760,000 to allow Ruthigen to proceedhwts initial public offering. The parti
agreed that the Company had no further obligatidiund operations of Ruthigen beyond the amounisiled in a budget mutually agreed u
by the parties in connection with the executionthef funding agreement. The Funding Agreement a&gaired the resignation of all Ruthic
board of director members from the Company’s badidirectors at the time Ruthigeninitial public offering was completed. Furthermoan!
funds provided by the Company to Ruthigen purstaithe Funding Agreement were to be repaid by Rethito the Company at the time
the closing of the Ruthigen initial public offerin§hrough the date of the Ruthigen IPO, the Compuaagle aggregate advances to Ruthig
the amount of $1,453,000 (inclusive of the $916,08@losed above).

In connection with the completion of the initiallpie offering, on March 26, 2014 Ruthigen reimbutske Company $916,000 and as a re

the remaining $537,000 is included in due fromliats on the Compang’consolidated balance sheet as of March 31, 20t44April 1, 201«
Ruthigen reimbursed the Company the remaining $88Y,
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Deconsolidation of Ruthigen

On March 26, 2014, Ruthigen completed an initidbljguoffering for the issuance of 2,650,000 shavédts common stock to third part
(along with Series A and Series B warrants) forraggte gross proceeds of $19,212,500. As a rekeltCompanys ownership interest
Ruthigen decreased to 43% on March 26, 2014 an@adngpany deconsolidated Ruthigen.

The Company accounts for deconsolidation of suas&s in which it loses controlling interest in tfieancial interest of the subsidiary
accordance with Accounting Standards Codificati?y5C") 810-10-40 — “Consolidation”. In accordancé&wASC 810-10-4(, the Compar
shall account for the deconsolidation of a subsydigy recognizing a gain or loss in net incomeg)aseasured as the difference between:

a) The aggregate of the fair value of any considenatixeived by the Company; pl

b) The fair value of any retained noontrolling investment in the former subsidiary the Company at the date the subsidial
deconsolidated; plL

c) The carrying amount of any existing nooitrolling interest in the former subsidiary (inding any accumulated other compreher
income (loss) attributable to the r-controlling interest) at the date the subsidiarggsonsolidated; les

d) The carrying amount of the former subsid’s assets and liabilitie

As a result of the deconsolidation of Ruthigen,@menpany recorded a gain on deconsolidation of1881000 calculated as follows:

March 26,
2014

Aggregate fair value of consideration receivedts® €Compan $ =
Fair value of retained n-controlling interest by the Compa 10,150,00
Carrying amount on n«-controlling interest in subsidial -
Less:

Carrying amount of the Ruthigen assets and liddsslit (983,001
Gain (loss) on deconsolidation of Ruthigen $ 11,133,00

The aggregate fair value of the Company’s retained-controlling interest in Ruthigen is comprised oé tB,000,000 shares of Ruthi
common stock held by the Company as of March 26420ith an estimated fair value of $10,150,000. Tdiemarket value of the 2,000,C
shares held by the Company was determined witlagsiestance of an independent valuation speciaissidering key factors of the nature
the arrangement between the Company and Ruthigeluding but not limited to, the restrictions oartsferability associated with the sha
the restrictions on voting the shares, and thedithirading history of the Ruthigen common stock.

Subsequent to the deconsolidation of RuthigenGhimpany has accounted for the 2,000,000 sharesnofon stock it owns in Ruthigen
cost in accordance with ASC 328 as a result of (a) the restrictions on voting shares held as disclosed above, (b) the Compangginc
representation on the Ruthigen Board of Direct(}the Company inability to set policy at Ruthigen (d) the Compéhaving no furthe
commitments for funding the operations of Ruthigerd (e) the restrictions on transferability of #teres which extend beyond a o
period. During the year ended March 31, 2014, tamm@any had noted no indicators of impairment aslétes to investment held in Ruthigen.

NOTE 9 — Accrued Expenses and Other Current Liabitiies

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities isbrs the following:

March 31,
2014 2013
Salaries and related co: $ 516,000 % 455,00(
Professional fee 362,00( 141,00t
Other 11,00( 107,00t
$ 889,00( $ 703,00t
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NOTE 10 — Long-Term Debt
Financing of Insurance Premiurr

On February 25, 2014, the Company entered intot@ agreement for $188,000 with an interest rat#.81% per annum. This instrument
issued in connection with financing insurance prens. The note is payable in monthly installments$®7,000 with the final payment
August 25, 2014. During the year ended March 31142Ghe Company made principal and interest payseft$53,000 and $1,0(
respectively. The remaining balance of this noteamed to $135,000 at March 31, 2014 which is idetlin the current portion of lortgrm
debt in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet

On February 25, 2013, the Company entered intate@ agreement for $155,000 with an interest rat¢.81% per annum. This instrument
issued in connection with financing insurance premd. The note is payable in monthly installments$22,500 with the final payment
August 25, 2013. During the year ended March 31132Ghe Company made principal and interest paysneft$44,000 and $1,0(
respectively. The remaining balance of this not@amed to $110,000 at March 31, 2013, which $6,80@cluded in the current portion
long-term debt in the accompanying consolidatedrizd sheet.

Venture Lending & Leasing, Inc. and Venture Lendingeasing VI, Inc.

On May 1, 2010, the Company entered into a loansatdirity agreement and a supplement to the lodrsacurity agreement with Vent
Lending & Leasing V, Inc., to borrow $3,000,000g¢ther, the “VLL5 Loan Agreements’ln connection with those agreements, the Com
issued two warrants to Venture Lending & Leasind MC, a Delaware limited liability company (“LLC5which, in the aggregate, had a t
put option cash value of $750,000 (the “VLL5 Watsdh

On June 29, 2011, the Company entered into a lodrsacurity agreement and a supplement to thedadrsecurity agreement with Vent
Lending & Leasing VI, Inc., to borrow $2,500,00@dether, the “VLL6 Loan Agreements”)n connection with those agreements,
Company issued three warrants to Venture Lendingefasing VI, LLC, a Delaware limited liability compga (“LLC6"), which, in the
aggregate, had a total put option cash value @3R1000 (the “VLL6 Warrants”).

On October 30, 2012, the Company entered into otiseletter agreements with VLL5 and VLL6 to ameiin# repayment terms of
outstanding debt obligations. Prior to the executibthese agreements, LLC5 and LLC6 held an agdeenf 79,517 warrants (adjusted for
reverse stock split effective April 1, 2013) to gh@se common stock, which, in the aggregate, hathhput option cash value of $2,000,
(the “Cash Settlement Liability”) and was includadong term liabilities on the Company’s consotethbalance sheets.

On that same day, the Company also entered irtiuck purchase agreement with LLC5 and LLC6 (togethith LLC5, collectively referred 1
as “WTI") for the issuance to WTI of shares of its commorclkstbaving an aggregate grant date fair market valu&3,500,000, «
approximately $5.67 per post-split share, in exgeafor LLC5’'s agreement to surrender the VLL5 Watsa and LLC6S agreement
surrender the VLL6 Warrants, and the surrender byl @f the accompanying Cash Settlement LiabilitycArdingly, on November 1, 20:
the Company issued an aggregate of 617,284 restrittares of its post-split common stock (the “8&idto WTI, pursuant to the terms of
stock purchase agreement. The VLL5 Warrants an¥thé& Warrants were surrendered on October 30, 2012

If at any time between October 30, 2012 throughegiMarch 31, 2014 or July 31, 2015 (the “Settlenizates”)WTI sells the Shares, then
proceeds from the sale of the Shares will be ag@igefollows (the “Grace Period”):

(a) If and when the Shares are sold by WTI during thac& Period, the fair value of the proceeds redewil be retained by WTI ¢
consideration for surrendering the Cash Settlerpiatility, up to a maximum value of $2,000,0(

(b) If and when the Shares are sold by WTI during thac& Period, any additional proceeds received ftersale of the Shares in exc
of $2,000,000 (approximately $3.22 per share) hutai$3,500,000 (approximately $5.67 per share) vl applied by WTI as
prepayment of a portion of the then outstanding 8abed on the terms of the stock purchase agrde

(c) If and when the Shares are sold by WTI during thac€& Period, any additional proceeds received ftarsale of the Shares in exc
of $3,500,000 (approximately $5.67 per share) u$400,000 (approximately $7.28 per share) shalthe sole possession :
property of WTI, in accordance with the terms af ttock purchase agreeme

(d) If the Shares are sold by WTI during the Grace deefor value in excess of $4,500,000 (approxima$ély’2 per share), 50% of 1
amount of the proceeds in excess of the $4,50000DMme the sole possession and property of WTI &0é6 of the amount of tl
proceeds shall be applied as a prepayment of spat the then outstanding debt based on the tefrtize stock purchase agreems

(e) If the Shares are sold by WTI during the Gracedeefor value less than $2,000,000 (approximatelg@&er share), the Compan
required to make a cash payment to WTI until thaltGash Settlement Liability of $2,000,000 hasrbeovered”Cash Shortfa”).
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As of December 16, 2013, the Shares were sold foaverage price of $5.35 per share, resulting esgmproceeds of $3,304,000 and
proceeds of $3,291,000 after deducting certairstration costs. Pursuant to the stock purchaseragreéethe net proceeds from the sale o
Shares were applied as follows:

(a) $2,000,000 of the proceeds received were retaiydd B85 and LLC6 as consideration for surrendering YLL5 Warrants and VLL
Warrants and the underlying put warrant liabiliti

(b) After the put warrant liabilities were saitsf, the remaining proceeds were applied to thaatish of the Companyg’ remaining loar
outstanding under the VLL5 Loan Agreements andthe6 Loan Agreements. As there were no outstandaams under the VLL
Loan Agreements, the Company used the amount tpapréhe outstanding loans under the VLL6 Loan Agreets, for whicl
$1,131,000 of the proceeds received was appliad@epayment of the then outstanding debt unde¥the Loan Agreements ar
$94,000 of the proceeds received was applied asepapment of all future interest owed in connectisith the VLL6 Loar
Agreements

(c) After the loans were prepaid in full, approximat&§6,000 remained in excess of all outstandinggahibtns owed by the Compal
Pursuant to the terms of the stock purchase agrteswech amount was allocated 50/50, and $33,06@0paal to the Compan

In connection with the VLL5 Loan Agreements and el 6 Loan Agreements, during the years ended Madth 2014 and 2013, t
Company made interest payments of $188,000 and,$d04respectively, and aggregate principal payment$1,379,000 and $1,855,0
respectively. In addition, for the years ended MaBd, 2014 and 2013, the Company recorded $863800$624,000 of nooash intere:
related to the loans, respectively.

A summary of principal payments due in years subsegto March 31, 2014 for long-term debt is akfes:

For Years Ending March 31,

2015 143,00(
2016 4,00(
Total principal payment 147,00(
Less: current portion (143,000
Long-term portion $ 4,00(

NOTE 11 — Derivative Liability
Warrants Issued in Conjunction with the Company’sudust 13, 2007 Private Placement

The Company deems financial instruments which dohawe fixed settlement provisions to be derivativetruments. The common st
purchase warrants issued with the Compamtigust 13, 2007 private placement, and the comstock purchase warrants issued ta
placement agent in the transaction, do not hawafsettlement provisions because their exercisepray be lowered if the Company is:
securities at lower prices in the future. The Conypaas required to include the reset provisionsriter to protect the warrant holders from
potential dilution associated with future finandng\t issuance, the warrants were recognized asyeiqgtruments and have since been re
characterized as derivative liabilities. Accordinghe warrant obligations were adjusted to faiugaat the end of each reporting period
the change in value reported in the consolidatatestent of comprehensive loss. Such fair value® wstimated using the Bla&chole
valuation model. Although the Company determinedddbmmon stock warrants include an implied daide protection feature, it performe
Monte-Carlo simulation and concluded that the valfi¢he feature is de minimis between the two medeld the use of the Bla8chole
valuation model is considered to be a reasonabthadedo value the warrants. The Company will camgiio adjust the derivative liability 1
changes in fair value until the earlier of the eis, at which time the liability will be reclaged to stockholdersequity (deficiency), ¢
expiration of the warrants.

On February 13, 2013, the stock purchase warrasteed with the August 13, 2007 private placemepired. Accordingly, the Company |
decreased the derivative liability by $55,000, frtma amount reported at March 31, 2012, to refleetexpiration of the warrants and rel:
change in fair value. This amount is included agam due to the change in the fair value of deiveatiabilities in the accompanyil
consolidated statement of comprehensive loss oyéar ended March 31, 2013.

F-19




Warrants Issued in Conjunction with the Company’Al 22, 2012 Registered Direct Offering

The Company deems financial instruments which reqoeteash settlement as either an asset or a liabiline common stock purchz
warrants issued in conjunction with the CompanyfgilA22, 2012 registered direct offering originatpntained a netash settlement featt
which gave the warrant holder the right to nash settlement in the event certain transacti@esiro Pursuant to the terms of the orig
warrants, if such a transaction occurs the warhehder will be entitled to a net-cash settlemenu®acalculated using the Bla&ehole
valuation model using an expected volatility egtmlthe greater of 100% and the 100 day volatilibfained from the HVT function ¢
Bloomberg, an expected term equal to the remaiténgn of the warrants, and applicable rfske interest rate corresponding to the

Treasury. On October 29, 2012, the Company enteteda side letter agreement with the holders ef warrants and the parties agree
amend the terms of the warrants to eliminate thecagh settlement feature contained in the warramseatended the expiration date of
warrants by two years. Subsequent to the execuatidhe side letter agreement, the Company adjustedair value of the warrants to

modified fair value and recorded a $298,000 gaiddifionally, the Company recorded a $382,000 logs tb the incremental fair val
adjustment resulting from the modification of tharvants from the April 2012 offering. Subsequentht® Companys entry into the side lett
agreement, the Company reclassified the fair vafithe warrants of $1,636,000 from a liability déional paidin capital as classified on 1
accompanying March 31, 2013 consolidated balaneetsh

The derivative liability relating to the warrantsthvnet-cash settlement provisions were valuedgugie BlackScholes option valuation mo
and the following assumptions on the following date

Modification
Incremental
Fair Value Pre-modification
October 30, October 30, April 22,
2012 2012 2012

Expected life 4.00 year 2.00 year 2.50 year
Risk-free interest rat 0.74% 0.30% 0.40%
Dividend yield 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Volatility 89% 100% 100%
Warrants outstandin 495,87 495,87 495,87-
Fair value of warrant $ 1,636,000 $ 1,254,000 $ 2,347,001

Warrants Issued in Conjunction with the Company’sebember 9, 2013 and February 26, 2014 Registerag@®iOfferings

The Company deems financial instruments which reqoeteash settlement as either an asset or a liabiline common stock purchz
warrants issued in conjunction with the Company&c@mber 9, 2013 and February 26, 2014 registeredtdifferings contain a negst
settlement feature which give the warrant holderright to neteash settlement in the event certain transactionaroPursuant to the terms
the warrants, if such a transaction occurrs theamarholder will be entitled to a net-cash settlamelue calculated using the Bla8chole
valuation model using an expected volatility eqt@mlthe greater of 100% and the 30 day volatilityagied from the HVT function ¢
Bloomberg, an expected term equal to the remaiténgn of the warrants, and applicable rfske interest rate corresponding to the

Treasury.

The derivative liabilities relating to the warramsth net-cash settlement provisions were valuedguthe BlackScholes option valuatis
model and the following assumptions on the follayvitates:

Remaining Contract Exercise Risk-free
Fair Value — Issue Date Measurement Date Warrants Term in Years Price  Volatility Interest Rate Fair Value
Placement Agent Warrar December 9, 201 16,500 2.40 $ 5.00 223% 0.44% $ 64,00(
Investor- Series A Warrant February 26, 201 450,620 1.50 $ 3.00 100% 0.44%  814,00(
Investor- Series B Warrant February 26, 201  1,400,00(C 1.50 $ 3.63 100% 0.44% 2,271,00!
Placement Agent Warrar February 26, 201 69,037 2.18 $ 3.00 100% 0.44%  143,00(
$3,292,00i
Fair Value - Exercise Date
Investor- Series A Warrant March 18, 201« 315,434 1.44 $ 3.00 104% 0.44% $1,180,00!
Investor- Series A Warrant March 19, 201« 134,186 1.44 $ 3.00 104% 0.44%  503,00(
$1,683,00
Fair Value — Reporting Date
Placement Agent Warrar March 31, 201« 16,500 2.09 $ 5.00 128% 0.44% $ 37,00(
Investor- Series A Warrant March 31, 201« 1,000 1.41 $ 3.00 128% 0.44% 1,00C
Investor- Series B Warrant March 31, 201« 1,400,00C 141 $ 3.63 128% 0.44% 2,958,001
Placement Agent Warrar March 31, 201« 69,037 2.09 $ 3.00 128% 0.44%  179,00(
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The following table sets forth a summary of therdies in the fair value of our Level 3 financiabii#ies that are measured at fair value
recurring basis:

Year Ended March 31,

2014 2013
Beginning balanc $ - $ 55,00(
Fair value of warrants issut 3,292,001 2,347,001
Mark to market net unrealized loss (ge 1,566,00! (1,148,00)
Incremental fair value adjustment due to modifiza - 382,00(
Reclassification to additional paid in capital (1,683,001 (1,636,001
Ending balance $ 3,175,000 $ -

NOTE 12 — Commitments and Contingencies
Lease Commitment

On June 15, 2013, the Company leased office spabéekico with an address of: Av De Las Americas92A®iso 7, en la Colonia Coun
Club en Guadalajara Jalisco, CP 44637 for 23,40Rid4e Pesos (approximately $1,800 USD) per montte @onthsrent was required as
deposit. If the Company terminates this lease withe first year, a penalty in the amount of 12 thehrent is applicable. If the Compe
terminates the contract within the second yeaeralty in the amount of 8 month®nt is applicable. The lease term is for 3 yeleginning
on June 15, 2013.

Also on June 15, 2013, the Company leased warehspaee in Mexico with an address of: Industra MezarNumero 2168 en
Fraccionamiento Industrial Zapopan Norte, de estalddl for 35,000 Mexican Pesos (approximately $2,@$D) per month. A deposit eq
to two months’ rent was required. The lease terfroism June 15, 2013 to June 14, 2014.

We also share certain office and laboratory spasevell as certain laboratory equipment, in a lingdocated at 454 North 34th Street, Se:
Washington. The space is rented for $2,700 per Imand requires a ninety day notice for cancellation

The Company currently rents approximately 800 sgdeet of sales office space in Herten, the Netineld. The office space is rented «
month to month basis at $1,700 per month and reguairsixty day notice for cancellation.

On October 10, 2012, the Company entered into Ammemdl No. 7 to its property lease agreement, extgnthie lease on its Petalul
California facility to September 30, 2017. Pursusnthe amendment, in exchange for certain imprar@mon the building, the Comps
agreed to increase the lease payment from $10¢3801t,072 per month.

On October 31, 2011, the Company leased approxiyn&t800 square feet of office and manufacturingcgpin Sacramento, California.
August 30, 2012, the Company entered into an amentto its lease dated October 31, 2011 for thpeny located at 3045 65th Street, £
13, Sacramento, California 95820, to amend theelé@dnclude a 3,000 square foot industrial unéiated at 3021 65th Street, Sacram
California, and to extend the lease on both praggetd October 31, 2013. The total rent for botbperties is $2,610 per month.

Minimum lease payments for non-cancelable operdéiages are as follows:

For Years Ending March 31,

2015 $ 321,00!
2016 189,00(
2017 149,00(
2018 66,00(
Total minimum lease payments $ 725,00!

Rental expense amounted to $413,000 and $392,00¢héoyears ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, respdctand is recorded in t
accompanying consolidated statement of comprehemsdome (loss).

Legal Matters
On July 25, 2011, the Company received notice dévesuit filed in Mexico by Cesar Mangotich Pachemnd Prodinnv, S.A. de C.

represented by Cesar Mangotich Pacheco. The laeyspéared to allege conversion of assets, toriidegerence and defamation, among c
claims. In 2014, The case was dismissed due taivitc We remain of the opinion that the lawsuiasvcompletely without merit.
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The Company, from time to time, is involved in legaatters arising in the ordinary course of its ibass including matters involvi
proprietary technology. While management beliebas $such matters are currently not material, tearebe no assurance that matters arisi
the ordinary course of business for which the Camgpa or could become involved in litigation, wilbt have a material adverse effect o
business, financial condition or results of compredive loss.

Employment Agreement

As of March 31, 2014, the Company had employmergergents in place with four of its key executivBse agreements provide, among o
things, for the payment of nine to twerfur months of severance compensation for ternmonatunder certain circumstances. With respe
these agreements, at March 31, 2014, potentiataese amounted to $1,130,000 and aggregated asalagles amounted to $935,000.

Related Party Agreemen

On January 26, 2009, the Company entered into ansynial agreement with VetCure, Inc., a Califorogporation, to market and sell
Company’s Microcyn® Technology-based animal heal#ne products branded as Vetericyn®tCure, Inc. later changed its name
Vetericyn, Inc. This agreement was amended on RBepra4, 2009, July 24, 2009, June 1, 2010, and Mbee 1, 2010. Pursuant to
agreement, the Company provides Vetericyn, InchWiilk product and Vetericyn, Inc. bottles, paclsagmnd sells Microcyn® Technology-
based animal health care products branded as ¥@@i The Company receives a fixed amount for eagtile of Vetericyn®sold by
Vetericyn, Inc.

On September 15, 2009, the Company entered a catimhagreement with V&M Industries, Inc., a Califica corporation, to market and ¢
certain of the Company’s Microcyn® over-theunter liquid and gel products. V&M Industriesclmnsubsequently changed its nam
Innovacyn, Inc. On June 1, 2010, September 1, 28idd November 1, 2010, the Company amended théeamnt granting Innovacyn, Inc.
exclusive right to sell certain of its over-the-oter products.

Additionally, on July 1, 2011, Vetericyn, Inc. ahthovacyn, Inc. began to share profits with the @any related to the Vetericyn@nc
Microcyn® over-theeounter sales with Vetericyn, Inc. and Innovacyrt. IDuring the years ended March 31, 2014 and 2(E3Compan
recorded revenue related to these agreements iantioeints of $3,100,000 and $3,906,000, respectividlg revenue is recorded in proc
revenues in the accompanying consolidated statsmmntomprehensive income (loss). At March 31, 2@hd 2013, the Company
outstanding accounts receivable of $220,000 and 826, respectively, related to Innovacyn, Inc.

In April of 2014, Innovacyn, Inc. notified the Coany that over the next twelve months Innovacyn, Wilt transition to a new supplier for
animal care products. The Company is discussimgresition agreement with Innovacyn, Inc. and isvaty seeking new distribution chann
and locating a new animal health care partner.émpany’s future revenue may be adversely impaateithg this transition.

Shared Services Agreement

The Company also entered into a shared servicegmgnt with Ruthigen that would take effect upas ¢bmpletion of Ruthigen's propo:
initial public offering, if any should occur, puisut to which it will provide Ruthigen with genersérvices, including general account
human resources, laboratory personnel and shardal fe&ources while Ruthigen plans to establish dependent facility and systems. A
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, Ruthigerl We financed by the Company until the completiminthe proposed initial publ
offering, if any should occur, and after such ey&uthigen would become responsible for its ownegges. On January 31, 2014, the Com
entered into Amendment No. 1 to the shared senagesement with Ruthigen to amend the terms ofnestandard activities the Compi
shall provide Ruthigen and the terms related tcesedo the Company's facilities. All other termsl aonditions of the shared servi
agreement remain unmodified and in full force affia.

Commercial Agreements

On February 14, 2011, the Company entered intocallet Option Agreement with an Amneal Enterprisbisrece member, AmDern
Pharmaceuticals, LLC (“AmDerma”). The Company pglato use its proprietary Microcyn®@chnology to develop a prescript
pharmaceutical product for the treatment of acneonnection with AmDerma (the “Future Acne ProducPursuant to the Agreement,
Company sold the option to exclusively sell andritiste the Future Acne Product to AmDerma for &-time nonrefundable payment
$500,000. On June 23, 2011, AmDerma exercisediisroto license rights to the drug candidate. @meJ21, 2012, the Company finalize
collaboration agreement with AmDerma (the “Colladimn Agreement”)Pursuant to the Collaboration Agreement, AmDermeesponsibl
for the development of a Microcyn®@ased acne drug candidate in the United Statekjding all activities required to gain regulat
approvals. AmDerma will also be responsible forcaléts. Additionally, within one year of the fitsbmmercial sale by AmDerma, AmDer
shall identify at least one secondary indicaticat thmDerma will develop. If AmDerma declines to gue such secondary indication, ther
right to develop such secondary indication will @gvback to the Company. The Company granted AmBReam exclusive, royaltpearing
perpetual license in the United States and Indith the right to sublicense and subcontract inatertircumstances, and a right of first refi
to expand the territory of the license to inclule European Union, Canada, Brazil, and Japan. Timep@ny retained rights to theest o
world.” Pursuant to the Collaboration Agreement, $250,008e upfront payment will be applied against aufatmilestone in the transact
and is recorded as deferred revenue in the Mar¢i2@14 in the accompanying consolidated balancetsfitge $250,000 of the upfr
payment was earned and recognized as revenue dherngar ended March 31, 2013.
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On August 9, 2012, the Company, along with its Manri subsidiary and manufacturer Oculus Technologfe®exico S.A. de C.\
(“Manufacturer”), entered into a license, exclusilistribution and supply agreement with More Pha@ogporation, S. de R.L. de C.V.Mbre
Pharma”) (the “License Agreement”). For a dimee payment of $500,000, the Company granted NRiverma an exclusive license, with
right to sublicense under certain conditions anthwhe Company’s consent, to all of the Comparproprietary rights related to certain o
pharmaceutical products for human application th#ize the Company’s Microcyn® Technology withineMico. For an additional orténe
payment of $3,000,000, the Company also agreedpoiat More Pharma as the exclusive distributarertain of its products in Mexico for 1
term of the agreement. Additionally, Manufacturearged More Pharma an exclusive license to ceabManufacturer’s theteld trademarl
in exchange for a payment of $100,000 to ManufactuFhe Company has the ability to terminate theeement if certain annual purch
minimums are not met. The term of the agreemetwéntyfive years from the effective date of August 15120The term of the Licen
Agreement will automatically renew after the twefitie year term for successive two year terms ag las More Pharma has materi
complied with any and all of the obligations undike License Agreement, including but not limited toeeting the minimum purche
requirements set forth therein.

Additionally, on August 9, 2012, the Company, alavith Manufacturer, entered into an exclusive distiion and supply agreement with M
Pharma (the “Distribution Agreement”). For a dimae payment of $1,500,000, the Company grantedeMRirarma exclusive ability to mar
and sell certain of its pharmaceutical productshieoman application that utilize the Company’s Mgmo® Technology. The Company a
appointed More Pharma as its exclusive distributdth the right to execute sutistribution agreements under certain conditions with the
Companys consent, within the following countries: Antig8aBarbuda, Argentina, Aruba & Curacao, Bahamas,bBdos, Belize, Bolivii
Bonaire, Brazil, British Guyana, British Islandsgy@nan Islands, Chile, Colombia, Cuba, Dominica, ican Republic, Ecuador, El Salvac
French Guyana, Grenada, Guadalupe, Guatemala, Haitduras, Jamaica, Martinique, Nicaragua, Pargdeeru, St. Bartolome, St. Vinci
& Grenades, Surinam, Trinidad & Tobago, Turks &c@ai Islands, Uruguay, Venezuela and Virgin Islands.

The Company will recognize the $5,100,000 relatethé License Agreement and the Distribution Agreeras revenue on a straight line k
consistent with the Comparsyhistorical experience with contracts with simtlerms, which is typically over three to five yeafshe contrac
Additionally, the Company capitalized $214,000tsftransaction costs related to the License Agreémred the Distribution Agreement, wh
will be amortized by the Company as expense omadght line basis consistent with the related reserecognition practices. At March
2014 and 2013, the Company had outstanding accoeces/able of $790,000 and $580,000 due from MRirarma, respectively. During ye
ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company reced$iZ,501,000 and $932,000, respectively, relatede amortization of the upfront f
received in the transaction. Additionally, duriftetyear ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, the Compaongnized $63,000 and $39,C
respectively, as expense related to the transactists of the transaction. The Company recognizegugst sales on a selrough basis as Mc
Pharma sells products through to its customers.

Other Matters
NASDAQ Listing Matter

On November 22, 2013, the Company received a l&ten the Listing Qualifications staff of The Nasd&tock Market LLC, notifying tt
Company that it was not in compliance with Nasdasfihg Rule 5550(b)(1), which requires us to mamta minimum of $2,500,000
stockholders’ equity for continued listing on thaddaq Capital Market. As of September 30, 2013Cvmpany had stockholdersguity o
$1,550,000, as reported in its Quarterly ReportFonm 10Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2013, filedhe Company with tt
Securities and Exchange Commission on NovembeR@®3. The letter also noted that, as of Novembe2R13, the Company did not m
the compliance alternative requirement of markdteseof listed securities under Listing Rule 555(Z) or the compliance alternat
requirement of net income from continuing operaiander Listing Rule 5550(b)(3).

The Company was notified by the The Nasdaq Stockk®td LC on April 16, 2013 that it had regained q@iance.
NOTE 13 — Stockholders’ Equity
Authorized Capital

The Company is authorized to issue up to 14,285shabes of common stock with a par value of $0.08€1share and 5,000,000 share
convertible preferred stock with a par value ofd80Q.1 per share.

Description of Common Stoc

Each share of common stock has the right to one. vidte holders of common stock are entitled tod#imds when funds are legally availe
and when declared by the board of directors.

April 2012 Registered Direct Offerin

On April 22, 2012, the Company entered into agregmwith certain investors to issue up to: a) 383,%hares of common stock; b) 1,
shares of Series A Preferred Stock; and c) wartarpsirchase up to 495,873 shares of common stdek Company also offered up to 158,
shares of common stock issuable upon conversidgheoSeries A Preferred Stock. The Company receapgtoximately $3,124,000 in gre
proceeds from the sale of these securities. Netegids after deducting the placement agent commissiegal expenses and other offe
expenses, and assuming no exercise of the Warnaats,$2,797,000. The Company retained Rodman & liRensLLC as the exclusi



placement agent for this offering, and paid ther8@80 in placement agent commissions. Followirggdlose of the transaction, one of
investors converted 1,000 shares of the SeriesefeRed Stock purchased in the transaction intq7i#Bshares of common stock.
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In connection with the issuance of the Series AfdPred Stock, the Company determined the instruncentained a beneficial convers
feature at the date of issuance. This beneficialecsion feature amounted to $1,062,000 and wasded as a deemed preferred dividen
the consolidated statement of statement of compsie loss for the year ended March 31, 2013.

The warrants issued with the offering have anahiixercise price of $8.26 per share, were notcgsarle for nine months from the date
issuance, and had an initial exercise term of 2&ry from the date of issuance. Additionally, thermants initially contained a neast
settlement feature which gave the warrant holderritjht to net-cash settlement in the event cettamsactions had occurred. Pursuant t
terms of the warrants, if such a transaction hamiwed the warrant holder would have been entiited neteash settlement value calcule
using the Black-Scholes valuation model using djpecolatility, expected term and ridkee interest rate assumptions, as further detéilele
warrants. On October 29, 2012, the Company entieteda side letter agreement with the holders efwarrants to amend the terms of
warrants. The holders of the warrants agreed toimdite certain netash settlement features contained in the wariangxchange for tt
Company’s agreement to a twear extension of the expiration date of the wds.aAccordingly, the expiration date of the warsmta:
extended from October 25, 2014 to October 25, Z8tke 10).

March 2013 Underwritten Public Offering

On March 12, 2013, the Company closed an undeearjtublic offering of 1,232,143 shares of commalstat an offering price to the put
of $2.80 per share, including an additional 160,3i&res of common stock to cover the underwrigvsr-allotment. The gross proceeds fi
this offering were $3,450,000, before deductingamaditing discounts and commissions and other eg#rh offering expenses of $398,(
The Company also issued warrants to the undensritepurchase 53,571 shares of the Commaoginmon stock with an initial exercise p
per share equal to $3.50, which was 125% of théigpoffering price. The underwriterstarrants are exercisable from March 12, 2014 thn
March 12, 2016.

December 2013 Registered Direct Offeri

On December 9, 2013, the Company completed a eegisdirect offering with accredited investors #&slied 550,000 shares of its comi
stock at $4.00 per share, with no warrant coverggeding gross proceeds of $2,200,000 and netgaws of $2,002,000 after deduc
placement agent commissions and other offeringscd$te Company retained Dawson James Securitiesasnthe exclusive placement ag
for this offering, and paid them $154,000 in plaeamagent commissions. In addition to the paymémedain cash fees upon closing of
offering, the Company issued a warrant to Dawsone3aSecurities, Inc. to purchase up to 16,500 shafreommon stock. The warrants
exercisable at $5.00 per share and will expire @y B} 2016.

February 2014 Registered Direct Offering

On February 26, 2014, the Company completed atezgib direct offering to institutional and accreditinvestors for $1,352,000 and
proceeds of $1,186,000 after deducting placemeahtagommissions and other offering costs. The Caompasued units (the “Unit3’
consisting of shares of common stock and Seriesnd\ $eries B warrants (collectively, the “Warrant€ach Unit was priced at $3.00
comprised of one share of common stock (the “SHar@Series A warrant (the “Series A Warrantaf)d a certain number of Series B warr
(the “Series B Warrants”Each investor received Series A Warrants to puelzasumber of shares of common stock equal to 1608he
number of Shares purchased by such investor. E&elstior received Series B Warrants to purchasetaic@umber of shares of common si
equal to the investa’ respective percentage of the total Series B WhamHlotment of 1,400,000 shares, whereby suchepgage we
determined by the respective percentage of thestove amount of the total Shares purchased by all tove#n this offering; however, we ¢
not issue fractional warrants and therefore, thebmr of Series B Warrants issued was rounded wown depending on the total amc
invested by each respective investor. The Seri#gafrants will have an exercise price per share3dd@&and expire five years from the dat
issuance. The Series B Warrants will not be exabtisfor six months following closing, will have axercise price per share of $3.63
expire on the later of (a) one year from the eadfdi) the effective date of an effective regiion statement pursuant to which all the Seri
Warrant shares are registered for resale andh@i)diate that all Series B Warrant shares may ik malsuant to Rule 144 (without volu
limitations and assuming cashless exercise) andr(®@)year anniversary of the closing of the inifiablic offering of our subsidiary, Ruthig
Inc., or March 26, 2014. The Series B Warrantsagsat the closing of Ruthigen’s initial public affeg on March 26, 2014.

The Company retained Dawson James Securitiesamthe exclusive placement agent for this offerarg] paid them $94,630 in placen
agent commissions. In addition to the payment afge cash fees upon closing of the offering, tleen@any issued a warrant to Dawson J¢
Securities, Inc. to purchase up to 69,037 sharemwimon stock. The warrants are exercisable at0§3ed share and will expire on May
2016. The warrant issued to Dawson James Secutitieshas no registration rights, but does contaishless exercise provisions.
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Common Stock Issued to Non-Employees for Services

On April 24, 2009, the Company entered into an egrent with Advocos LLC, a contract sales organiatihat serves as part of
Company’s sales force, for the sale of the Commamgund care products in the United States. Putdadhe agreement, the Company ag
to pay the contract sales organization a monthdydad potential bonuses that will be based on wehient of certain levels of sales.
Company agreed to issue the contract sales ordemmizeash or shares of common stock as compensttioits services. During the ye.
ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company issBeg® and 25,105 shares of common stock, respBgtiire connection with th
agreement. The Company has determined that thevdhie of the common stock was more readily deteaivie than the fair value of 1
services rendered. Accordingly, the Company reabittte fair market value of the stock as compensatixpense. During the years en
March 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company recorded $208&nd $179,000 of expense related to this agmetemespectively. The expense \
recorded as selling, general and administrativeeesge in the accompanying consolidated statememtsnoprehensive income (loss).

On December 17, 2009, the Company entered intggeeement with Windsor Corporation. Windsor Corpioraprovides financial adviso
services to the Company. Pursuant to the agreerfentCompany agreed to pay Windsor Corporationa quarterly basis, cash or comr
stock as compensation for services provided. Tomgany determined that the fair value of the comistock was more readily determine
than the fair value of the services rendered. Agioglty, the Company recorded the fair market vadithe stock as compensation expe
During the years ended March 31, 2014 and 2013Ctrapany issued 30,361 and 12,232 shares of constooR, respectively. During t
years ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, the Compamyded $120,000 and $120,000, respectively, of ms@eelated to this agreement
which $109,000 was paid with 30,361 shares of comsiock. The expense was recorded as selling, alezed administrative expense in
accompanying consolidated statement of comprehemsdome (loss).

On September 4, 2012, the Company entered intogegement with Worldwide Financial Marketing, Inor fproviding financial adviso
services. Pursuant to the agreement, the Compameddo pay Worldwide Financial Marketing, Inc. goon stock as compensation
services provided. The Company determined thafahevalue of the common stock was more readilyedatnable than the fair value of
services rendered. Accordingly, the Company reabtte fair market value of the stock as expenseinguhe year ended March 31, 2014
2013, the Company issued 10,000 and 3,571 sharesnmihon stock, respectively, in connection witts thgreement. During the year en
March 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company recorded $23ahd $17,000 of expense related to this agreemesyectively. The expense \
recorded as selling, general and administrativeeesge in the accompanying consolidated statememtsnoprehensive income (loss).

NOTE 14 — Stock-Based Compensation
2004 Stock Plan

The Company’s 2004 stock option plans (the “Pldr€game effective July 2004. The Plan provides fants of both incentive stock optic
(ISOs) and non-qualified stock options (NSOs) t@layees, consultants and directors.

In accordance with the Plan, the stated exercige pnay not be less than 100% and 85% of the ewdrfair market value of the Company’
common stock on the date of grant for ISOs and N®&pectively, as determined by the board of thrscat the date of grant. With respec
any 10% shareholder, the exercise price of an IBNSD was not to exceed 110% of the estimatednfairket value per share on the dat
grant.

Options issued under the Plan generally have gg¢anterm and generally became exercisable ovigeg/éar period.

In connection with the Company’s reincorporatiorDielaware on December 15, 2006, the Commbward of directors determined no fu
options will be granted under the 2004 Plan.

2006 Stock Plan

The board initially adopted the 2006 Stock Incemt®ian on August 25, 2006. On December 14, 20@6stbckholders approved the 2
Stock Incentive Plan which became effective atdlose of the Compang’initial public offering. The 2006 Stock Incentif®an was late
amended and restated by a unanimous board resolotio April 26, 2007, and such amendments were suiesdly approved by tl
stockholders. On September 10, 2009, the Compastyareholders approved a subsequent amendmerg 2006 Stock Incentive Plan. T
2006 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended and resiathdreafter referred to as the “2006 Plan.”

The 2006 Plan provides for the granting of incemttock options to employees and the granting astadutory stock options to employe

non-employee directors, advisors and consultants. D Plan also provides for grants of restrictedlststock appreciation rights and st
unit awards to employees, non-employee directaigsars and consultants.
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In accordance with the 2006 Plan the stated exemige may not be less than 100% and 85% of tima&®ed fair market value of comm
stock on the date of grant for ISOs and NSOs, sy, as determined by the board of directorthatdate of grant. With respect to any :
stockholder, the exercise price of an ISO or NS&ll stot be less than 110% of the estimated fairketaralue per share on the date of grant.

Options issued under the 2006 Plan generally haga-gear term.

Shares subject to awards that expire unexercisadediorfeited or terminated will again become ke for issuance under the 2006 Plan
participant in the 2006 Plan can receive optiomgarestricted shares, stock appreciation rightstack units for more than 26,786 shi
(adjusted for the reverse stock split effectiveifpr2013) in the aggregate in any calendar year.

On November 7, 2006, the board initially authorizetbtal of 178,571 of the Compasytommon stock shares (adjusted for the reversk
split effective April 1, 2013) for issuance undket2006 Plan in addition to increases providedrfdhe 2006 Plan through August 25, 2(
On September 10, 2009, the Companghareholders approved an amendment of the 2@06wHich authorized and reserved an addit
142,858 shares (adjusted for the reverse stock edfdictive April 1, 2013) for issuance under tH&@ Plan. The number of shares of
Companys common stock reserved for issuance under the P06 may increase if such increase is approvethéyoard, with no furth
action by the stockholders, at the beginning ohédfésral year by an amount equal to the lesser) 50,000 shares (adjusted for the rev
stock split effective April 1, 2013); (ii) 5% of ¢houtstanding shares of common stock of the Companthe last day of the immediat
preceding year, or (iii) an amount determined ly@ompany’s board of the directors.

As provided under the 2006 Plan, the aggregate rummibshares authorized for issuance as awards timel€2006 Plan increased on Apri
2012 by 207,199 shares (which number constitute®béte outstanding shares on the last day of #z& gnded March 31, 2012). During
year ended March 31, 2014, the board of directpaved an increase of 250,000 shares authorizeés$aance. The Plan is subjec
adjustment on April 1, 2014, at the board’s disore{Note 18).

2011 Stock Plan

On September 12, 2011, upon recommendation of dhedbthe stock holders approved the Company’s &btk Incentive Plan (the2011
Plan™). The 2011 Plan is effective as of June 21,22

The 2011 Plan provides for the grant of incentiteels options as defined in Section 422 of the maéRevenue Code to employees, ant
grant of non-statutory stock options and stock pase rights to employees, nemployee directors, advisors and consultants. THd Pla
also permits the grant of stock appreciation rigéitsck units and restricted stock.

The board has authorized 428,572 of the Compangmmon stock for issuance under the 2011 Plamddition to automatic increa:
provided for in the 2011 Plan through April 1, 20Zhe number of shares of the Compangbmmon stock reserved for issuance unde
2011 Plan will automatically increase, with no hat action by the stockholders, at the beginningawh fiscal year by an amount equal tc
lesser of (i) 15% of the outstanding shares of@hepanys common stock on the last day of the immediatedgeding year, or (i) an amol
approved by the Comparsyboard of directors. On April 1, 2012, the boaededmined not to increase the number of shareodm# fo
issuance under the 2011 Plan on April 1, 2012 ashaves had yet been issued from the 2011 Planntiimber of shares authorized
issuance will be subject to adjustment on Apri2@14, in the board’s discretion (Note 18).

Options issued under the 2011 Plan will generadlyeha ten-year term.

In accordance with the 2011 Plan, the stated eseqmiice of an employee incentive stock optionlgial be less than 100% of the estimi
fair market value of a share of common stock ondéte of grant, and the stated exercise price ofomstatutory option shall not be less 85¢
the estimated fair market value of a share of comstock on the date of grant, as determined byptfaed of directors. An employee who o\
more than 10% of the total combined voting powealbtlasses of outstanding stock of the Comparall stot be eligible for the grant of
employee incentive stock option unless such gratifges the requirements of Section 422(c)(5heflnternal Revenue Code.

Shares subject to awards that expire unexercisedeoforfeited or terminated for any other reasdlh again become available for issua
under the 2011 Plan. No participant in the 2011 Ran receive option grants, stock appreciatiohtsigrestricted shares, or stock units
more than 107,143 shares in the aggregate in degdar year. As provided under the 2011 Plan, tfigegate number of shares authorize:
issuance as awards under the 2011 Plan automgtioaikases on April 1 of each year by in an amaenual to the lesser of (i) 15% of
outstanding shares on the last day of the immdgiateceding year, or (ii) an amount determinedhsy board. During the year ended Mz
31, 2014, the board of directors approved an irsered 987,439 shares authorized for issuance. Tdrei® subject to adjustment on Apri
2014, at the board'’s discretion (Note 18).
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Options and restricted stock units outstanding atdi 31, 2014 under the various plans is as follows

Total Number of Options and Restricted

Plan Stock Units Outstanding in Plan
2004 Plar 66,000
2006 Plar 1,114,00(C
2011 Plan 1,356,00(C
2,536,00(

A summary of activity under all option plans foethears ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 is presbeted :

Weighted- Weighted- Aggregate
Number of Average Average Intrinsic
Shares Exercise Price Contractual Term Value
Outstanding at March 31, 20: 895,000 $ 16.5:2
Options grante: 124,00( 6.41
Options exercise (20,000 5.5¢
Options forfeited or expired (34,000 24.3¢
Outstanding at March 31, 20. 975,00( 15.0¢
Options grante: 1,648,001 3.91
Options exercise - -
Options forfeited or expired (87,000 16.0¢
Outstanding at March 31, 2014 2,536,00! 7.7¢ 8.4¢  $ 258,00(
Exercisable at March 31, 2014 934,000 $ 14.17 6.25 $ 122,00(
Options available for grant as of March 31
2014 916,00(

The aggregate intrinsic value is calculated adifierence between the exercise price of the ugd®ylstock options and the fair value of

Company’s common stock ($3.77) for stock options.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for shdresed awards exchanged for employee services atstimmated grant date fair value of the award.
Company amortizes the fair value of employee stagiions on a straighine basis over the requisite service period of

awards. Compensation expense includes the impact estimate for forfeitures for all stock options
Employee stock-based compensation expense islawsal
Employee
Stock-based
Compensation
for the Year Endec

March 31, 2014

Employee
Stock-based
Compensation
for the Year Endec

March 31, 2013

Cost of revenue $ 126,000 $ 132,00(
Research and developmt 187,00( 231,00(
Selling, general and administrative 794,00( 791,00(
Total stock-based compensation $ 1,107,000 $ 1,154,000

No income tax benefit has been recognized relatirgjocl-based compensation expense and no tax benefitsieaverealized from exercis

stock options.

The Company estimated the fair value of employeeksbptions using the BlacReholes option pricing model. The fair value of éoype
stock options is being amortized on a straigig-basis over the requisite service periods efréspective awards. The fair value of empl

stock options was estimated using the followingghited-average assumptions:

Year Ended March 31,

2014 2013
Fair value of common stock on date of gr $ 391 % 6.41
Expected Tern 5.96 yrt 5.80 yr:
Risk-free interest rat 1.66% 0.72%
Dividend yield 0.00% 0.00%
Volatility 86.0Y 88.0%
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The weighted-average fair values of options gradtgthg the years ended March 31, 2014 and 2018 $2165 and $4.61, respectively.

The expected term of stock options represents ¥eeage period the stock options are expected t@iremutstanding and is based on
expected term calculated using the approach phbestitby the Securities and Exchange Commissionf§ Ataounting Bulletin No. 110 fc
“plain vanilla” options. The expected stock priagatility for the Companys stock options was determined by using an avesatiee historice
volatilities of the Company and its industry peefhie Company will continue to analyze the stockcervolatility and expected te
assumptions as more data for the Company’s comrumk sind exercise patterns become available. ®igrde interest rate assumptior
based on the U.S. Treasury instruments whose team asnsistent with the expected term of the Conmlgastpck options. The expec
dividend assumption is based on the Comparystory and expectation of dividend payouts. Tmnpany estimates forfeitures basec
historical experience and reduces compensationnsgpaccordingly. The estimated forfeiture ratesl wheing the year ended March 31, 2
ranged from 2.53% to 4.77%.

At March 31, 2014, there were unrecognized comp@rsaosts of $4,124,000 related to stock optiotsctv are expected to be recogni
over a weighted-average amortization period of I&&s.

The Company did not capitalize any cost assochitdstock-based compensation.
The Company issues new shares of common stockexsnise of stock options.
NOTE 15 — Income Taxes

The Company has the following net deferred taxtagge thousands):

March 31,
2014 2013
Deferred tax asset
Net operating loss carryforwar $ 36,20¢ $ 34,88(
Research and development tax credit carryforw 1,65( 1,64¢
Stocl-based compensatic 3,941 3,72
Reserves and accru 2,531 1,40¢
Other deferred tax asse 13 13
State income taxe Q) 1
Basis difference in assets 35 37
Total deferred tax assets $ 44,38 $ 41,70¢
Deferred tax liabilities
Unrealized gain on Ruthigen (3,119 -
Net deferred tax ass 41,27: 41,70¢
Valuation allowance (41,279) (41,709
Net deferred tax ass $ - $ -

The Companys recorded income tax expense, net of the changeimaluation allowance, for each of the periodssented is as follows |
thousands):

Years Ended March 31,

2014 2013
Income tax (benefit $ 43¢ $ (39))
Change in valuation allowance (43€) 391
Net income tax expen: $ - $ =
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A reconciliation of the statutory federal incomg tate to the Company’s effective tax rate is does:

Years Ended March 31,

2014 2013

Expected federal statutory r¢ (34.0% (34.0%
State income taxes, net of federal ber (6.6)% (3.9%
Research and development cre 0.1% (1.9%
Foreign earnings taxed at different re (2.600% 1.7%
Recognition of change in estimate of state anddarBlOL carryforward benefit 0.C% 0.C%
Effect of permanent differences on Ruthigen decliaestion 29.71% 0.C%
Effect of permanent differenc: (19.5% 31.2%
Impact of change in foreign deferr 14.% (1.9%
Impact of change in foreign net operating | 15.8% 0.C%
Cancellation of stock options and t-ups (6.5)% 0.€%
Withholding tax 0.C% (0.9%
Foreign tax credi 0.C% 0.€%
Other (3.1)% (0.9%

(11.9% (7.9%
Change in valuation allowance 11.£% 7.2%
Totals 0.C% 0.C%

At March 31, 2014, the Company had net operatirsg loarryforwards for federal, state and foreigrome tax purposes of approximai
$84,027,010, $67,507,526 and $16,994,620, respdetiVhe federal net operating loss carryforwards expire, if not utilized, beginning
fiscal year March 31, 2022. The state net operdtrg carryforwards will expire, if not utilizede@inning of fiscal year March 31, 2015. -
foreign net operating loss carryforwards will expiif not utilized, beginning of fiscal year Mar8i, 2018. The Company also had, at M
31, 2014, federal and state research credit camgials of approximately $809,580 and 790,390, retspely. The federal credits will expi
beginning in March 31, 2024 and the state crediteat expire. The Company also had, at March 314Z0reign tax credits carryforwards
approximately $50,000. The foreign credits will egpbeginning of fiscal year March 31, 2024.

On March 26, 2014, Ruthigen, Inc. ("Ruthigen")dile certificate of incorporation (the “Restatedtiieate”) with the Secretary of State of
State of Delaware in connection with the closindhef Companyg initial public offering of its securities. Upohe closing of the initial publ
offering, the Company deconsolidated Ruthigen b&eaiuno longer has a controlling financial intér@sRuthigen, its former subsidiary. |
tax purposes, no taxable gain or loss is recognieéted to the Comparg/investment in Ruthigen because Oculus did ndtassl of its
ownership in Ruthigen as part of the initial pulidftering transaction. For financial reporting posg, Ruthigen will be considered as a rel
party after the deconsolidation as long as Ocutilish®lds a noneontrolling financial interest in Ruthigen. Ruthigenaintains a separi
accounting function from Oculus as of March 26,4201

The Company has completed a study to assess wleetthemge in control has occurred or whether thave been multiple changes of cor
since the Companyg’ formation. The Company determined, based ondhalts of the study, no change in control occufoedpurposes ¢
Internal Revenue Code section 382. The Compangr afinsidering all available evidence, fully resehfor these and its other deferred
assets since it is more likely than not such bé&nefill not be realized in future periods. The Camyp has incurred losses for both finar
reporting and income tax purposes for the year @éndierch 31, 2014. Accordingly, the Company is comitig to fully reserve for its deferr
tax assets. The Company will continue to evalutsteléferred tax assets to determine whether anygelsain circumstances could affect
realization of their future benefit. If it is deteined in future periods that portions of the Compardeferred income tax assets satisfy
realization standards, the valuation allowance beélreduced accordingly.

As a result of certain realization requirementshotounting Standards Codification Topic 718, thieldeof deferred tax assets and liabili
shown above does not include certain deferred t®eta at March 31, 2013 that arose directly from daductions related to eqt
compensation in excess of compensation recognaefthincial reporting purposes. Equity will be ieased by approximately $533,000 if
when such deferred tax assets are ultimately eshliz

The Company only recognizes tax benefits from arertain tax position if it is more likely than nibtat the tax position will be sustained
examination by the taxing authorities, based ontékénical merits of the position. The tax benefisognized in the financial statements f
such a position are measured based on the largestffibthat has a greater than fifty percent liketid of being realized upon ultim
resolution. To date, the Company has not recogrsmetl tax benefits in its consolidated financiatesnents.
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The Company has identified its federal tax retund é@s state tax return in California as major jarisdictions. The Company also filed

returns in foreign jurisdictions, principally Mexiand The Netherlands. The Compangvaluation of uncertain tax matters was perforfoe
tax years ended through March 31, 2014. Genertlly Company is subject to audit for the years erddacch 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011

may be subject to audit for amounts relating toapetrating loss carryforwards generated in perds to March 31, 2011. The Company
elected to retain its existing accounting policyhwiespect to the treatment of interest and peysadtitributable to income taxes, and continu
reflect interest and penalties attributable to inedaxes, to the extent they arise, as a compafiéistincome tax provision or benefit as wel
its outstanding income tax assets and liabilifide Company believes that its income tax positeEnms deductions would be sustained on i
and does not anticipate any adjustments, otherttiase identified above that would result in a mate&hange to its financial position.

The Company does not have any tax positions forchviti is reasonably possible the total amount afsgrunrecognized tax benefits
increase or decrease within 12 months of March2814. The unrecognized tax benefits may increasdange during the next year for ite
that arise in the ordinary course of business.

NOTE 16 — Employee Benefit Plan

The Company has a program to contribute and adtainis qualified 401(k) plan. Under the 401(k) pldme Company matches emplo
contributions to the plan up to 4% of the emplogesalary. Company contributions to the plans anexud an aggregate of $131,000
$140,000 for the years ended March 31, 2014 an8,2@%pectively.

NOTE 17 — Segment and Geographic Information

The Company generates product revenues from woarel groducts which are sold into the human and animalthcare markets, and
Company generates service revenues from labortgsting services which are provided to medical cewanufacturers.

The Company operates a single segment businepsdduct sales which consists of three geograpkaals territories as follows:

March 31,
2014 2013
uU.S. $ 5,340,000 $ 6,842,00!
Mexico 5,259,00! 5,886,00!
Europe and other 2,124,00! 1,855,00!
$ 12,723,000 $ 14,583,00

For the year ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, thep@oynrecognized product licensing revenues of 18I0 and $1,686,000, respectiv
Such revenues are included in the Compsrpalculation of product revenues and are refleatethe table above under the respec
geographic region where such licensing revenues e@&med.

The Company’s service revenues amounted to $94%00869,000 for the years ended March 31, 2084643.

NOTE 18 — Subsequent Events

At-the-Market Sales Issuances

On April 2, 2014, the Company entered into an Attharket Issuance Sales Agreement with MLV & Co. Lu@der which we may issue ¢
sell shares of our common stock having an aggregfigging price of up to $9,159,000 from time ton& through MLV acting as t
Companys sales agent. The Company will pay MLV a commissiate equal to 3.0% of the gross proceeds froms#he of any shares
common stock sold through MLV as agent under tHesSagreement. As of June 24, 2014, the Company 300,000 shares and the sale
shares under this agreement have resulted in oe¢gds of $982,000.

Increase in Shares Authorized for Issuance undeetR006 and 2011 Plar

In April 2014, the Companyg’ board of directors approved increases to the pumbshares authorized for issuance under the 2006201
Plans by 250,000 and 1,224,021 shares, respectively
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ITEM 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants occ8unting and Financial Disclosures
None.

ITEM 9A. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and proceduresatetiesigned to ensure that information requindattdisclosed in the reports that we fil
submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, prockssammarized, and reported within the time persgmkcified in the SEG’rules and form
and that such information is accumulated and conicated to our management, including our Chief ExgeuOfficer and Chief Financi
Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisiorgarding required disclosure.

We carried out an evaluation, under the supervisioth with the participation of our management,udiig our Chief Executive Officer a
Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness oé ttlesign and operation of our disclosure contmats@ocedures (as defined in Rules 154
and 15d15(e) under the Exchange Act) as of the end ofhwast recent fiscal year. Based upon this evaluatan Chief Executive Officer al
Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclasaontrols and procedures were effective as otWad, 2014.

Management’'s Annual Report on Internal Control overFinancial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaititaining adequate internal control over finaha@gorting, as such term is defined in
Exchange Act Rule 1385(f). Under the supervision and with the partitipa of our management, including our Chief ExeaaitDfficer an
Chief Financial Officer, we conducted an evaluatibrthe effectiveness of our internal control ofiancial reporting based on the framew
in the 1992 Internal Control — Integrated Framewodsued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatmnthe Treadway Commissic
Based on our evaluation, our management concludedtr internal control over financial reportings\effective as of March 31, 2014.
Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportirg

There were no changes in our internal control diveancial reporting that occurred during the fisqalarter ended March 31, 2014 that t
materially affected, or are reasonably likely totenally affect, our internal control over finantiaporting.

ITEM 9B. Other Information
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PART III
ITEM 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Goverree

The information required by this Item is incorpeatby reference to the definitive proxy statememt dur 2014 Annual Meeting
Stockholders to be filed with the Securities andlt&ange Commission within 120 days after the enduoffiscal year ended March 31, 2
(the “2014 Proxy Statement”).

Item 405 of Regulation 8-requires the disclosure of, based upon our rewiétine forms submitted to us during and with respe our mos
recent fiscal year, any known failure by any dioecbfficer, or beneficial owner of more than tegrgent of any class of our securities, or
other person subject to Section 16 of the Exchakae(“reporting person”}o file timely a report required by Section 16(&)tlee Exchang
Act. This disclosure is contained in the sectionitiex “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Repagti€ompliance”in the 2014 Prox
Statement.

Code of Business Conduct and Senior Financial Offics’ Code of Ethics

We have adopted a Code of Business Conduct thdieap all of our officers and employees, inclugliour Chief Executive Officer, Chi
Financial Officer, and other employees who perfdimancial or accounting functions. The Code of Besis Conduct sets forth the b
principles that guide the business conduct of oopleyees. We have also adopted a Senior Finandiae@s’ Code of Ethics that specifica
applies to our Chief Executive Officer, Chief Fica Officer, and other key management employees. WM provide any person, withc
charge, copies of our Code of Business ConductEthits and our Senior Financial OfficeilS8ode of Ethics upon request. Such req:
should be in writing and addressed to: Oculus latige Sciences, Inc., Attention: Chief FinanciafiGdr, 1129 N. McDowell Blvd., Petalun
California 94954.

To date, there have been no waivers under our Gb&easiness Conduct or Senior Financial OfficaZgide of Ethics. We intend to discls
future amendments to certain provisions of our CoflBusiness Conduct or Senior OfficeSbde of Ethics or any waivers, if and w
granted, of our Code of Business Conduct or Se@iticers’ Code of Ethics on our website at http://www.ocwusdim within four busine
days following the date of such amendment or waiver

Procedures for Nominating Directors

There have been no material changes to the proeedyrwhich stockholders may recommend nomineesit@oard of Directors. The Boe
of Directors will consider candidates for direcfmsitions that are recommended by any of our stidiens. Any such recommendation fc
director nomination should be provided to our Secye The recommended candidate should be subntittes in writing and addressec
Oculus Innovative Sciences, Inc., Attention: Seamgt 1129 N. McDowell Blvd., Petaluma, Californid%®%4. The recommendation shc
include the following information: name of candiglatddress, phone and fax number of candidateatansént signed by the candic
certifying that the candidate wishes to be congiddor nomination to our Board of Directors andistawhy the candidate believes that h
she would be a valuable addition to our Board akftors; a summary of the candidatelork experience for the prior five years and
number of shares of our stock beneficially ownedh®y candidate. The Board will evaluate the recemsed candidate and shall deterr
whether or not to proceed with the candidate iroetance with our procedures. We reserve the riglthange our procedures at any tim
comply with the requirements of applicable laws.

ITEM 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this Item is incorp@cby reference to the 2014 Proxy Statement.

ITEM 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners @aManagement and Related Stockholder Matters.

The information required by this Item is incorp@eby reference to the 2014 Proxy Statement.

The information required to be disclosed by Itend (@) of Regulation 3k, "Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equitympensatic
Plans," appears under the caption “Equity Comp@rs&ian Information’in the 2014 Proxy Statement and such informatidandsrporated b
reference into this report.

ITEM 13. Certain Relationships, Related Transactions, anddztor Independence

The information required by this Item is incorp@eby reference to the 2014 Proxy Statement.

ITEM 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information required by this Item is incorp@cby reference to the 2014 Proxy Statement.
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PART IV
ITEM 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules
(a) Documents filed as part of this report
(1) Financial Statements
Reference is made to the Index to Consolidatedn€inhStatements of Oculus Innovative Sciences,under Item 8 of Part Il hereof.
(2) Financial Statement Schedules

Financial statement schedules have been omittécithanot applicable or not required or becauséntleemation is included elsewhere in the
Consolidated Financial Statements or the Notegtber

(b) Exhibits

Exhibit Index
Exhibit No. Description
Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Oculusdwative Sciences, Inc. (included as Exhibit 3.1thef Companys Annua

il Report on Form 1-K filed June 20, 2007, and incorporated hereindfgnence)
39 Certificate of Amendment of Restated Certificatdraforporation of Oculus Innovative Sciences, [fircluded as Exhibit A i
' the Compan’s Definitive Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A filedly 21, 2008, and incorporated herein by referg:

33 Amended and Restated Bylaws, as Amended of Oculnsvhtive Sciences, Inc., effective November 3,02(@hcluded a
' Exhibit 3.3 to the Compars Quarterly Report on Form -Q filed November 4, 2010, and incorporated hergingference)
34 Certificate of Amendment of Restated Certificatéraforporation of Oculus Innovative Sciences, las.amended (included

' Exhibit 3.1 to the Compars Current Report on Forn-K filed March 22, 2013, and incorporated hereinréfgrence)
a1 Specimen Common Stock Certificate (included as likh.1 to the Company’s Registration StatementFonm S1 (File

No. 33%-135584), as amended, declared effective on Jarid4ar®007, and incorporated herein by referer
Form of Warrant to Purchase Common Stock of Ocliasvative Sciences, Inc. (included as Exhibit th4he Company
4.2 Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 3383584), as amended, declared effective on Jara4ary2007, an
incorporated herein by referenc
Form of Warrant to Purchase Common Stock of Ocliasvative Sciences, Inc. (included as Exhibit th3he Company
4.3 Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333584), as amended, declared effective on Jar@4ary2007, an
incorporated herein by referenc
Form of Warrant to Purchase Common Stock of Oclrinsvative Sciences, Inc. (included as Exhibit 4dxhe Companyg
4.4 Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 3383584), as amended, declared effective on Jara4ary2007, an
incorporated herein by referenc
Form of Warrant to Purchase Common Stock of Oclrlusvative Sciences, Inc. (included as Exhibit 4d2he Company
4.5 Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 3383584), as amended, declared effective on Jara4ar2007, an
incorporated herein by referenc
Form of Warrant to Purchase Common Stock of Ocliasvative Sciences, Inc. (included as Exhibit 1@ 3he Companyg

4.6 Current Report on Formr-K filed August 13, 2007, and incorporated hereirrdfgrence)

4.7 Form of Warrant to Purchase Common Stock of Ocutagvative Sciences, Inc. (included as Exhibit thithe Company
' Current Report on Forrr-K filed March 28, 2008, and incorporated hereinréfgrence)

48 Warrant issued to Dayl Crow, dated March 4, 200@l¢ded as Exhibit 4.16 to the Company’s Annual d&®epn Form 1K
' filed June 11, 2009, and incorporated herein bgresfce)

49 Form of Common Stock Purchase Warrant for April 2@Gfering (included as Exhibit 4.15 to the CompanjRegistratio

Statement on Form-1 (File No. 33-158539) declared effective on July 24, 2009, acdnporated herein by referenc
Form of Common Stock Purchase Warrant for July 26f6ring (included as Exhibit 4.15 to the CompanyRegistratio
4.10 Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 3B38539), as amended, declared effective on July2@@9, and incorporated herein
reference
Certificate of Designation of Preferences, Rightd &imitations of Series A 0% Convertible Preferi@bck, filed with th
4.11 Delaware Secretary of State on April 24, 2012 (ideld as Exhibit 4.2 to the Company’s Current ReparForm 8K, filed
April 25, 2012, and incorporated herein by refegr
Form of Common Stock Purchase Warrant for April20ffering (included as Exhibit 4.1 to the Compan€urrent Report

4.12 Form &K, filed April 25, 2012, and incorporated hereintgference)

413 Form of Underwriters Warrant to be issued to thel&mriters in connection with the March 2013 Ofifgriincluded as Exhit
' 4.1 to the Compar's Current Report on Forn-K, filed March 7, 2013, and incorporated hereirréfgrence)

414 Warrant issued to Dawson James Securities, Inteddaecember 9, 2013 (included as exhibit 4.1h¢oQGompany’s 1@ filed

February 14, 2014 and incorporated herein by ratese
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Exhibit No.

Description

4.15

4.16

4.17

4.18

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

Warrant issued to Dawson James Securities, Inteddaecember 9, 2013 (included as exhibit 4.14¢0CGompany’s 1@ filed
February 14, 2014 and incorporated herein by ratese

Form of Series A Common Stock Purchase Warrant~&sruary 2014 offering (included as exhibit 4.1the Companyg
Current Report on Formr-K filed February 26, 2014 and incorporated hergimdference)

Form of Series B Common Stock Purchase Warrant&hruary 2014 offering (included as exhibit 4.2tlhe Company
Current Report on Formr-K filed February 26, 2014 and incorporated hergimeference)

Warrant issued to Dawson James Securities, Inteddgebruary 26, 2014 (included as exhibit 4.3h® €ompanys Curren
Report on Form-K filed February 26, 2014 and incorporated hergimdference)

Form of Indemnification Agreement between Oculusolative Sciences, Inc. and its officers and daex{included as Exhit
10.1 to the Company’s Registration Statement onmF®+l (File No. 333:35584), as amended, declared effective
January 24, 2007, and incorporated herein by neée)e

Office Lease Agreement, dated October 26, 1999dwat Oculus Innovative Sciences, Inc. and RNM Ldleg\ .P. (include:
as Exhibit 10.7 to the Company’s Registration et on Form S-1 (File No. 33385584), as amended, declared effectiv
January 24, 2007, and incorporated herein by neée)

Amendment No. 1 to Office Lease Agreement, datquteeber 15, 2000, between Oculus Innovative Scieroe. and RN!
Lakeville L.P. (included as Exhibit 10.8 to the Qmemny’'s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File 388135584), a
amended, declared effective on January 24, 20@rir@orporated herein by referenc

Amendment No. 2 to Office Lease Agreement, datdgt 28, 2005, between Oculus Innovative Sciences, &nd RNN
Lakeville L.P. (included as Exhibit 10.9 to the Gmeny’'s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File 383135584), a
amended, declared effective on January 24, 20@rir@orporated herein by referenc

Amendment No. 3 to Office Lease Agreement, datedusti23, 2006, between Oculus Innovative Scienlces,and RNN
Lakeville L.P. (included as Exhibit 10.23 to the mjmany’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File 383135584), a
amended, declared effective on January 24, 20@7in@orporated herein by referenc

Office Lease Agreement, dated May 18, 2006, betw@eunlus Technologies of Mexico, S.A. de C.V. andtdhio Sergis
Arturo Fernandez Valenzuela (translated from Sggriiscluded as Exhibit 10.10 to the CompaniRegistration Statement
Form &1 (File No. 33-135584), as amended, declared effective on Jard4ar3007, and incorporated herein by referer
Office Lease Agreement, dated July 2003, betweemuScdnnovative Sciences, B.V. and Artikona Holdi&gd/. (translate
from Dutch) (included as Exhibit 10.11 to the Comya Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File N28-335584), &
amended, declared effective on January 24, 20@rin@orporated herein by referenc

Form of Director Agreement (included as Exhibit2lDto the Company’s Registration Statement on Ferin(File No. 333
135584), as amended, declared effective on Jard4ar007, and incorporated herein by referer

Framework Agreement, dated June 16, 2005, by amhgravier Orozco Gutierrez, Quimica Pasteur, .dle Jorge Paulir
Hermosillo Martin, Oculus Innovative Sciences, laad Oculus Technologies de Mexico, S.A. de C.kcl{ded as Exhit
10.25 to the Company’s Registration Statement amF®-1 (File No. 33335584), as amended, declared effective on Ja
24, 2007, and incorporated herein by referer

Mercantile Consignment Agreement, dated June 165,2Between Oculus Technologies de Mexico, S.ACdé.,, Quimic:
Pasteur, S de R.L. and Francisco Javier Orozceeet (included as Exhibit 10.26 to the Compariegistration Statement
Form &1 (File No. 33-135584), as amended, declared effective on Jard4arg007, and incorporated herein by referer
Partnership Interest Purchase Option Agreemengddatine 16, 2005, by and between Oculus Innov&eiences, Inc. ai
Javier Orozco Gutierrez (included as Exhibit 10td7the Company’s Registration Statement on Form(&ile No. 333
135584), as amended, declared effective on Jarid4ar3007, and incorporated herein by referer

Termination of Oculus Innovative Sciences, Inc. @mllus Technologies de Mexico, S.A. de Cs\VAigreements with Quimi
Pasteur, S de R.L. by Jorge Paulino Hermosillo Mdttanslated from Spanish) (included as Exhibi2B to the Company’
Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 3383584), as amended, declared effective on Jara4ary2007, an
incorporated herein by referenc

Termination of Oculus Innovative Sciences, Inc. @mlilus Technologies de Mexico, S.A. de Cs\Aigreements with Quimi
Pasteur, S de R.L. by Francisco Javier Orozco @eatidtranslated from Spanish) (included as ExHiBi29 to the Company’
Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333584), as amended, declared effective on Jara4ar2007, an
incorporated herein by referenc

Employment Agreement by and between Oculus Innee&iiences, Inc. and Hojabr Alimi, dated Januar3004 (included ¢
Exhibit 10.14 to the Company’s Registration Statenhwn Form S-1 (File No. 33B35584), as amended, declared effectiv
January 24, 2007, and incorporated herein by neée)e

Employment Agreement by and between Oculus Innegdbiciences, Inc. and Jim Schutz, dated Janua294 (included ¢
Exhibit 10.15 to the Company’s Registration Statenuwn Form S-1 (File No. 33B35584), as amended, declared effectiv
January 24, 2007, and incorporated herein by neée)

Employment Agreement by and between Oculus Inneediiciences, Inc. and Robert Miller, dated Jun20D4 (included ¢
Exhibit 10.16 to the Company’s Registration Statenhwn Form S-1 (File No. 33B35584), as amended, declared effectiv
January 24, 2007, and incorporated herein by neée)e

Amended and Restated Oculus Innovative Sciences, 2806 Stock Incentive Plan and related form stopkion plai
agreements (included as Exhibit 10.2 to the Comiga@wyrrent Report on Form R-filed May 2, 2007, and incorporated hel
by reference)

Amendment No. 4 to Office Lease Agreement, datqute®eber 13, 2007, by and between Oculus Innov&siences, Inc. al
RNM Lakeville L.P. (included as Exhibit 10.43 toettCompany’s Annual Report on Form KOfiled June 13, 2008, a
incorporated herein by referenc
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Exhibit No. Description

Amendment to Office Lease Agreement, effective Babr 15, 2008, by and between Oculus Innovativerides Netherlan
10.19 B.V. and Artikona Holding B.V. (translated from @t} (included as Exhibit 10.44 to the Companynnual Report ¢
Form 1(-K filed June 13, 2008, and incorporated hereindigrence)
Purchase Agreement by and between Oculus Innovatiiences, Inc. and Robert Burlingame, dated Jsur26r2009 (include
as Exhibit 10.1 to the Compé’s Current Report on Forn-K filed January 29, 2009, and incorporated hergindference)
Purchase Agreement by and between Oculus Innov&diences, Inc. and Noiffiliated Investors, dated January 26, 2
10.21 (included as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s CurrBeport on Form & filed January 29, 2009, and incorporated hersi

reference)

Revenue Sharing Distribution Agreement by and betw@culus Innovative Sciences, Inc. and VetCure, btated January
10.22 2009 (included as Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’sr&utr Report on Form B-filed January 29, 2009, and incorporated he

by reference)

Purchase Agreement by and between Oculus Innov&oiences, Inc., Robert Burlingame and Seamus rigjaine, date
10.23 February 24, 2009 (included as Exhibit 10.4 to @@mpany’s Current Report on Fornk8filed February 27, 2009, a

incorporated herein by referenc

Amendment No. 1 to Revenue Sharing Distributione®gnent by and between Oculus Innovative Sciennesahd VetCur
10.24 Inc., dated February 24, 2009 (included as ExHiBib to the Company’s Current Report on Forik ted February 27, 200

and incorporated herein by referenc

Consultant Agreement by and between Oculus Innewaficiences, Inc. and Robert C. Burlingame, datedl A, 200¢
10.25 (included as Exhibit 10.52 to the Company’s AnnRabport on Form 1@ filed June 11, 2009, and incorporated herei

reference)

Microcyn U.S. Commercial Launch Agreement by antivieen Oculus Innovative Sciences, Inc. and Advodated April 24
10.26 2009 (included as Exhibit 10.53 to the Company’'sidal Report on Form 1R-filed June 11, 2009, and incorporated herei

reference)

Amendment No. 5 to Office Lease Agreement by antdiden Oculus Innovative Sciences, Inc. and RNM ukaleg LLC, datec
10.27 May 18, 2009 (included as Exhibit 10.54 to the Camps Annual Report on Form I4iled June 11, 2009, and incorpore

herein by reference

Engagement Agreement by and between Oculus Innav&tiences, Inc. and Dawson James Securities,dated April 1C
10.28 2009 (included as Exhibit 10.55 to the Company'giBeation Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 3%BB539), as amendkt

declared effective on July 24, 2009, and incorpatdterein by reference

Amendment and Clarification of Engagement Letteramd between Oculus Innovative Sciences, Inc. aad/dbn Jam
10.29 Securities, Inc., dated July 2, 2009 (included =siliit 10.56 to the Company’s Registration StatenwnForm St (File No

33:-158539), as amended, declared effective on Jul@d9, and incorporated herein by referen

Second Amendment and Clarification of Engagemerntetéy and between Oculus Innovative Sciences, and Dawsao
10.30  James Securities, Inc., dated July 10, 2009 (imdduals Exhibit 10.57 to the Company’s Registratitate®nent on Form 3$-

(File No. 33:-158539), as amended, declared effective on Jul@39, and incorporated herein by referen

Warrant Purchase Agreement by and between Ocuhw/éttive Sciences, Inc. and Dawson James Secuiities dated Ju
10.31t 13, 2009 (included as Exhibit 10.58 to the ComparBegistration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. B38539), as amendk

declared effective on July 24, 2009, and incorpatdterein by reference

Amendment No. 2 to Revenue Sharing, PartnershipDasiibution Agreement between Oculus Innovativée8ces, Inc. ar
10.32  Vetericyn, Inc., dated July 24, 2009 (refiled asibr 10.44 to the Company’s Quarterly Report omnrd.0-Q/A for the quarte

ended September 30, 2010 filed April 29, 2011, iandrporated herein by referenc

Loan and Security Agreement between Oculus Innediiciences, Inc. and Venture Lending & Leasindn¢,, dated May :
10.33 2010 (included as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’sr€uir Report on Form B-filed May 6, 2010, and incorporated hereir

reference)

Supplement to the Loan and Security Agreement bexv@culus Innovative Sciences, Inc., and Venturedirey & Leasing Vv
10.34t Inc., dated May 1, 2010 (included as Exhibit 1@2ttte Company’s Current Report on ForniK §ded May 6, 2010, an

incorporated herein by referenc

Amendment No. 3 to Revenue Sharing, PartnershipDasiibution Agreement between Oculus Innovativée8ces, Inc. ar
10.35t  Vetericyn, Inc., dated June 1, 2010 (refiled asikix10.44 to the Company’s Quarterly Report onrRdi0-Q/A for the quarte

ended June 30, 2010 filed April 29, 2011, and ipooated herein by referenc

Amendment No. 1 to Exhibit A to the Revenue Shaligtribution Agreement and to the Revenue Sharfaytnership ar
10.36 Distribution Agreement as Revised and Amended, Iyn2010, dated September 1, 2010 (included asbiExh®.46 to th

Compan’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q filed November 4, 2010, and incorporated hergingference)

10.20
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Exhibit No.

Description

10.37

10.38%

10.39t

10.40t

10.41

10.42

10.43

10.44

10.45

10.46

10.47

10.48

10.49%

10.50t

10.51

10.52

10.53t

10.54%

10.55%

10.56

Continuous Offering Program Agreement between Gxuliiunovative Sciences, Inc. and Rodman & Renshav(;, Ldatel
September 3, 2010 (included as Exhibit 10.1 toGleenpany’s Current Report on FormK8filed September 17, 2010, ¢
incorporated herein by referenc

Purchase Agreement by and between Oculus Innov&tiences, Inc. and accredited investors, dateduggp6, 2009 (refile
as Exhibit 10.32 to the Company’s Quarterly Repmrt Form 109 filed November 4, 2010, and incorporated herey
reference)

Distribution Agreement between Oculus InnovativéeSces, Inc. and Tianjin Ascent Import and Expoohipany, Ltd., date
January 28, 2011 (included as Exhibit 10.47 to Genpany’s Quarterly Report on Form @QOfiled February 4, 2011, a
incorporated herein by reference

Exclusive Sales and Distribution Agreement betw&aulus Innovative Sciences, Inc. and Quinnova Pheeuticals, Inc
dated February 14, 2011 (included as Exhibit 16.thé Company’s Current Report on ForrK 8iled February 18, 2011, a
incorporated herein by referenc

Exclusive CoPromotion Agreement between Oculus Innovative Se&sninc. and Quinnova Pharmaceuticals, Inc.,
February 14, 2011 (included as Exhibit 10.2 to @@mpany’s Current Report on FormK8filed February 18, 2011, a
incorporated herein by referenc

Product Option Agreement between Oculus Innovaigiences, Inc. and AmDerma Pharmaceuticals, LL&ddgebruary 1.
2011 (included as Exhibit 10.3 to the Company'sréhirReport on Form B-filed February 18, 2011, and incorporated he
by reference).

Amendment No. 6 to Office Lease Agreement by andiéen Oculus Innovative Sciences, Inc. and RNM Vkaleg L.P., date
April 26, 2011 (included as Exhibit 10.52 to then@many’s Annual Report on Form X0filed June 3, 2011, and incorpora
herein by reference

Loan and Security Agreement between Oculus Inneg&@tiences, Inc. and Venture Lending & Leasinglwt,, dated June 2z
2011 (included as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’sr€uir Report on Form 8-filed July 6, 2011, and incorporated hereir
reference)

Supplement to the Loan and Security Agreement kaxiv@culus Innovative Sciences, Inc. and Venturedlren& Leasing VI
Inc., dated June 29, 2011 (included as Exhibit 16.2he Company’s Current Report on FornK 8Hed July 6, 2011, ar
incorporated herein by referenc

Amendment No. 1 to the Loan and Security Agreenaeit Supplement to the Loan and Security Agreemeiwden Ocult
Innovative Sciences, Inc. and Venture Lending & dieg V, Inc., dated June 29, 2011 (included as IEkHi0.4 to th
Compan’s Current Report on Forn-K filed July 6, 2011, and incorporated herein bigrence).

Intellectual Property Security Agreement betweemnlQg Innovative Sciences, Inc. and Venture Lendingeasing VI, Inc.
dated June 29, 2011 (included as Exhibit 10.5 ® @ompany’s Current Report on FormK8filed July 6, 2011, ar
incorporated herein by referenc

Intellectual Property Security Agreement betweenl@x Innovative Sciences, Inc. and Venture Lendingeasing V, Inc.
dated June 29, 2011 (included as Exhibit 10.6 ® @ompany’s Current Report on FormK8filed July 6, 2011, ar
incorporated herein by referenc

Oculus Innovative Sciences, Inc. 2011 Stock Ineenfllan (included as Exhibit A in the Companipefinitive Proxy Stateme
on Schedule 14A filed July 29, 2011, and incorpextdterein by reference

Distribution Agreement between Oculus InnovativéeBces, Inc. and Shanghai Sunvic Technology Co., Idated June 2
2011 (included as Exhibit 10.58 to the Company’'sau@arly Report on Form 1Q-filed August 4, 2011 and incorporated he
by reference)

Lease by and between Oculus Innovative Sciences,aimd KCKMC Properties, LLP for the property laghtat 3045 65!
Street, Suite 13, Sacramento, CA 95820, dated @ct®b, 2011 (included as Exhibit 10.56 to the ComypmQuarterly Repa
on Form 1+Q filed November 8, 2012, and incorporated hergindference)

Patent License AgreemeBiclusive between Oculus Innovative Sciences, dnd. agencies of the United States Public H
Service within the Department of Health and Humamviges, dated August 22, 2011 (included as ExHibi0 to th
Compan’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q filed November 3, 2011, and incorporated hergingberence)

Securities Purchase Agreement by and between thg&uy and the Purchasers, dated April 22, 2012ufled as Exhibit 10
to the Compar’s Current Report on Forn-K, filed April 25, 2012, and incorporated hereintgjerence)

Collaboration Agreement between Oculus Innovatigeiges, Inc. and AmDerma Pharmaceuticals, LLGsdldtine 21, 20:
(included as Exhibit 10.53 to the Company’s AnnRalport on Form 1@ filed June 21, 2012 and incorporated herei
reference)

License, Exclusive Distribution and Supply Agreemdry and between Oculus Innovative Sciences, Imd &culu:
Technologies of Mexico, S.A. de C.V., and, More tiatea Corporation, S. de R.L. de C.V., dated Augys2(® 2 (included ¢
Exhibit 10.1 to the Compa’s Current Report on Forn-K, filed August 15, 2012, and incorporated hergjrrdference)
Exclusive Distribution and Supply Agreement by d@tween Oculus Innovative Sciences, Inc. and Octiaghnologies ¢
Mexico, S.A. de C.V., and, More Pharma Corporat®nge R.L. de C.V., dated August 9, 2012 (includsdExhibit 10.2 to tt
Compan’s Current Report on Forn-K, filed August 15, 2012, and incorporated hergjnrdference)
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Description

10.57

10.58

10.59

10.60

10.61

10.62

10.63

10.64

10.65

10.66

10.67

10.68

10.69

10.70

10.71

10.72

10.73

10.74

10.75

Amendment to Lease dated August 30, 2012 by andeet Oculus Innovative Sciences, Inc. and KCKMQoErties, LLC fo
the property located at 3045 65th Street, SuiteSh8ramento, CA 95820, dated September 6, 2012 died as Exhibit 10.57
the Compan’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q filed November 8, 2012, and incorporated hergindference)

Amendment No. 7 to Office Lease Agreement by antivéen Oculus Innovative Sciences, Inc. and 11257 Nortl
McDowell, LLC, dated October 10, 2012 (includedEadibit 10.58 to the Company’s Quarterly ReportFarm 10Q filed
November 8, 2012, and incorporated herein by rafape

Stock Purchase Agreement by and between Oculus/éiive Sciences, Inc. and Venture Lending & Leasiig.LC anc
Venture Lending & Leasing VI, LLC, dated October, 2012 (included as Exhibit 10.1 to the Compan@urrent Report ¢
Form &K, filed November 1, 2012, and incorporated helsinmeference)

Letter Agreement by and between Oculus Innovatisierges, Inc. and Venture Lending & Leasing V, Jidated October 3
2012 (included as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’sr€uir Report on Form 8, filed November 1, 2012, and incorporated he
by reference)

Letter Agreement by and between Oculus Innovatiier®es, Inc. and Venture Lending & Leasing VI,.Jrutated October 3
2012 (included as Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’sr€uir Report on Form 8, filed November 1, 2012, and incorporated he
by reference)

Side Letter Agreement to the Stock Purchase Agraedeted April 22, 2012 by and between Oculus latige Sciences, In
on one hand, and Sabby Healthcare Volatility MaBtand, Ltd. and Sabby Volatility Warrant Master Huhtd. on the othe
hand, dated October 29, 2012 (included as Exhib# fo the Company’s Current Report on Forii,8iled November 1, 201
and incorporated herein by referenc

Offer of Employment Letter between Oculus Innovatisciences, Inc. and Sameer Harish, effective @sebfuary 1, 201
(included as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Curreport on Form &, filed February 4, 2013, and incorporated hetsy
reference)

Employment Agreement by and between Ruthigen,dnd.Hojabr Alimi, dated March 21, 2013 (includedexhibit 10.1 to th
Compan’s Current Report on Forn-K, filed March 22, 2013, and incorporated hereirrdéference)

License and Supply Agreement by and between Odulnsvative Sciences, Inc. and Ruthigen, Inc., dadsy 23, 201
(included as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s CurrB&port on Form &, filed June 7, 2013, and incorporated hereil
reference)

Shared Services Agreement by and between Oculew#tine Sciences, Inc. and Ruthigen, Inc., dategt R& 2013 (include
as Exhibit 10.2 to the Compé’s Current Report on Forn-K, filed June 7, 2013, and incorporated hereindfgnence)
Amendment to Offer of Employment Letter between ldsunnovative Sciences, Inc. and Sameer Haristeddslay 23, 201
(included as Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s CurrB&port on Form &, filed June 7, 2013, and incorporated hereil
reference)

Employment Agreement by and between Oculus Innegaiciences, Inc. and Jim Schutz, dated June 4@, @ided as Exhib
10.68 to the Compar's Annual Report on Form -K, filed June 25, 2013 and incorporated hereindfgnence)

Employment Agreement by and between Oculus InneeaSiciences, Inc. and Robert Miller, dated June2Bd3 (filed a
Exhibit 10.69 to the Compa’s Annual Report on Form -K, filed June 25, 2013 and incorporated hereindfgnence)
Separation Agreement by and between Oculus Inn@/&ciences, Inc. and Ruthigen, Inc., dated Augu2013 (included :
exhibit 10.1 to the Compa’s Current Report on Forn-K filed August 8, 2013 and incorporated herein &fgrence)
Amendment No. 1 to License and Supply Agreemerdary between Oculus Innovative Sciences, Inc. artigan, Inc., date
October 9, 2013 (included as exhibit 10.64 to trmm@any’s 10Q filed November 19, 2013 and incorporated hersj
reference)

Amendment No. 2 to License and Supply Agreemeranny between Oculus Innovative Sciences, Inc. artigan, Inc., date
November 6, 2013 (included as exhibit 10.65 to @mnpan’s 10-Q filed November 19, 2013 and incorporated hersi
reference)

Letter Agreement by and between Oculus Innovatsierges, Inc., Venture Lending & Leasing V, Ind&/enture Lending .
Leasing VI, Inc., dated November 6, 2013 (filed eahibit 10.66 to the Company’s 1D-filed November 19, 2013 a
incorporated herein by referenc

Form of Securities Purchase Agreement by and bet@eelus Innovative Sciences, Inc. and the Purchadated December
2013 (included as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’sr€uir Report on Form B filed December 6, 2013, and incorporated he
by reference)

Funding Agreement by and between Oculus Innovaisiences, Inc. and Ruthigen, Inc., dated Januarp@®l4 (included ¢
Exhibit 10.1 to the Compa’s Current Report on Forn-K, filed February 6, 2014, and incorporated helsimeference)
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Description

Amended Separation Agreement by and between Od¢nihgs/ative Sciences, Inc. and Ruthigen, Inc., dd@uary 31, 20:

10.76 (included as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s CurrBeport on Form &, filed February 6, 2014, and incorporated hetsy
reference)
Amendment No. 3 to License and Supply Agreemerdray between Oculus Innovative Sciences, Inc. artign, Inc., date
10.77  January 31, 2014 (included as exhibit 10.3 to tlmmg@any’'s Current Report on FormKkBfiled February 6, 2014 a
incorporated herein by referenc
10.78 Amendment No. 1 to Shared Services Agreement bybataleen Oculus Innovative Sciences, Inc. and Bathilnc., date
: January 31, 2014 (included as exhibit 10.4 to tam@any's Current Report on Forn-K filed February 6, 2014
10.79 Letter Agreement by and between Oculus Innovatigierges, Inc. and Hojabr Alimi, dated January 3114 (included &
’ exhibit 10.6 to the Compa’s Current Report on Forn-K filed February 6, 2014
Form of Securities Purchase Agreement by and betfeailus Innovative Sciences, Inc. and the Purechadated February =
10.80 2014 (included as exhibit 10.1 to the Company’sré€nirReport on Form &-filed February 26, 2014 and incorporated he
by reference)
At-the-Market Issuance Sales Agreement, dated April 2420% and between Oculus Innovative Sciences,dnd. MLV &
10.81 Co. LLC (included as exhibit 10.1 to the Compar@igrent Report on Form R-filed April 2, 2014 and incorporated herein
reference)
21.1* List of Subsidiarie:
23.1* Consent of Marcum LLP, independent registered puddcounting firm
31.1* Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant$ection 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002
31.2* Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant $ection 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002
30 1 ggcr)tzification of Officers pursuant to 18 U.S.C. #@t 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 efSérbane©xley Act of
101.INS*# XBRL Instance Documen
101.SCH*# XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schermr
101.CAL*# XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkba:
101.DEF*# XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbas
101.LAB*# XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbas
101.PRE*# XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbe
* Filed herewith

* —

Confidential treatment has been granted with resjperertain portions of this agreeme
Pursuant to Rule 406T of RegulatiornT Sthe Interactive Data Files on Exhibit 101 herate deemed not filed or part of a registre

statement or prospectus for purposes of Sectiors 12 of the Securities Act of 1933, as amendezidaemed not filed for purpose:
Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1@34amended, and otherwise are not subject toitiabitder those section

Copies of above exhibits not contained herein aedlable to any stockholder, upon payment of aorable per page fee, upon written req
to: Chief Financial Officer, Oculus Innovative Suies, Inc., 1129 N. McDowell Blvd., Petaluma, Galiia 94954.

(c) Financial Statements and Schedules

Reference is made to Item 15(a)(2) above.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 18{dhe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report tc
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatyp authorized.

OCULUS INNOVATIVE SCIENCES, INC.

Date: June 30, 2014 By: /sl Jim Schutz
Jim Schutz
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on behalf of 1
registrant and in the capacities and on the datéisated.

Signature Title Date
/sl Jim Schutz President, Chief Executive Offized June 30, 2014
Jim Schut: Director (Principal Executive Office
/s/ Robert E. Miller Chief Financial Officer el 30, 2014
Robert E. Miller (Principal Financial Officer, an

Principal Accounting Officer

/s/ Sharon Barba Director June 30, 2014
Sharon Barbari

/sl Jay Edward Birnbaum Director June 30, 2014
Jay Edward Birnbaur

/s/ Russell Harrison Director June 30, 2014
Russell Harrisot

/sl Jerry McLaughlin Director June 30, 2014
Jerry McLaughlin
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Exhibit 21.1

Subsidiaries of Registrant

1.

2.

Aquamed Technologies, Inc., a corporation organizsdker the laws of California (wholly ownes
Oculus Technologies of Mexico, S.A. de C.V., a cogion organized under the laws of Mexico (whallyned).
Oculus Innovative Sciences Netherlands B.V., a@@tpon organized under the laws of the Netherlgndwlly owned).

Ruthigen, Inc., a corporation organized uridedaws of Nevada (As of March 26, 2014, the clgsiate of Ruthigen’s IPO, we
owned a minority 43% interest in Ruthige



Exhibit 2 3.1

INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRNS CONSENT

We consent to the incorporation by reference inRlegistration Statement of Oculus Innovative Sasndnc. on Form S-3 (File No. 333-
177462), Form S-3 (File No. 333-171411), Form $i8(No. 333-171412), Form S-8 (File No. 333-1410Fbrm S-8 (File No. 33382263)
Form S-8 (File No. 333-195530), Form S-8 (File 883-194314) and Form S-8 (File No. 3B83988) of our report dated June 30, 2014,
respect to our audits of the consolidated finansiatements of Oculus Innovative Sciences, Inc. Sulosidiaries as of March 31, 2014
2013 and for the years then ended, which repamncisded in this Annual Report on Form KOef Oculus Innovative Sciences, Inc. for the
ended March 31, 2014.

/s/ Marcum LLP
Marcum LLP

New York, NY
June 30, 2014



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT T O
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
(18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350)

[, Jim Schutz, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of Oculus Innovative Sciences Inc. for the yeaded March 31, 201

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omgtéde a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts under which such statements were made, nt#adisg with respect to t
period covered by this repo

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements,cher financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this rep

4. The registran$ other certifying officer and | are responsible éstablishing and maintaining disclosure conteoid procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@)) and internal control over financial repagtifas defined in Exchange /
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

(@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedures tesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatiotatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhteubsidiaries, is ma
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isifge prepared

Designed such internal control over financial réjpor, or caused such internal control over finaheporting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodimand the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in atauce with generally accepted accounting princijy

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registeadisclosure controls and procedures and presémtins report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contral$ procedures, as of the end of the period coveyetlis report based
such evaluation; an

Disclosed in this report any change in the segnts internal control over financial reporting thatcomed during th
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regrdts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabrg that has material
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registra’s internal control over financial reporting; &

5. The registran$ other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxh on our most recent evaluation of internal abrdver financie
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitaemmmittee of the registrarstboard of directors (or persons performing thevedent
functions):

(@)

(b)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesge the design or operation of internal controkmofinancial reportin
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect thgistrants ability to record, process, summarize and refinencia
information; anc

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesamagement or other employees who have a signifioalet in the
registran’s internal control over financial reportir

By: /s/ Jim Schut.

Date: June 30, 2014 Jim Schut:

Chief Executive Office
(Principal Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT T O
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
(18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350)

[, Robert Miller, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of Oculus Innovative Sciences Inc. for the yeaded March 31, 201

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omgtéde a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts under which such statements were made, nt#adisg with respect to t
period covered by this repo

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements,cher financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this rep

4. The registran$ other certifying officer and | are responsible éstablishing and maintaining disclosure conteoid procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@)) and internal control over financial repagtifas defined in Exchange /
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

()

(f)

(9)

(h)

Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedures tesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatiotatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhteubsidiaries, is ma
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isifge prepared

Designed such internal control over financial réjpor, or caused such internal control over finaheporting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodimand the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in atauce with generally accepted accounting princijy

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registeadisclosure controls and procedures and presémtins report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contral$ procedures, as of the end of the period coveyetlis report based
such evaluation; an

Disclosed in this report any change in the segnts internal control over financial reporting thatcomed during th
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regrdts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabrg that has material
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registra’s internal control over financial reporting; &

5. The registran$ other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxh on our most recent evaluation of internal abrdver financie
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitaemmmittee of the registrarstboard of directors (or persons performing thevedent
functions):

()

(d)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesge the design or operation of internal controkmofinancial reportin
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect thgistrants ability to record, process, summarize and refinencia
information; anc

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesamagement or other employees who have a signifioalet in the
registran’s internal control over financial reportir

By: /s/ Robert Miller

Date: June 30, 2014 Robert Miller

Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer and Principal
Accounting Officer)



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
(18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350)

Pursuant to section 906 of the Sarba@etey Act of 2002 (subsections (a) and (b) of satti350, chapter 63 of title 18, United States Gy
the undersigned officers of Oculus Innovative Scém Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Compangd, hereby certify, to such officers’
knowledge, that:

The Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year endeatdl 31, 2014 (the “Form 10-K9f the Company fully complies with the requirem:
of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExcleaAgt of 1934, and the information contained in Boem 10K fairly presents, in all materi
respects, the financial condition and results arapjons of the Company.

Date: June 30, 2014 By: /s/ Jim Schut.
Jim Schutz
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer

Date: June 30, 2014 By: /s/ Robert Miller
Robert Miller
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer and Principal
Accounting Officer)




